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Report Title: 
 

Final Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
 

Purpose of report 

 
This paper presents the final version of the HOIA Opinion for NHS Sunderland CCG, which was 
prepared for submission to NHSE by 29 May 2019. 
 

Key points 

 
All audit work has now been completed to at least draft report stage, and the final version of the 
Opinion has been issued with an overall assurance level of substantial assurance. 
 
Assurances are available for all but one outsourced services with the exception being the 
assurance on ESR, which has not yet been issued. However, the final version of the report reflects 
this.  
 
Risks identified from audit work have been reported in individual internal audit reports, which have 
been presented to the Committee throughout the year as they are finalised.     

 

Risks and issues 

 
All but one report has been issued with an assurance level of substantial, with the remaining report 
being issued with an assurance level of good; however, this has not adversely impacted on the 
final Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
 

Assurances  

 
Assurances are provided by individual audit reports. 

Recommendation/Action Required 

 
The Governing Body is asked to note the final Head of Internal Audit Opinion. 
 

Sponsor/approving directors   Not applicable 



 

Report author Alyson Williams, Audit Manager, AuditOne 

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1: Ensure the CCG meets its public accountability duties  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance targets 
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CO4: Ensure the CCG involves patients and the public in commissioning and reforming  
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CO8:  Develop and deliver primary medical care commissioning 
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Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 
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1. Introduction 
 
In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Head of Internal Audit is required to provide an annual opinion on 
the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s system of internal control.  
 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Audit Committee with the final Head of Internal Audit Opinion for the year ending 31 
March 2019, which should be used to inform the Annual Governance Statement.  
 
The timeline for submission of the Head of Internal Audit Opinion is as follows 
 

By 15 March (noon) 
A full copy of the draft Head of Internal Audit Opinion (to allow regional assurance activity to 
commence). To aid thematic analysis, this should include a summary table of all audits reviews 
undertaken, and the level of assurance assigned to each review. 

By 18 April (noon) 
A full copy of the draft Head of Internal Audit Opinion (to allow regional assurance activity to 
commence). To aid thematic analysis, this should include a summary table of all audits reviews 
undertaken, and the level of assurance assigned to each review. 

By 29 May (noon) 
A full copy of the final Head of Internal Audit Opinion statement as issued by the CCG’s internal 
auditors. Note this should be submitted a separate document. A summary version should be included 
in the CCG Annual Report. 

 
Although the above deadlines have been set by NHS England, the CCG intends to take its final Head of Internal Audit Opinion to 
the Governing Body on 21 May 2019, and this is the deadline to which we are working. 
 
This version has been prepared for the final submission date. Previous versions have been prepared and submitted to Audit 
Committee and in line with the 15 March and 18 April 2019 submission deadlines. 
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2. Head of Internal Audit Opinion on the Effectiveness of the System of Internal Control at 
NHS Sunderland CCG for the year ending 31 March 2019 

 

2.1     Roles and responsibilities 
 
The Accountable Officer is responsible for maintaining a sound system of internal control and is responsible for putting in place 
arrangements for gaining assurance about the effectiveness of that overall system. 
 
The Annual Governance Statement is an annual statement by the Accountable Officer, on behalf of the Governing Body, setting 
out: 
  

 how the individual responsibilities of the Accountable Officer are discharged with regard to maintaining a sound system of 
internal control that supports the achievement of policies, aims and objectives; 
 

 the purpose of the system of internal control as evidenced by a description of the risk management and review processes, 
including the Assurance Framework process; 

 

 the conduct and results of the review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control, including any disclosures of 
significant control failures together with assurances that actions are or will be taken where appropriate to address issues arising. 

 

The organisation’s Assurance Framework should bring together all of the evidence required to support the Annual Governance 
Statement requirements. 
 
In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Head of Internal Audit is required to provide an annual opinion, 
based upon, and limited to, the work performed, on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management, 
control and governance processes (i.e. the organisation’s system of internal control). This is achieved through a risk-based plan of 
work, approved by the Audit Committee, which should provide a reasonable level of assurance, subject to the inherent limitations 
described below.  
 
The opinion does not imply that Internal Audit have reviewed all risks and assurances relating to the organisation. The opinion is 
substantially derived from the conduct of risk-based plans, generated from a robust and organisation-led Assurance Framework. As 
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such, it is one component that the Accountable Officer takes into account in making the Annual Governance Statement. The 
Accountable Officer will need to integrate these results with other sources of assurance when making a rounded assessment of 
control for the purposes of the Annual Governance Statement. 

 

2.2     The Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
 
The purpose of my annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion is to contribute to the assurances available to the Accountable Officer 
and the Governing Body which underpins the organisation’s own assessment of the effectiveness of the system of internal control. 
This Opinion will in turn assist in the completion of the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
My opinion is set out as follows: 
 
2.2.1 Overall opinion; 

2.2.2 Basis for the opinion; 

2.2.3 Commentary. 

 

2.2.1   Overall Opinion 
 
 
 
 

 

 
  

From my review of your systems of internal control, I am providing an opinion of substantial assurance that the system 
of internal control has been effectively designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are being 
consistently applied. 
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2.2.2   Basis of the Opinion  
 
The basis for forming my opinion is as follows: 
 

1. An assessment of the design and operation of the underpinning 

Assurance Framework and supporting processes for governance and 

the management of risk; 

 
2. An assessment of the range of individual opinions arising from audit 

assignments, contained within risk-based plans that have been 

reported throughout the year. This assessment has taken account of 

the relative materiality of these areas and management’s progress in 
respect of addressing control weaknesses; 

 
3. Brought forward Internal Audit assurances; 

 

4. An assessment of the organisation’s response to Internal Audit 

recommendations, and 

 
5. Consideration of significant factors outside the work of Internal Audit. 

 
 
  

Brought forward 

Internal Audit 

assurances 

Response to 

Internal Audit 

Recommendations 

Significant other 

factors 

Outturn of 

Internal Audit Plan 

Assurance  

Framework and 

supporting 

processes 
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2.2.3 Commentary 
 
The below commentary provides the context for my opinion and together with the opinion should be read in its entirety. 
 

Opinion Area 
 

Commentary 

Design and operation of the 
Assurance Framework and 
supporting processes 

The Governing Body Assurance Framework has been updated for 2018/19 and presented to 
both the Audit and Risk Committee and the Governing Body. The Governing Body Assurance 
Framework is presented to the Audit and Risk Committee on a six-monthly basis, being last 
presented on 4 September 2018. It will be presented at the next Audit and Risk Committee 
meeting on 21 May 2019. The Corporate Risk Register, which underpins the Governing Body 
Assurance Framework, is discussed at every Audit and Risk Committee, and was last presented 
on 9 April 2019.  
 
The Assurance Framework was last presented to the Governing Body on 25 September 2018 
and will next be presented to the Governing Body on 21 May 2019.  
 
The Governing Body Assurance Framework is based on the CCG’s strategic objectives and an 
analysis of the principal risks to achieving those objectives. The key controls that have been put 
in place to manage the risks have been documented, and the sources of assurance for 
individual controls have been identified. The Governing Body Assurance Framework therefore 
provides the CCG with a comprehensive mechanism for the management of the principal risks 
to meeting its strategic objectives and supports the compilation of the Annual Governance 
Statement.  
 

The CCG has developed risk management processes that are operating within the organisation. 
Oversight of the risk management agenda rests with the Audit and Risk Committee, which 
reports into the Governing Body. In this way, the Governing Body received assurances on the 
systems and processes by which the organisation leads, directs and controls its functions in 
order to achieve its strategic objectives.   
 
Internal audit have reviewed the effectiveness of the assurance framework, and the 
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Opinion Area 
 

Commentary 

underpinning risk management processes, in bringing together all of the activities and objectives 
of the CCG. No significant issues were identified. 

Outturn of Internal Audit Plan 
 
 

A table of individual opinions arising from audit assignments reported throughout the year is 
contained at Appendix A. Definitions of individual opinions are given at Appendix B. Work is 
split between core assurance and assurance arising from risk-based audits, with core assurance 
being provided on an annual basis in those areas central to the operation of the CCG. Risk-
based audits are carried out on a cyclical basis, in line with the CCG’s risk profile and the 
contents of the CCG’s Assurance Framework. 
 
To date, we have issued assurance levels in relation to twelve assurance areas in either draft or 
final form, including our review of the CCG’s Data Security and Protection Toolkit. Where reports 
have been issued in draft, the assurance level has been communicated to the CCG, although 
management responses in relation to the action to be taken to address identified weaknesses 
have not yet been received.  
 
All reports bar one issued so far during the year have been issued with an assurance level of 
substantial. The one exception is our report on Mental Health Arrangements – S117, which was 
issued as a draft report with an assurance level of good, with two medium priority 
recommendations raised.  

Brought forward Internal Audit 
assurances 
 

The Head of Internal Audit Opinion given for the year ended 31 March 2018 gave a level of 
assurance of ‘substantial’. There were no material issues identified to be brought forward for 
consideration in this opinion statement. One audit, on Continuing Healthcare, which was a follow 
up of issues identified in the previous report issued in 2017, was issued with an assurance level 
of ‘good’ with three medium priority recommendations raised. Two of these recommendations 
have since been implemented, with the third now having a revised target date of 31 March 2019. 
We are currently in the process of following up on this action to ensure that it has either been 
implemented or a revised target date provided. 

Response to Internal Audit 
recommendations 
 

There is a formal process in place to follow up on outstanding actions to address risks identified 
in internal audit reports. Progress against outstanding actions is reported in regular progress 
reports to the Audit Committee, with specific attention drawn to any actions where the target 
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Opinion Area 
 

Commentary 

 date has been put back, or where no update has been received from officers within the CCG. As 
at 14 May 2019, all but one actions from final reports that were due for implementation had been 
implemented, with the outstanding action being in relation to Continuing Healthcare, as stated 
above. This now has a revised target date of 31 March 2019 and we are currently in the process 
of following up on this action or obtaining a revised target date. 
 
It is for the CCG to consider whether any outstanding actions in relation to identified risks are 
sufficiently significant to be reflected in the Annual Governance Statement. 

Significant factors outside the 
work of internal audit 
 
 

While the Head of Internal Audit Opinion provides the CCG with assurances in relation to the 
areas covered by the internal audit plan, it is only one of the sources of assurance available to 
the CCG. As the CCG outsources many of its functions, assurances from third parties are 
equally as important when the CCG draws up its Annual Governance Statement.  
 
The main ones that we have been made aware of are summarised below, and although we have 
reviewed these for any significant items of control, we have not taken account of these in 
providing the overall opinion except where indicated: 
 
- Payroll services are provided by NHS Payroll Services hosted by Northumbria Healthcare 

NHS Foundation Trust. The CCG, through its membership of the Payroll Consortium, 
receives an annual assurance letter setting out the results of the internal audit work carried 
out during the year.  The assurance letter for 2018/19 has now been issued and gave an 
assurance level of substantial. 
 

- The CCG outsources many of its support services to the North of England Commissioning 
Support Unit (NECS), hosted by NHS England, under a signed service level agreement. 
Assurance on the operation of certain financial and payroll controls has been provided by 
NHS England’s internal auditors, Deloitte LLP, via an ISAE 3402 Type II report issued on 30 
April 2019 and covered the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.  This report 
identified some weaknesses in the operation of controls during the period, which were set 
out in their ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of the report.   
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Opinion Area 
 

Commentary 

  
- Assurance in respect of the operation of the finance and accounting services provided by 

NHS Shared Business Services (SBS) has been provided by the NHS SBS’ auditors, PwC 
LLP, via an ISAE 3402 report issued on 16 April 2019.  The report provided reasonable 
assurance that the specified control objectives would be achieved if the described controls 
operated effectively throughout the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019, and that the 
controls tested, which were those necessary to provide reasonable assurance that the 
control objectives stated in the description were achieved, operated effectively throughout 
the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019. 
 

- Assurance in respect of the primary care support services provided from Capita Business 
Services Limited to NHS England and CCGs has been provided by Capita’s auditors, KPMG 
LLP.  Reports issued for 2016/17 and 2017/18 identified significant control 
weaknesses.  For 2018/19 two reports were issued – an interim ISAE 3402 report, covering 
the period 1 April to 30 September 2018, and a second report, covering the period 1 April 
2018 to 31 March 2019, issued on 30 April 2019.  In summary, the reports still identified 
some weaknesses in the operation of controls during the period, which were set out in their 
‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of the reports; however, the number of control 
objectives with a qualified or partially qualified opinion had reduced from the previous year.  

 
Given the identified weaknesses, the CCG may wish to consider what compensating 
controls it has in place. 

 
- Assurance in respect of the operation of the prescription payments process provided by 

NHS Business Service Authority and Capita for 2018/19 has been provided by the NHS 
BSA’s auditors, PwC LLP, via an ISAE 3402 Type II report issued on 30 April 2019.  The 
report provided reasonable assurance that the specified control objectives would be 
achieved if the described controls operated effectively throughout the period from 1 April 
2018 to 31 March 2019 and customers applied the complementary controls referred to in the 
scope paragraph of the assurance report, and the controls tested […] provide reasonable 
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Opinion Area 
 

Commentary 

assurance that the control objectives stated in the description were achieved, operated 
effectively throughout the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019. 

 
- Assurance in respect of the operation of the NHS GP Payment Service provided by NHS 

Digital for 2018/19 was provided by the NHS Digital’s auditors, PwC LLP, via an ISAE 3402 
Type II report issued on 4 April 2019.  The report provided reasonable assurance that the 
specified control objectives would be achieved if the described controls operated effectively 
throughout the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019; and the controls tested, which 
were those necessary to provide reasonable assurance that the control objectives stated in 
the description were achieved, operated effectively throughout the period from 1 April 2018 
to 31 March 2019. 

 
- Your Local Counter Fraud Specialist is required to submit an annual Self-Review Tool (SRT) 

to NHS Counter Fraud Authority in relation to the CCG’s anti-fraud, bribery and corruption 
arrangements, which provides an overview of the CCG’s counter fraud activity, progress 
against NHSCFA requirements and assists the CFO and audit committee in monitoring and 
managing the counter fraud service. The completed SRT for 2018/19 was reviewed by the 
audit committee chair and authorised by the Chief Finance Officer prior to submission on 29 
April 2019. The CCG’s overall rating for 2018/19 was assessed as green. The CCG has not 
been subject to an NHSCFA quality inspection in 2018/19.   

 
- The Electronic Staff Record (ESR) service is provided by IBM. An ISAE 3000 Type II report 

covering the operation of the national system is issued on an annual basis.  An ISAE 3000 
Type II report covering the operation of the system is issued on an annual basis, and the 
report for 2018/19 has now been issued. The report provided reasonable assurance that the 
specified control objectives would be achieved if the described controls operated effectively 
throughout the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 and customers applied the 
complementary controls referred to in the scope paragraph of the assurance report; and the 
controls tested, which were those necessary to provide reasonable assurance that the 
control objectives stated in the description were achieved, operated effectively throughout 
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Opinion Area 
 

Commentary 

the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019. 
 
It is for the CCG to decide what assurance to take from these reports and whether any of the 
weaknesses identified should be included within the CCG’s Annual Governance Statement. 
Nevertheless, I can advise the Governing Body that the work on the outsourced payroll functions 
will have been undertaken in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 
I would like to take this opportunity to thank the staff at NHS Sunderland CCG for the co-operation and assistance provided to my 
team during the year.  
 
 
Carl Best 
Director of Internal Audit 
AuditOne 
16 May 2019  
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Appendix A  

Summary of work undertaken 

Audit area  Priority Assurance Framework Reference Assurance 

Substantial Good Reasonable Limited 

CORE AREAS 
 

SCCG 2018-19/01: 
Governance Structures and 
Risk Management 
Arrangements 

High CO1: Ensure the CCG meets its public 
accountability duties. 
 
CO3: Maintain and Improve the Quality and 
Safety of CCG Commissioned Services 

 

   

SCCG 2018-19/03: Conflicts 
of Interest  

High CO1: Ensure that the CCG meets its public 
accountability duties. 

 
   

SCCG 2018-19/04: 
Financial and Strategic 
Planning 

High CO2a: Maintain Financial Control. 
 
CO5: Identify and Deliver the CCG's Key 
Strategic Priorities. 

 

   

SCCG 2018-19/05: Cost 
Improvement and QIPP 

High CO2a: Maintain financial control. 
 
CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and 
safety CCG commission services. 

 

   

SCCG 2018-19/06: Primary 
Medical Care 
Commissioning 

High CO8: Primary Care Commissioning. 
  

   

SCCG 2018-19/07: Contract 
and Performance Monitoring 

High CO2a: Maintain Financial Control 
CO2b: Maintain Performance Targets 
CO3a: Maintain and Improve the Quality 
and Safety of CCG Commissioned Services 

 

   

SCCG 2018-19/11: Key 
Financial Controls 

High CO2a: Maintain financial control. 
 

 
   

SCCG 1718/09: Information 
Governance  

Medium CO1: Ensure that the CCG meets its public 
accountability duties. 

No assurance level given. 
 
At the time of our review (February 2019) we found 
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Audit area  Priority Assurance Framework Reference Assurance 

Substantial Good Reasonable Limited 

that 12 out of a sample of 18 requirements could 
be evidenced and substantiated.  Feedback was 
provided to the CCG to enable action on the 
remaining requirement before the final submission 
date. 

RISK BASED AUDITS 
 

SCCG 2018-19/02: Delivery 
of Outsourced Services  

Medium CO1: Ensure the CCG Meets Its Public 
Accountability Duties 
 

 
   

SCCG 2018-19/08: Quality 
of Commissioned Services 
 

High CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and 
safety of CCG commissioned services.  

   

SCCG 2018-19/09: 
Continuing Healthcare  
 
[Draft Report] 

High CO2a: Maintain financial control 
 

 

   

SCCG 2018-19/10: Mental 
Health Arrangements – 
S117 
 
[Draft Report] 

Medium CO1: Ensure the CCG meets its Public 
Accountability duties. 
 

 

 

  

  Totals 
 

10 1 0 0 
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Appendix B 

Definitions of Assurance Levels assigned to individual audit assignments 

 
 

  

Assurance Levels 
 

Substantial Governance, risk management and control arrangements provide substantial assurance that the risks 
identified are managed effectively. Compliance with the control framework was found to be taking place.  

Good Governance, risk management and control arrangements provide a good level of assurance that the risks 
identified are managed effectively.  A high level of compliance with the control framework was found to be 
taking place. Minor remedial action is required 

Reasonable Governance, risk management and control arrangements provide reasonable assurance that the risks 
identified are managed effectively. Compliance with the control framework was not found to be taking place in 
a consistent manner.  Some moderate remedial action is required. 

Limited Governance, risk management and control arrangements provide limited assurance that the risks identified 
are managed effectively. Compliance with the control framework was not found to be taking place.  
Immediate and fundamental remedial action is required. 

 



NHS Official  Item: 8.8  

 
 
 
 

 

CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

For information only  

 
Governing Body 

21 MAY 2019 
 

Report Title: 
 

Audit Completion Report 2018/19 
 

Purpose of report 
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Key points 

At the time of issuing this report and subject to the satisfactory conclusion of the remaining audit 
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There are: 

 no material amendments to the financial statements (either adjusted or unadjusted); 
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update letter.   

Risks and issues 

As per report.  

Assurances  
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 Note the external auditor’s report.  
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communication.  
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Cameron Waddell, Partner 
Diane Harold, Senior Manager 

Governance and Assurance 



 
 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1: Ensure the CCG meets its public accountability duties  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance targets  

CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  

CO4: Ensure the CCG involves patients and the public in commissioning and reforming  
services  

 

CO5: Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO6: Develop the CCG localities  

CO7: Integrating health and social care services, including the Better Care Fund  

CO8:  Develop and deliver primary medical care commissioning  

Relevant legal/statutory issues 

n/a 

Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

n/a  

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

No 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

Not applicable 

Has there been/or does there 
need to be any patient and 
public involvement? 

Not applicable 

Is there an expected impact on 
patient outcomes/experience?  
If yes, has a quality impact 
assessment been undertaken? 

Not applicable 

Has there been member 
practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

Not applicable 



Audit Completion Report
NHS Sunderland Commissioning Group
Year ending 31 March 2019



1

CONTENTS

1. Executive summary

2. Significant findings

3. Internal control recommendations

4. Summary of misstatements

5. Value for Money conclusion

Appendix A – draft management representation letter

Appendix B – draft audit report

Appendix C – independence

Reports and letters prepared by the auditor and addressed to the CCG are prepared for the sole use of the CCG and we take no responsibility to 

any member or officer in their individual capacity or to any third party.



Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership 

registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London 

E1W 1DD.

We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK and Ireland by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit 

registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861.

VAT number: 839 8356 73

Mazars LLP – Salvus House – Aykley Heads – Durham – DH1 5TS

Tel: +44 (0) 191 383 6300 – Fax: +44 (0) 191 383 6350 – www.mazars.co.uk

2

Mazars LLP

Salvus House

Durham

DH1 5TS

Audit and Risk Committee and Governing Body Members

NHS Sunderland CCG

Pemberton House

Colima Avenue

Sunderland

SR5 3XB

15 May 2019

Dear Members

Audit Completion Report – year ended 31 March 2019

We are pleased to present our Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019. The purpose of this document is

to summarise our audit conclusions.

The scope of our work, including identified significant audit risks and other areas of management judgement, was outlined in

our Audit Strategy Memorandum which we presented in January 2019. We have reviewed our Audit Strategy Memorandum

and concluded that the original significant audit risks and other areas of management judgement remain appropriate.

We would like to express our thanks for the assistance of your team during our audit.

If you would like to discuss any matters in more detail then please do not hesitate to contact me on 0781 375 2053.

Yours faithfully

Yours faithfully

Cameron Waddell

Partner

Mazars LLP



Purpose of this report and principal conclusions
This Audit Completion Report sets out the findings from our audit of NHS Sunderland Clinical Commissioning Group (‘the CCG’) for the 
year ended 31 March 2019, and forms the basis for discussion at the Audit and Risk Committee and Governing Body meetings on 21 

May 2019. As outlined in our Audit Strategy Memorandum, our audit has been conducted in accordance with International Standards of 

Auditing (UK) and means we focus on audit risks that we have assessed as resulting in a higher risk of material misstatement.

Sections 2 and 5 of this report outline the detailed findings from our audit of the financial statements and our work on the CCG’s 
arrangements to achieve economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  Section 2 also includes our conclusions on the 

audit risks and areas of management judgement in our Audit Strategy Memorandum, which include:

• management override of control; and

• the prescribing accounting estimate.

Status of our work
As we outline on the following page, our work is substantially complete.  Subject to the satisfactory completion of the outstanding work, 

at the time of issuing this report, we have the following conclusions:

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

3

We anticipate reporting to the National Audit Office (NAO) that your consolidation data is consistent with 

the audited financial statements. 

We anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion, without modification, on the financial statements.  Our 

proposed audit opinion is included in the draft auditor’s report in Appendix B.

We anticipate having no matters to report in respect of the CCG’s arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We anticipate issuing an unqualified regularity opinion, meaning that in our opinion, in all material 

respects the expenditure and income recognised in the financial statements have been applied for the 

purposes intended by Parliament.  Our proposed regularity opinion is included in the draft auditor’s report 
in Appendix B.

Opinion on 

the financial 

statements

Opinion on 

regularity

Value for 

Money 

conclusion

Wider 

reporting

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
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We have substantially completed our work on the financial statements and Value for Money conclusion for the year ended 31 March

2019. At the time of preparing this report the following matters remain outstanding:

We will provide Members with an update in relation to these outstanding matters in a follow-up letter, prior to signing the auditor’s report.

Misstatements and internal control recommendations
Section 3 sets out the internal control recommendations that we make, together with an update on any prior year recommendations.

Section 4 outlines the misstatements noted as part of our audit as at the time of issuing this report.  If any additional misstatements are 

noted on completion of the outstanding work, these will be reported to Members in a follow-up letter.   

Our audit approach
We provided details of our intended audit approach in our Audit Strategy Memorandum in January 2019. We have not made any 

changes to our audit approach since we presented our Audit Strategy Memorandum to the Audit and Risk Committee at that point. 

Materiality
We set materiality at the planning stage of the audit at £7.535 million, using a benchmark of 1.5% of total operating expenditure. Our 

final assessment of materiality, based on the final financial statements and qualitative factors is £7.638 million, using the same 

benchmark.

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
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Audit area Status Description of outstanding matters

Cut-off testing of receipts and 

payments

Update of testing in mid-May to be carried out. 

Consideration of service auditor 

reports (SARs)

To be completed when all SARs are received. 

Agreement of balances Testing of mismatches from the inter-NHS agreement of balances exercise.

Consolidation schedules Testing of the consolidation schedules (Whole of Government Accounts).

Review and closure processes Including internal consistency checks, agreeing amendments and post 

balance sheet events. 
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Status

 Likely to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the financial statements

 Potential to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the financial statements

 Not considered likely to result in material adjustment or change to disclosures within the financial statements



2. SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS

Set out below are the significant findings from our audit. These findings include:

• our audit conclusions regarding significant risks and key areas of management judgement outlined in the Audit Strategy
Memorandum;

• our comments in respect of the accounting policies and disclosures that you have adopted in the financial statements. On
page 6 we have concluded whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the financial reporting
framework and commented on any significant accounting policy changes that have been made during the year; and

• any significant difficulties we experienced during the audit.

Significant risks and key areas of management judgement
As part of our planning procedures we considered the risks of material misstatement in the CCG’s financial statements that required 
special audit consideration. Although we report identified significant risks at the planning stage of the audit in our Audit Strategy 
Memorandum, our risk assessment is a continuous process and we regularly consider whether new significant risks have arisen and 
how we intend to respond to these risks. No new risks have been identified since we issued our Audit Strategy Memorandum.

5

Management override 

of controls

Description of the risk

In all entities, management at various levels within an organisation is in a unique position to

perpetrate fraud because of their ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent

financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Due to

the unpredictable way in which such override could occur, we consider there to be a risk of material

misstatement due to fraud and thus a significant risk on all audits.

How we addressed this risk

We addressed this risk through performing audit work over:

• reviewing the key areas within the financial statements where management has used judgement

and estimation techniques and consider whether there is evidence of unfair bias;

• examining any accounting policies that vary from the Group Accounting Manual;

• testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other

adjustments made in preparing the financial statements; and

• undertaking cut-off testing around the year-end of receipts and payments.

Audit conclusion

Our work has provided us with the assurance we sought and has not highlighted any material issues 

to bring to your attention. We have highlighted one low priority internal control recommendation in 

relation to journals, as set out in section 3. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

Enhanced risk -

prescribing

Description of the management judgement

The CCG’s accounts contain estimates. A material estimate is made in respect of prescribing expenditure, 
which is based on NHS Business Services Authority (BSA) profiling and two months in arrears.

We consider this area of key management judgement to be an enhanced risk.

How our audit addressed this area of management judgement

We addressed this risk by:

• testing the prescribing accrual included in the accounts, including comparing the reasonableness of the 

estimate to the outturn for the prior year;

• reviewing the basis upon which the estimate has been made;

• agreement to the BSA notification; and

• reviewing and considering the assurance we receive from BSA (Type II Service Auditor Report).

Audit conclusion

Our work has provided us with the assurance sought and has not highlighted any material issues to bring to 

your attention. Prescribing for 2018/19 totalled £47.777 million. We note the actual for February was £0.294 

million lower than the estimate however we are satisfied the basis for the estimate is not unreasonable.  
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Qualitative aspects of the CCG’s accounting practices
We have reviewed the CCG’s accounting policies and disclosures and concluded they comply with the requirements of the Department

of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2018/19, appropriately tailored to the CCG’s circumstances and updated for new

accounting standards applying to 2018/19. 

Draft accounts were received from the CCG ahead of the deadline of 24 April 2019 and were again of a good quality and supported by 

comprehensive supporting working papers. 

Significant matters discussed with management

There have been no specific significant matters discussed with management, over and above our normal challenge of management 

assertions in respect of the financial statements. 

Significant difficulties during the audit
During the course of the audit we did not encounter any significant difficulties and we have had the full co-operation of management. 



The purpose of our audit is to express an opinion on the financial statements. As part of our audit we have considered the internal

controls in place relevant to the preparation of the financial statements. We do this in order to design audit procedures to allow us to

express an opinion on the financial statement and not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control,

nor to identify any significant deficiencies in their design or operation.

The matters reported are limited to those deficiencies and other control recommendations that we have identified during our normal audit

procedures and that we consider to be of sufficient importance to merit being reported. If we had performed more extensive procedures

on internal control we might have identified more deficiencies to be reported or concluded that some of the reported deficiencies need

not in fact have been reported. Our comments should not be regarded as a comprehensive record of all deficiencies that may exist or

improvements that could be made.

Our findings and recommendations are set out below. We have assigned priority rankings to each of them to reflect the importance that

we consider each poses to your organisation and, hence, our recommendation in terms of the urgency of required action. In summary,

the matters arising fall into the following categories:

Priority 

ranking 

Description Number of issues

1 (high) In our view, there is potential for financial loss, damage to reputation or loss of information. This 

may have implications for the achievement of business strategic objectives. The recommendation 

should be taken into consideration by management immediately.

0

2 (medium) In our view, there is a need to strengthen internal controls or enhance business efficiency. The 

recommendations should be actioned in the near future. 

0

3 (low) In our view, internal controls should be strengthened in these additional areas when practicable. 0
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Description of deficiency 2018/19

Testing of journals identified journals which had been prepared and authorised by the same officers within NHS Shared Business 

Services (SBS) on behalf of the CCG. These were all of a clearly trivial value and we obtained assurance there were no other 

journals prepared and authorised by the same officer. 

Potential effects

Journal controls are key controls for the prevention of misstatement due to fraud or error. The lack of segregation of duties could 

result in fraud or error.

Recommendation

The CCG should again escalate this control failure to SBS to ensure that journals are not prepared and authorised by the same 

officer. 

2018/19 update

Testing showed this remains an issue in 2018/19, however the CCG already had its own compensating controls in place. 

We have not raised any internal control recommendations in respect of 2018/19. We set out below an update on the internal control point

raised in the prior year.



We set out below the misstatements identified for adjustment during the course of the audit, above the level of trivial threshold of £0.229

million.

The first table outlines the misstatements that have been adjusted by management during the course of the audit.

There are no misstatements that were identified during the course of our audit which management has assessed as not being material

either individually or in aggregate to the financial statements and does not currently plan to adjust.

Adjusted misstatements 2018/19

Disclosure amendments

Amendments have been made to the financial statements following our audit, including the areas summarised below.

• Various minor presentational points.

• Note 3.5 pension costs: update of the narrative in this note, including to reflect the latest actuarial valuation.

• Note 4 operating costs: addition of narrative to clarify the value of leases included in the premises line as required.  

Also amendment to include accrued expenditure for the Mental Health Investment Standard mandated work ‘other non statutory 
audit expenditure’. 
Also amendment to external audit fees disclosed. 

• Note 10 financial instruments: amendment to include comparators along with narrative to explain the basis of disclosure given

the underlying accounting standard changes.

• Note 13 related party transactions: minor amendments to the narrative and also to several disclosures.

• Remuneration and Staff report - amendments made as summarised below.

o Deduction of employee contributions, impacting on the disclosures in the pensions table (‘real increase in Cash Equivalent 
Transfer Values’ (CETVs) and also the salaries table (‘all pension related benefits’). 

o Inclusion of narrative to clarify that the benefits and associated CETVs calculations in the tables do not include any potential 

impact of the McCloud judgement (referenced in the revised pension costs note).

o Comparator salaries table (‘all pension related benefits’) amended so that it was consistent with the prior year audited report.

o Pay multiples: amendment to calculations to include benefits in kind (current and prior year figures). 
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4. SUMMARY OF MISSTATEMENTS

SOCNE SOFP

Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000) Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000)

1 Dr: Financial liabilities 'trade and other payables with 

other DHSC group bodies'

Cr: Financial liabilities 'trade and other payables with 

external bodies'

3,315

3,315

Being a mapping error in the codes in the template issued by NHSE. No impact on the totals; amendment between lines of 

the financial instruments disclosure note only. 
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Our approach to Value for Money
We are required to consider whether the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources.  The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the work we are required to carry out in order to form our
conclusion, and sets out the criterion and sub-criteria that we are required to consider. 

The overall criterion is that, ‘in all significant respects, the CCG had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 
and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.’  To assist auditors in reaching a 
conclusion on this overall criterion, the following sub-criteria are set out by the NAO:

• informed decision making;

• sustainable resource deployment; and

• working with partners and other third parties.

We are only required to report to you if we conclude that the CCG has not made proper arrangements.  Our draft audit report included in 
Appendix C states that we have no matters to report in respect of our Value for Money (VFM) work. We have provided commentary 
against each of the sub-criteria.

Significant Value for Money risks
The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work to identify whether or not a risk to the VFM conclusion exists.  Risk, in the context of 
our VFM work, is the risk that we come to an incorrect conclusion rather than the risk of the arrangements in place at the CCG being 
inadequate.  

In our Audit Strategy Memorandum, we reported that we had not identified any significant Value for Money risks; we have kept this under 
review, as part of our continuous risk assessment and there is no change to our assessment.  

9

5. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION

Sub-criteria Commentary Matters to report

Informed 

decision 

making

Financial and performance information

NHSE assessed the CCG as ‘outstanding’ again for 2017/18, with its letter stating the 

breadth of work undertaken was impressive and highlighting examples of key successes, 

including: 

• strong financial governance and performance resulting in the delivery of finance 

business rules for the fifth year running and full delivery of QIPP in 17/18; and

• a proactive approach to quality and continued delivery of the majority of constitutional 

standards.

The 2018/19 NHSE annual assessment will not be available until summer 2019, however 

for 2018/19, the CCG has met its control total, delivering an in-year surplus of £0.109 

million and a resulting carried forward surplus of £20.869 million.

We note the on-going pressures, as despite the CCG receiving additional allocation growth 

going forward, this is still below national average growth levels, which the CCG is pro-

actively managing. 

Management of risks and a sound system of internal control

The CCG has a comprehensive internal audit programme in place and received an overall 

‘substantial’ rating again for 2018/19.  Significant risks facing the CCG are summarised in 
its Governance Statement contained within its Annual Report. 

The CCG published, as required, its Data Security and Protection Toolkit during the year, 

which was also subject to review by Internal Audit. 

None
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5. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION (CONTINUED)

Sub-criteria Commentary Matters to report

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

Effective planning of finances

The CCG achieved its challenging Quality, Innovation, Productivity, Prevention (QIPP) 

programme target of £11.35 million in 2018/19. It is actively managing its 2019/20 QIPP 

programme, with a significant proportion of savings already built into its acute contracts. 

Planning, organising and developing the workforce effectively to deliver strategic priorities

We note NHSE’s feedback that the CCG has a visible organisational development strategy 
in place which is having a visible feedback. 

The Sunderland Health and Wellbeing Board has held a session with other strategic 

boards in the City in the year to consider workforce issues. 

None

Working 

with 

partners and 

other third 

parties

Working with third parties effectively to deliver strategic priorities

The CCG’s joint working is central to its achievement of its strategic objectives.  Key areas 

of development in 2018/19 have been: 

• implementation of a health-based multi-speciality alliance model in respect of out of 

hospital care (‘All Together Better – Sunderland’); 
• an in-depth review of urgent care services; and

• phase II of the ‘path to excellence’ programme (transforming hospital services in South 
Tyneside and Sunderland). 

Integrated Care Partnerships and Integrated Care System

North East and North Cumbria NHS organisations are currently working towards becoming 

a single Integrated Care System (ICS), supported by four Integrated Care Partnerships 

(ICPs). 

The North East and North Cumbria (NENC) ICS aims to bring together local organisations 

to redesign care and improve population health, creating shared leadership and action, 

integrating primary and specialist care, physical and mental health services, and health 

with social care. 

NHS Sunderland CCG is one of the NHS partners in the NENC ICS who have agreed to 

work together at scale where it makes most sense to do so, and to protect and emphasise 

the importance of ‘place’ - local accountability to local populations and the ability to 

respond to local needs. 

The CCG will be working across three levels of scale:

• Place – populations of circa 150,000 to 500,000 people will be the main focus for 

partnership working between the NHS and local authorities. In these areas, primary 

care networks (providing services to populations of circa 30,000-50,000 people) will 

support collaboration between GP practices, social care, other community based care 

providers and voluntary sector organisations. 

• Integrated care partnerships – populations of around one million (with the exception of 

North Cumbria, which has unique geographical and demographic features), focused on 

collaboration across NHS hospital trusts, to ensure safe and sustainable services.

• Integrated care system – a population of circa 3.1 million people, focused on ‘at scale’ 
activity that achieves efficiencies and improves health outcomes. 

None
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5. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION (CONTINUED)

Evidence Auditor assessment

Outputs by 

statutory 

inspectorates or 

other regulators

The CCG was rated as ‘outstanding’ again by NHSE in its 2017/18 annual assessment. 
Whilst the outturn assessment for 2018/19 is not yet available, the control total has been met for 

2018/19, with an in-year surplus being delivered along with continued good performance on the 

majority of key performance indicators. 

Achievement of 

performance and 

other targets

In its Annual Report, the CCG reported that it had met the majority of the performance targets, with the 

following being key pressure areas:

• accident and emergency waiting times; 

• cancer waiting times

• referral to treatment (RTT) including waiting list volumes; and

• mental health standards and expectations. 

In respect of clinical priority areas, maternity, diabetes and cancer are areas which have been rated as 

requiring improvement. Delivery of improvements in these areas remains a focus for the CCG going 

into 2019/20. 

Performance 

against budgets 

and other 

financial targets

The CCG achieved its challenging QIPP programme target of £11.35 million in 2018/19.  It also met its 

statutory duty to ensure that expenditure in the financial year did not exceed income, with an in-year 

surplus of £0.109 million and a carried forward surplus of £20.869 million.
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Overall assessment (reality check)

Having gathered evidence in each area we carried out a final ‘reality check’, which included consideration of our cumulative knowledge 
of the CCG and, in particular:

• reports by statutory inspectorates, other regulators and external advisors;

• achievement of performance and other targets; and

• performance against budgets and other financial targets.

We do this to identify anything that would make us reconsider our conclusion.  We did not identify any such matters. 



NHS Sunderland CCG

Pemberton House

Colima Avenue

Sunderland

SR5 3XB

[Date]

Dear Cameron

NHS Sunderland Clinical Commissioning Group - audit for year ended 31 March 2019

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of NHS Sunderland CCG for the year ended 31 March 

2019 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the Group Accounting 

Manual.

I confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, 

where appropriate, inspection of supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that I can properly make each of the following representations 

to you.

My responsibility for the financial statements and accounting information

I believe that I have fulfilled my responsibilities for the true and fair presentation and preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Group 

Accounting Manual and relevant legislation and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adapted and adopted by HM Treasury.

My responsibility to provide and disclose relevant information

I have provided you with: 

• access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and 

other material;

• additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

• unrestricted access to individuals within the CCG you determined it was necessary to contact in order to obtain audit evidence.

I confirm as Accountable Officer that I have taken all the necessary steps to make me aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that you, 

as auditors, are aware of this information.

As far as I am aware there is no relevant audit information of which you, as auditors, are unaware.

Accounting records

I confirm that all transactions that have a material effect on the financial statements have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in 

the financial statements. All other records and related information, including minutes of all Governing Body and relevant committee meetings, have been 

made available to you. 

Accounting policies

I confirm that I have reviewed the accounting policies applied during the year in accordance with Group Accounting Manual and International Accounting 

Standard 8 and consider these policies to faithfully represent the effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the CCG's financial position, 

financial performance and cash flows.

Accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value

I confirm that any significant assumptions used by the CCG in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

Contingencies

There are no material contingent losses including pending or potential litigation that should be accrued where:

• information presently available indicates that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability had been incurred at the balance sheet date; 

and

• the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
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Contingencies (continued)

There are no material contingent losses that should be disclosed where, although either or both the conditions specified above are not met, there is a 

reasonable possibility that a loss, or a loss greater than that accrued, may have been incurred at the balance sheet date.

There are no contingent gains which should be disclosed.

All material matters, including unasserted claims, that may result in litigation against the CCG have been brought to your attention. All known actual or 

possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to you and accounted for 

and disclosed in accordance with the Group Accounting Manual and relevant legislation and IFRSs as adapted and adopted by HM Treasury.

Laws and regulations

I confirm that I have disclosed to you all those events of which I am aware which involve known or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, 

together with the actual or contingent consequences which may arise therefrom. We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that 

would have a material effect on the accounts in the event of non-compliance.

Fraud and error

I acknowledge my responsibility as Accountable Officer for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud 

and error. I have disclosed to you:

• all the results of my assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud;

• all knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the CCG involving:

- management and those charged with governance;

- employees who have significant roles in internal control; and

- others where fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

I have disclosed to you all information in relation to any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the CCG's financial statements communicated 

by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

Related party transactions

I confirm that all related party relationships, transactions and balances have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 

requirements of the Group Accounting Manual and relevant legislation and IFRSs.

I have disclosed to you the identity of the CCG’s related parties and all related party relationships and transactions of which I am aware. 

Future commitments

I am not aware of any plans, intentions or commitments that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets and liabilities or give rise 

to additional liabilities.

Subsequent events

I confirm all events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the Group Accounting Manual, relevant legislation and IFRSs 

require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. Should further material events occur after the date of this letter which may necessitate 

revision of the figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, I will advise you accordingly.

Going concern

To the best of my knowledge there is nothing to indicate that the CCG will not continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future. The period to which 

I have paid particular attention in assessing the appropriateness of the going concern basis is not less than twelve months from the date of approval of 

the accounts.

Yours faithfully

Accountable Officer

13

APPENDIX A
DRAFT MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION LETTER 
(CONTINUED)

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices



Independent auditor’s report to the Governing Body of NHS Sunderland Clinical Commissioning 

Group

Opinion on the financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of NHS Sunderland Clinical Commissioning Group (‘the CCG’) for the year ended 31 March 2019, which 
comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity, the 
Statement of Cash Flows, and notes to the financial statements, including the summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting 

framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as interpreted and 

adapted by the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2018/19 as contained in the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 

2018/19, and the Accounts Direction issued by the NHS Commissioning Board with the approval of the Secretary of State as relevant to Clinical 

Commissioning Groups in England (“the Accounts Direction”).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the state of the CCG’s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its net operating expenditure for the year then ended;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2018/19; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Accounts Direction issued 

thereunder.

Opinion on regularity

In our opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income reflected in the financial statements have been applied to the purposes intended by 

Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those 

standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities section of our report. We are independent of the CCG in accordance with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

• the Accountable Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

• the Accountable Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the 

CCG’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial 

statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other 

than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except 

to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material 

misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 

there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities, the Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of the 

financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Accountable Officer determines is 

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Accountable 

Officer is also responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income. 

The Accountable Officer is required to comply with the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual and prepare the financial 

statements on a going concern basis, unless the CCG is informed of the intention for dissolution without transfer of services or function to another entity. 

The Accountable Officer is responsible for assessing each year whether or not it is appropriate for the CCG to prepare its accounts on the going concern 

basis and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 

that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 

error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 

on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

We are also responsible for giving an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice prepared by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General as required by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion:

• the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report subject to audit have been properly prepared in accordance with the Accounts Direction made under 

the National Health Service Act 2006; and

• the other information published together with the audited financial statements in the Annual Report for the financial year for which the financial 

statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We are required to report to you if:

• in our opinion the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the guidance issued by NHS England; or

• we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 because we have reason to believe that 

the CCG, or an officer of the CCG, is about to make, or has made, a decision which involves or would involve the body incurring unlawful 

expenditure, or is about to take, or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a 

loss or deficiency; or

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24and schedule 7(1) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or

• we make a written recommendation to the CCG under section 24 and schedule 7(2) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
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The CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception

We are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we are not satisfied that the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 

and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.

We have nothing to report in this respect. 

Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer 

As explained in the Statement of Accountable Officer’s responsibilities, the Accountable Officer is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements 

for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of the CCG’s resources.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

We are required under section 21(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the CCG has made proper arrangements 

for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, and to report where we have not been able to satisfy ourselves that it has 

done so.  We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 

and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, as to whether the CCG had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and 

deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this 

criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the CCG put in place proper arrangements 

for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered 

necessary.

Use of the audit report

This report is made solely to the members of the Governing Body of NHS Sunderland CCG, as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members of the Governing Body of the CCG those matters 

we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 

responsibility to anyone other than the Governing Body of the CCG, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of NHS Sunderland CCG in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.

Cameron Waddell

Partner

For and on behalf of Mazars LLP

Salvus House

Aykley Heads

Durham

DH1 5TS

Date
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As part of our ongoing risk assessment we monitor our relationships with you to identify any new actual or perceived threats to our

independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your auditors.

We can confirm that no new threats to independence have been identified since issuing the Audit Strategy Memorandum and therefore

we remain independent.
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MAZARS AT A GLANCE

Mazars LLP

• Fee income €1.6 billion

• Over 86 countries and territories

• Over 300 locations

• Over 20,000 professionals

• International and integrated partnership with global methodologies, strategy and  global brand 

Mazars Internationally

Mazars in the UK
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CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

For information only  

 
GOVERNING BODY  

 
21 May 2019 

Report Title:  

 
Governing Body Assurance Framework: 

End of year position 2018/19 and  
Start position for 2019/20 

Purpose of report 

To present the Governing Body with the end of year position for 2018-19 and start position for 
2019-20 for the Governing Body Assurance Framework (GBAF).    

Key points 

The GBAF has been developed to ensure the CCG meets its statutory requirements in relation to 
governance and provide assurance on the delivery of the CCG’s corporate objectives.   
 
The Governing Body reviewed the corporate objectives at its development session in April 2018 
and no changes were made for 2018/19.  The objectives have been carried forward to 2019/20.    
 
The corporate objectives will be reviewed at a Governing Body development session later in the 
year to ensure they reflect the CCG’s priorities and key delivery areas. 
 
The end of year position of the GBAF for 2018-19 is attached at appendix 1. 
 
The start position of the 2019-20 GBAF is attached at appendix 2, along with the list of changes 
made for ease of reference.  
 
The GBAF will be reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee at its meeting on the morning of 21 
May 2019 and a verbal update will be given at the Governing Body meeting following this.   
 

Risks and issues 

The GBAF also includes references each strategic risk aligned to the relevant corporate objective 
and details of these are attached at appendix 3 for information.  

Assurances  

The CCG has robust arrangements in place to monitor its performance against agreed objectives 
and targets. The GBAF is used to identify any risks to the agreed corporate objectives and to 
highlight any gaps in assurance and/or control in relation to these. 
 
The controls identified within the framework were assessed as the key elements needed to mitigate 
risks to delivery of the objectives as far as possible, act as a deterrent to risks occurring and also 
provide a structured approach by which any identified risks could be managed. The GBAF also 
identifies gaps in control and/or assurances to provide assurance to the governing body that these 
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are being addressed.  

Recommendation/Action Required 

The Governing Body is asked to receive the GBAF end of year position for 2018-19 position and 

the position going forward for 2019-20 for assurance.  

Sponsor/approving director   D Gallagher, Chief Officer  

Reviewer D Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs  

Report author W Marley, Senior Governance Officer, NECS 

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1: Ensure the CCG meets its public accountability duties  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance targets  

CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  

CO4: Ensure the CCG involves patients and the public in commissioning and reforming  
services  

 

CO5: Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO6: Develop the CCG localities  

CO7: Integrating health and social care services, including the Better Care Fund  

CO8:  Develop and deliver primary medical care commissioning  

Relevant legal/statutory issues 

Statutory guidance and best practice in relation to risk management and governance.  

Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

If yes, please specify  

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

 
Any additional resources needed are identified for each 
individual risk in the attached register 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

 
As per each individual risk if required  
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Has there been/or does there 
need to be any patient and 
public involvement? 

 
As per each individual risk if required  

Is there an expected impact on 
patient outcomes/experience?  
If yes, has a quality impact 
assessment been undertaken? 

 
As per each individual risk if required  

Has there been member 
practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

 
As per each individual risk if required  
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Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19 and 2019/20 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 The purpose of this paper is to provide the Governing Body with the end of year 

position for the Governing Body Assurance Framework (GBAF) for 2018/19 and 

the position going forward into 2019/20.  The framework for 2018-19 was approved 

by the Governing Body at its meeting in April 2018 and identifies the controls, 

assurances and strategic risks to the delivery of the CCG corporate objectives. 

 

2. Corporate Objectives  

 

2.1 The Governing Body reviewed the CCG’s corporate objectives at its development 
session held in April 2018 and no changes were identified for 2018/19.   

 

2.2 The CCG’s corporate objectives are as follows: 
 CO1:   Ensure the CCG meets its public accountability duties 

 CO2a: Maintain financial control 

 CO2b: Maintain performance targets 

 CO3:   Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned    

 services 

 CO4:  Ensure the CCG involves patients and the public in commissioning 

 and reforming services 

 CO5:  Identify and deliver the CCG’s key strategic priorities 

 CO6:  Develop the CCG localities 

 CO7:  Integrating health and social care, including the Better Care Fund 

 CO8:  Development and delivery of primary medical care commissioning  

 

3. Governing Body Assurance Framework Process  

 

3.1 The CCG has an internal GBAF in place which it uses to monitor its internal 

controls systems, identify gaps in control and provide assurance against the 

delivery of the its corporate objectives.  The Head of Corporate Affairs has 

delegated authority from the Chief Officer to manage the development and delivery 

of the GBAF.  

 

3.2 The CCG has robust arrangements in place to monitor its performance against 

agreed objectives and targets.  It uses the GBAF is used to identify any risks to the 

agreed corporate objectives, highlight any gaps in assurance and/or control in 
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relation to these and provide assurance to the Governing Body that these are 

being addressed. 

 

3.3 The controls identified within the framework have been assessed as the key 

elements needed to mitigate risks to delivery of the objectives as far as possible, 

act as a deterrent to risks occurring and also provide a structured approach by 

which any identified risks can be managed.  

 

3.4 The Audit and Risk Committee maintains oversight of the CCG’s risk management 

and internal control arrangements and reviews the GBAF to identify any further 

gaps in controls and assurances to provide assurance to the Governing Body that 

the CCG is discharging its functions appropriately. 

 
 

4. System of Risk Management and Internal Control  

 

4.1 The CCG also has a system of internal control mechanisms in place to ensure it 

delivers its policies, aims and strategic objectives.  This system is a set of 

processes and procedures in place designed to identify and prioritise the risks, to 

evaluate the likelihood of those risks materialising and the impact should they 

materialise, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

 

4.2 To support the GBAF, the CCG also has clear risk management processes to 

place for identifying, analysing, evaluating, controlling, monitoring and 

communicating risk.  The Audit and Risk Committee has delegated authority from 

the Governing Body to manage the risk function on its behalf.  

 

4.3 Wherever risks to the achievement of the CCG’s objectives have been identified, 
an assessment is undertaken to ensure the appropriate controls are put in place 

and supporting action plans identified to mitigate these risks as far as possible.  

Together with any associated gaps in assurance and controls, this forms the 

GBAF. 

 

4.4 The scheme of delegation and reservation sets out the responsibilities of the 

membership, Governing Body and its sub-committees, the Chief Officer and other 

directors to ensure the CCG discharges its functions appropriately.   

 

4.5 The CCG’s financial framework also forms part of the internal control framework 

with a number of approved policies and procedures in place to ensure it manages 

its finance in accordance with national policy and guidelines. This includes the 

financial scheme of delegation which sets out the delegated limits for key 
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individuals within the CCG and ensures these individuals have a clear framework 

in place within which they can make financial decisions.   

 
4.6 As set out in the risk management policy, the CCG’s framework to manage risks is 

as follows:   
 

Risk 
Rating 

RAG 
Rating 

Action 
 

Assurance 
Flows 

Level of 
Authority 

15 -25 High Risk Proactive review and oversight by 
Audit and Risk Committee (ARC). 
Proactive management by Risk 
Management Group (as part of 
director and senior team) 

ARC with ongoing 
assurance to 
Governing Body  

Director 
attention 

10-12 Moderate 
Risk 

Proactive review and management 
by RMG, exception reporting and 
oversight to ARC where necessary.   

ARC with ongoing 
assurance to 
Governing Body  

Director 
attention 

1-9 Low Risk Proactive review and management 
by risk management group (as of the 
director and senior team) at 
operational level. Regular monitoring 
of low level risks. 
 

Assurance 
provided to ARC 
through regular 
monitoring of low 
level risks at 
RMG.    

Senior manager 
attention  

 

 

5. GBAF end of year position 2018/19 and position for 2019/20 

 

5.1 In line with the CCG’s governance arrangements, the Audit and Risk Committee 

reviews the GBAF every six months prior to its submission to the Governing Body 

to ensure progress is being made towards delivery of the corporate objectives and 

seeks assurance on any gaps in controls that threaten delivery of these. 

 
5.2 The end of year position for the GBAF 2018-19 is attached at appendix 1. 
 
5.3  The GBAF 2018-19 has been reviewed by the individual directors and relevant 

heads of service and updated for 2019-20 as appropriate.  Details of the changes 
and the GBAF 2019-20 are attached at appendix 2.   

 
5.4 The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed both of the above frameworks and 

recommended their submission to the Governing Body for assurance. 
 
6. Strategic risks aligned to the GBAF 

 
6.1 There are currently 26 strategic risks which are aligned to seven of the nine 

corporate objectives.  Two corporate objectives (CO4 and CO2) currently have no 
strategic or operational risks aligned to them. 
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Table 1 below sets out the total number of strategic risks by residual risk rating 

which are aligned to each corporate objective. 

 
Table 1: Total number of strategic risks aligned to corporate objectives 

Corporate objective Green Amber Red Total

CO1: Ensure the CCG meets its public accountability duties 5 0 0 5

CO2a: Maintain financial control 6 1 0 7

CO2b: Maintain performance targets 3 0 0 3

CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  2 2 0 4

CO4: Ensure the CCG involves patients and the public in commissioning and 

reforming services  
0 0 0 0

CO5: Identify and deliver the CCG’s key strategic priorities 2 1 1 4

CO6:  Develop the CCG localities 0 0 0 0

CO7: Integrating health and social care, including the Better Care Fund 1 0 0 1

CO8: Development and delivery of primary medical care commissioning  2 0 0 2

Total 21 4 1 26  

 
6.2  Each corporate objective has been risk assessed to determine the overall 

consequence and likelihood of failure to achieve.  The overarching controls and 
assurances are also evaluated to ensure these are still appropriate and effective 
and document any gaps in controls or assurances.  Any strategic risks aligned to 
the corporate objectives are also reviewed as part of this process.  

 
6.3 The review of strategic risks takes into account any gaps in controls or assurances 

identified which are considered in assessing the overall risk to the achievement of 
the corporate objective.  In addition, a review of the risks’ residual (current) rating 
and potential consequence of the risk materialising is considered as well as the 
initial risk assessment of each strategic risk as this gives an indication of the 
impact of the risk should controls fail.  This process provides assurance that the 
overall risk assessment is accurate.   

 
 Table 2 below shows the current risk assessment for each corporate objective.   
 

Table 2: Summary of current risk assessment of each corporate objective 

Corporate objective
Overall 

rating

CO1: Ensure the CCG meets its public accountability duties 12 A

CO2a: Maintain financial control 12 A

CO2b: Maintain performance targets 15 R

CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  16 R

CO4: Ensure the CCG involves patients and the public in commissioning and 

reforming services  
8 G

CO5: Identify and deliver the CCG’s key strategic priorities 12 A

CO6:  Develop the CCG localities 8 G

CO7: Integrating health and social care, including the Better Care Fund 12 A

CO8: Development and delivery of primary medical care commissioning  12 A  
 

6.5  Three new strategic risks were identified from 6 September 2018 to 9 May 2019.  
Table 3 below gives a summary of the new risks and which corporate objective 
they could impact on. 
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Table 3: new strategic risks 

Corporate objective Date 

added

Risk 

no.

Description Residual 

score

CO1 Ensure the CCG 

meets its public 

accountability duties

01/04/2019 2126 Mental Capacity Act Assessments

Failure to adhere to legislation and statutory duty as mental capacity act 

assessment is not being completed in appropriate cases by external 

body (City Hospitals Sunderland) prior to referral for Continuing 

Healthcare assessment process.

9

CO2b Maintain 

performance targets

03/05/2019 2130 There is a risk that the CCG fails to deliver the national expectation that 

no more patients are waiting as at the end of March'20 than were 

waiting at the end of March'19.

The national expectation is that the CCG's waiting list in secondary care 

should be lower than the March'2018 baseline position.  The 

implications of not meeting this expectation are reputational and could 

affect the CCG's annual rating and lead to additional scrutiny from the 

regulators due to increased waiting lists.

9

CO3 Maintain and 

improve the quality 

and safety of CCG 

commissioned 

services

05/10/2018 2049 Delivery of integrated urgent care/ New 111 service

As a result of the implementation of the integrated urgent care service 

(new 111 service), there is a risk that the positive anticipated impact on 

urgent care  presentations might not be realised, resulting in a 

detrimental impact on the predicted flows used for the urgent care 

strategy

9

CO3 Maintain and 

improve the quality 

and safety of CCG 

commissioned 

services

07/11/2018 2070 Quality and safety within Primary Care (General Practice)

As a result of no agreed system and resource being in place to manage 

shared care between Trusts and General Practice there is a risk that 

patient care could be compromised and potentially result in patient harm

12

 

 

6.6  Two strategic risks were closed from 6 September 2018 to 09 May 2019.  Table 4 
below gives a summary of the closed risks and the reasons for their closure: 

Table 4: closed strategic risks 

Corporate 

objective

Risk 

no.
Details

Residual 

score
Reason for closure

Date 

closed

CO1 Ensur ethe 

CCG meets its 

public 

accountability 

duties

1942 Risk of adverse outcome of judicial review relating to 

avastin pathway policy. 

There is a risk that the CCG receives an adverse 

outcome on a judicial review which has been put 

forward by the pharmaceutical industry (Bayer and 

Novartis) following the CCGs decision to implement 

avastin pathways.

9

Risk No Longer Applies 

North East CCGs successfully 

defended against judicial 

review from Bayer and 

Novartis.  European courts 

have upheld judgement.  No 

longer identifying significant 

risks from judicial review.

22/11/2018

CO8 Development 

& delivery of 

primary medical 

care 

commissioning

1438 Quality within primary care

As a result of the complexities of the primary care 

environment  there is a risk that the CCG may not be 

sighted on quality issues which could negatively impact 

on the quality and safety for patients.

6

Target Achieved 

Both actions now complete

16/11/2018

 

 

6.7 A copy of the risk register as at the 9 May 2019 is attached at appendix 3 for 
information.
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7. Recommendations 

 

The Governing Body is asked to receive the GBAF end of year position for 2018-
19 position and the position going forward for 2019-20 for assurance.  

 
 
Report author: W Marley 
   Senior Governance Officer 
   NECS 
 
Reviewed by: D Cornell 
   Head of Corporate Affairs 
 
 
Date:   9 May 2019 



Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO1. Ensure The CCG Meets Its Public Accountability Duties

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

2021
1920
1367
1719
2126

Risk management/register process
established to review risks regularly.

Commissioning plan and locality plans
in place. 

Audit Committee meets to ensure robust
systems and processses in place to
meet statutory duties.

Lay member for audit.

Independent audit committee member.

Annual review of CCG constitution and
governance structure (terms of
reference for all committees).

Audit cycle and plans agreed.

Lay member representation on the
governing body.

Risk management group established
(sub-group of the audit and risk
committee).

Primary care co-commissioning
committee set up.

Service line agreements in place with
North of England Commissioning
Support Service (NECS) for IT and HR
support.

In house team for organisational
development. 

Register of Interests process.

Service line agreement with North of
England Commissioning Support
(NECS) to provide support around
governance and risk management.

Reports to audit and risk committee
and governing body on risk.

Reports to executive committee and
development sessions held. 

CCG Constitution updated in line
with current statutory guidance for
conflicts of interest.

Risk register process well
established (SIRMS electronic
system in place).

Risk management policy and
framework updated to include risk
materialisation.

2 year operational and 5 year
strategic plans in place. 

Business continuity plan and
recovery plan in place.

Desktop exercise undertaken with
director and senior team.

Revised Conflicts of Interest policy.

Register of Interests

Auditor panel procurement process
completed.

Internal audit reports.

EPRR annual assessment
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To ensure the CCG has robust
systems in place to fulfill CCG
assurance with NHS England
and meets its public
accountability duties by:

- Ensuring the CCG meets all
of its statutory duties

- Ensuring the CCG is aware
of all risks and has robust
plans in place to minimise and
mitigate against these.

- Ensure patients' rights are
delivered in commissioned
services as specified in the
NHS Constitution.

There is a risk that the CCG will
not meet its duties and
responsibilities in relation to
information governance. 

There is risk that the CCG will
not be able to meet the
requirements of the new General
Data Protection Regulation. 

Risk that the CCG is not meeting
its statutory responsibilities
around legislative framework for
deprivation of liberty.

Sustainability in terms of IT,
workforce and infrastructure 

Mental Capacity Act
Assessments

Page 1© 2017 NHS Commissioning Board. Developed by North of England Commissioning  Support Unit (NECS)  



Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO1. Ensure The CCG Meets Its Public Accountability Duties

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

undertaken.

Regular service line meetings
between NECS and service line
leads.

Service audit reports from payroll,
NHS SBS (Oracle), NECS and
Exeter.

NHSE assurance rating of CCG as
"Outstanding" for 2017/18
performance.

Page 2© 2017 NHS Commissioning Board. Developed by North of England Commissioning  Support Unit (NECS)  



Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO2a. Maintain Financial Control

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Financial Management, Planning, Performance

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

1642
1906
649
1709
1832
2020
1641

Updated operational and medium term
financial plan with contingencies
identified.

Regular internal reviews of financial
performance and risk.

Budget reporting, variance analysis and
forecast out turns provided to and
reviewed with Senior Managers.

Process in place to review accuracy of
NHSPS billing.

Regular review of
investments/disinvestments.

Executive committee management of
finance.

Executive committee development
sessions
 
System Delivery Group (SDG) reviews
of productivity savings achievement.

Audit Committee meets to ensure robust
systems and processes in place to meet
statutory duties.

Lay member for audit in post.

Monthly quality and contractual
meetings.

In-house finance team.

Monthly senior staff meetings.

Vacancy control process.

Oracle authorisation controls.

Finance reports to executive
committee, BCF Integration Board,
Primary Care Committee and
governing body.

Investment in finance training for
staff and CCG members.

Financial plans agreed by governing
body.
 
Internal Audit review of financial
controls wiht outcome of significant
assurance.

Service audit reports from payroll,
NHS SBS (Oracle), NECS and
Exeter.

Regular budget and forecast out-turn
meetings with budget holders.

Prescribing reports to quality and
safety committee and regular
prescribing savings task and fnish
group reports to the executive
committee.

Regular SDG reporting to the
executive committee.

Financial Scheme of Delegation in
place and reviewed on regular basis..

Block contracts in place for main
acute providers.

Sunderland and South Tyneside
Efficiency Steering Group set up to
jointly support co-ordinate efficiency
savings.

Unable to predict forecast
outturn for prescribing in
the early quarters of the
year.  

Potential requirement for
contingency funds cannot
be accurately predicted.

Unable to predict all
potential influence on PBR
costs (National Institute for
Clinical Excellence and
demand).

Unable to predict all future
demand fluctuations for
acute services.

Post holder requirement to
be responsible to monitor
and provide assurance that
QIPP plans are on track.

D
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Ensure the CCG optimises the
use of its financial and other
resources to deliver the
annual plan whilst maintaining
financial balance and
achieving national
requirements from NHS
England by:

- Ensuring the CCG lives
within its allocation/control
totals

- Ensuring the CCG operates
within its running cost
allowance

Transforming Care Financial
Impact

Delivery of productivity plans for
2018/19 and 2019/20.

Risk of in year financial
overspend on CCG programme
and running cost budgets as a
result of unknown pressures
arising in year.

Changes in NHS Property
Services billing policies agreed
with the Department of Health
that the CCG will incur additional
recurrent pressures as well as
causing distress to member
practices 

Risk of in-year underspends.

Risk of providers increasing
activity and costs to meet
Sustainability and
Transformation Funding (STF)
targets.

Risk of in-year pressures due to
CHC Care Home fee rate
negotiations.

Page 3© 2017 NHS Commissioning Board. Developed by North of England Commissioning  Support Unit (NECS)  



Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO2a. Maintain Financial Control

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Financial Management, Planning, Performance

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

Scheme of reservation and delegation.

Health and social care integration board,
and relevant S75 and S256 agreements.

Process in place to review any forecast
underspends and to develop and
approve contingency plans.

Monitoring of contract performance by
Contracting Team and Provider Board.

Sunderland and South Tyneside
Ways of Working Agreement in place
including risk share agreement.

Page 4© 2017 NHS Commissioning Board. Developed by North of England Commissioning  Support Unit (NECS)  



Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO2b Maintain Performance Targets

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Financial Management, Planning, Performance

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

1359
643

Executive committee management of
provider performance.

Executive committee development
sessions.

Regular monitoring with medical director
and clinical leads.

Transformation Board agreed work
programmes with GP executives and
clinical leads.

Monthly quality and contractual review
meetings.

In-house performance team.

Monthly director and senior staff
meetings.

Infection, prevention and control
meetings with providers.

Transformation board agreed to take on
systems-wide resilience role including
oversight of planned care issues
(including referral to treatment and 18
weeks).

Meeting between CHS, NEAS and CCG
looking to address ambulance handover
delays. 

Local Health Economy (LHE) system
wide plan looking at transformation
across South Tyneside and Sunderland
with areas linked to key national
priorities and delivery of nationally
prescribed performance indicators.

Quarterly Operations and Delivery

Performance reports to executive
committee and governing body.

Reports to quality and safety
committee.

One to one regular meetings
between chief officer and directors
and their counterparts in provider
organisations, e.g. chief officer and
chief executive of City Hospitals
Sunderland.

Outstanding ratings in 2016/17 and
2017/18 and as a result quarterly
assurance meetings with NHS E
which are deemed low risk. 

Internal audit reviews at provider
level to underpin and direct
performance improvement
particularly for cancer and RTT.

Reports from providers in relation to
performance received monthly with
detailed reporting for all areas of
performance.

CCG Cancer Task and Finish Group
in place meeting monthly with
representation across the system.

Timely quality reports from
key providers.

Reactive approach to
pressures in performance.
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Ensure the CCG optimises the
use of its financial and other
resources to deliver the
annual plan whilst maintaining
financial balance and
achieving national
requirements from NHS
England by:

- Ensuring delivery of locally,
regionally and nationally
agreed and prescribed
performance indicators.

There is a risk to the delivery of
the national 62 day cancer
treatment targets due to capacity
constraints and increased
demand which would mean
patients are not receiving timely
treatment for cancer and
receiving their constitutional
requirements.

There is a risk of deliver of the
18 week referral to treatment
(RTT) standards will not be
delivered due to increased
demand and a lack of capacity
to deliver the standards.
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO2b Maintain Performance Targets

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Financial Management, Planning, Performance

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

Group in place across the North East
and Cumbria led by NHS Improvement
and NHS England looking at best
practice and horizon scanning and
actions suggested for implementation at
local level.

A&E Delivery Board in place and
meeting monthly looking at Surge/Winter
planning and interfaces across the
Sunderland System and key actions to
delivery local and national standards.
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO3. Maintain And Improve The Quality And Safety Of CCG Commissioned Services

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Delivery Of Commitments & Improved Outcomes

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

2049
647
2070
1726

Sunderland Safeguarding Children's
Board (SSCB) and Sunderland
Safeguarding Adults Board (SSAB)
established with quality assurance
processes in place (improvement
board).

Working in partnership with other
agencies. 

Safeguarding improvement plan.

Lay member for patient and public
involvement (also chair of quality, safety
and risk committee).

Effective serious incident reporting
processes in place and embedded
across the health economy. 

Refreshed qualty strategy and
integrated quality action plan. 

Serious incident process aligned with
the contractual obligations. 

Service line agreement with NECS
serious incident, incidents (corporate
and general practice), complaints
management and quality assurance.

Engagement strategy in place.

Quality review groups.

Primary care medical quality framework
and review group.

Patient experience process established.

Healthcare Acquired Infection (HCAI)
Improvement Group.

Audit of case files and work plan for
SSCB and SSAB.

Independent review of SSCB
functions.

Reports to quality, safety and risk
committee, including providers,
medicines optimisation, safeguarding
and quality in care homes.

Reports to governing body and
governing body development
sessions.

In-depth reviews with providers via
the quality review groups when there
are performance issues.

Serious incident panel and learning.

Internal Audit outcome reports.

Named GP for safeguarding children.

Named GP for safeguarding adults.

Key assurances from quality review
meetings with providers.

New operating model for the Initial
Contact and Referral Team.

Quality review groups monitoring
quality and safety in relation to
service delivery and any
performance issues.

Patient experience initelligence being
captured, e.g. clinical assurance
visits, engagement activity.

Low number of incidents
being reported by some
member practices.

Evidence required that the
new safeguarding
Integrated Contact and
Referral Team operating
model is improving frontline
practice.  

Contemporary quality
information for general
medical practice.
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Ensure the safety of patients
by commissioning safe and
high quality services by:

- Putting robust processes and
mechanisms in place to
monitor and manage patient
safety, quality and experience.

- Responding positively to
national requirements set out
national publications

Delivery of integrated urgent
care/ New 111 service

Failure of providers to meet A&E
95% 4 hour target (also aligned
to CO2b) resulting in
performance and potential
quality issues 

Quality and safety within Primary
Care (General Practice)

Impact on quality of the hospital
collaboration work across South
Tyneside and Sunderland 
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO3. Maintain And Improve The Quality And Safety Of CCG Commissioned Services

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Delivery Of Commitments & Improved Outcomes

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

South Tyneside and Sunderland Health
Care Governance Group established for
acute collaboration work.

Acute collaboration service reviews
involving clinicians and the CCG quality
team.

Quality Impact Assessment Policy
approved and Quality Impact
Assessment process included in the
PMO toolkit.

Research and Evidence Steering Group.

PROACT (research steering group).

GP and Nurse Research Clinical Leads
in post.

Urgent Care Strategy with
transformation plan developed.

Local A&E Delivery Board.

The CCG is a member of the Cumbria
and North East Urgent and Emergency
Care Network.

Local Quality in Primary Care Group.

Quality Dashboard for general medical
practice.

Primary care medical quality review
group meetings.

Reports from the HCAI Group to the
Quality, Safety and Risk Committee.

Regular meetings of the acute
collaboration governance group
taking place and includes director
representation from the CCG.

SIRMS rolled out and promoted via
newsletters, TITO.

Quality Impacts being undertaken as
part of project management.

Local A&E Delivery Board meeting
papers.

Research and Evidence Strategy and
action plan.

Research and Evidence Steering
Group meeting papers.

CCG attendance at Time in Time Out
events to consult member practices
on current business (urgent care
strategy, research strategy etc.)
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO4. Ensure The CCG Involves Patients And The Public In Commissioning And Reforming Services

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

Quality review meetings with providers. 

Structured approach to unannounced
visiting programme across providers.  

All Together Better Communications and
engagement steering group (CESG) as
a formal sub-group of executive
committee. 

Quality and safety committee.

Serious incident panel.

CCG constitution. 

Lay member for patient and public
involvement. 

Executive practice manager lead.

Interactive facility on website.

Use of 'My NHS' membership tool.

Communication strategy.

Engagement strategy. 

Strategic and operational engagement
support from NECS. 

Sunderland Health Forum.

Stakeholder survey.

Patient experience process established.

Patient and healthwatch representative
at primary care commissioning meeting.

Governing Body meeting held in public.  

Reports to executive committee and
governing body.

Quality action plan monitored by
governing body (incorporating the
Francis, Berwick and Keogh reports).

Reports to quality, safety and risk
committee.

Patient experience process. 

Patient engagement events held.

Communications and Digital
Marketing strategies reviewed and
approved by governing body.

Partnership work being developed
with the Local Authority.

Focused discussions with patient
groups on service specific changes. 

Engagement strategy approved by
governing body.

Engagement sessions held to
capture and join up activity across
the CCG.  

Patient experience intelligence being
captured.  

CCG representation on the Task and
Finish for the acute collaboration and
regular updates to the CESG.

Reports from primary care
commissioning meeting.

Task and Finish Group meets

Public attendance at
Sunderland Health Forum
needs to be strengthened.
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Ensure patients and the public
are actively involved in the
commissioning and reforming
of services by:

- Establishing effective
mechanisms to seek patients
and carer views of services
across all areas of health
including, patient stories,
complaints, including linking
with Healthwatch

- Ensuring a strategy is in
place to deliver the patient and
public involvement element of
the NHS Constitution
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO4. Ensure The CCG Involves Patients And The Public In Commissioning And Reforming Services

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

Communications and Engagement Task
and Finish Group monthly meetings for
acute collaboration work.  Group reports
to the CCG All Together Better
Communications and 

Engagement Steering Group (CESG).

Agreement with NECS in place to
support the delivery of the
communications and engagement
elements of the STP and acute
collaboration work.

Consultation Institute training.

Communications and Engagement Task
and Finish Group established and
agreed strategy for these agenda in
place to manage the requirements of the
Path 2 Excellence programme.

Service line agreement in place with
NECS to deliver the Path 2 Excellence
communications and engagement
programme.

Quality strategy.

Quality impact assessment policy.

Urgent care strategy consultation.

Local A&E delivery board has
representation from Local Authority as
well as NEAS, NHS England and NHS
Improvement.

regularly to review progress against
the delivery of the Path 2 Excellence
communications and engagement
strategy and to ensure the CCG
meets its statutory requirements.

Urgent care strategy consultation
process.

NHS England annual assessment
process for engagement.

Consultation Institute supporting the
CCG to achieve best practice in
engagement activities.
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO5. Identify And Deliver The CCG's Key Strategic Priorities

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

1720
1843
1944
1849

 General Practice Quality Premium.

CCQ Quality Premium.

2 year operational and 5 year strategic
plan in place.

Plans for each transformation
programme in place supported by
Executive Director and GP Executive
leads, commissioning manager and
PMO support e.g Urgent Care Strategy
programme.

Multi-agency programme boards
supported by working groups linked to
the multi-agency transformation
board/executive committee.

Transformational work programmes with
executive GPs and clinical leads e.g.
Urgent Care.

Monthly senior management team
review of key performance indicators
(KPIs)/progress.

Monthly Sustainability Delivery Group
and monthly Assurance and Business
meetings chaired by Chief Officer and
Chief Finance Officer respectively.

Signed contracts in place with providers
and service line agreements in place
with NECS.

Contract management meetings and
process with providers and with NECS.

CCG internal provider management
group.

As outstanding CCG, quarterly
reviews no longer held but NHS
England would organise meeting if
intelligence identified the need.

Plans to develop customer led
commissioning support service
owned by all CCGs.

Regular development sessions with
executive committee clinical leads
and locality teams.

Engagement at time in time out
events.

Monthly assurance reports to
executive committee on the
transformational changes and KPIs
and QIPP areas.

Assurance reports to every meeting
of the governing body.

Medical director chairs and locality
representatives attend the provider
management group.

Contract monitoring log.

Monthly finance reports to executive
committee  and governing body.

Governing body development
sessions, including partners, to
develop/review joint vision and
priorities.

Quarterly Director team meetings to
review how CCG is delivering the
strategic priorities set by the
governing body.
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Develop and deliver the
annual plan to deliver the
2017/18 elements of the 5
year Strategic Plan and the
CCG elements of the joint
strategic needs assessment
by:

- Ensuring the plan meets
NHS England requirements

- Developing strategic
partnerships with key
stakeholders, including the
local authority, health and
wellbeing board (HWBB) and
NHS England and providers.

- Agreeing contracts and
robust service line agreements
with provider organisations
and NECS to deliver the
CCG's strategic priorities.

- Ensuring the internal
commissioning teams are
aligned to the priorities

Capacity within the CCG to
deliver strategic priorities along
with the increasing number of
QiPP initiatives

To have effectively
commissioned the MCP by April
2019

Eligibility for Continuing
Healthcare (CHC)

Urgent Care Strategy
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO5. Identify And Deliver The CCG's Key Strategic Priorities

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

Monthly internal senior management
team meeting to review NECS contract.

Matrix approach to aligning
commissioning staff to strategic
priorities.

Approach to running cost budget
releases non recurrent funding each
year to secure additional temporary
resource to meet identified gaps each
year.

Challenge process to the development
of detailed plans for delivery of strategic
priorities by senior managers to ensure
scope is appropriate.  

Project management office standardised
approach to the identification of
activities and resources to deliver each
strategic priority.

MCP Commissioning Development
group.

Shadow MCP Alliance Board in place
between the local authority and CCG
commissioners and core providers to
oversee the delivery of the MSCP.

CCG director and GP executive
membership of the Clinical Services
Review Group led by the Sunderland
and South Tyneside Health care group
with support from senior management
leads.  The CO also meets with the
STCCG and ST and S/L Health Group
COs on a fortnightly basis.

Terms of reference for MCP
commissioner development group for all

Community services Operational
Delivery Group supported by system
wide Project Management Office
(PMO).  Reporting to the CCG led
Care Model Assurance Group.

Sunderland Care Model Assurance
Group in place led by CCG Executive
members receiving assurance via the
Operational Delivery Group chair and
Head of PMO.

Memo of Understanding is in place
and agreed by each of the governing
bodies of the MCP partners.

Utilisation of commissioning skills
and experience through the Matrix
approach to ensure fair distribution of
work.

Challenge process to the
development of detailed plans for
delivery of strategic priorities by
senior managers to ensure scope is
appropriate. 

Focus of senior leadership team on
integrating all out of hospital services
which is a key priority for the CCG.

Updates on the Acute Operating
Model clinical service reviews are
presented to each Governing Body
meeting and each clinical review is
considered by the Executive
Committee prior to any public
consultation.  

Contracting Strategy being
developed to support the decision to
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO5. Identify And Deliver The CCG's Key Strategic Priorities

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

members in place. secure the MCP via a Collaboration
Business model and alliance
agreement.

Strategic review by governing body in
February 2017 to realign CCG as
strategic commissioner over the next
2 years with a focus on delivering the
MCP, acute configuration and
ensuring financial sustainability.

Permanent head of Medicines
Optimisation in post.
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO6. Develop The CCG Localities

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

Locality Plans in place; updates
provided bi monthly to the executive
committee.

GP Quality Premium that includes a KPI
around locality engagement.

Minimum of quarterly full locality
meetings.

Development sessions with locality
teams as needed throughout the year
and locality teams are invited to the
majority of executive development
sessions.

Locality commissioning managers in
place. Permanent head of general
practice commissioning manager
manages the team, working closely with
the strategic practice manager who
supports the locality practice managers.

GP executive leads and locality practice
managers and locality practice nurse in
place for each locality supported by
strategic practice nurse and strategic
practice manager.

Time In Time Out Events. 

Clinical leadership development
programme. 

Monthly locality practice managers
meeting  with strategic practice manager
lead.

Monthly locality practice managers
meeting  with strategic practice manager
lead.

Public governing body meetings. 

Annual general meeting for member
practices and the public.  

CCG constitution review process.

Planning framework in place.

Clinical leads development session
and action plan developed.

Director and senior manager time out
to review appropriate resource
allocation.

Engagement events in developing
priorities for next year.

360 degree feedback stakeholder
survey.

Director attendance at each locality
meeting in addition to the executive
GP, locality commissioning
manager/nurse/practice manage -
pilot over several quarters was
successful and will continue.

Bi-monthly updates on Localities are
provided to the Executive Committee
and shared for information with the
governing body members.

Recent development session with
localities confirmed they were
working well and noise in the system
the year before had abated.  Stable
staff team had also assisted this and
approach of new manager.

General Practice Alliance and
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Continue to develop the CCG
localities to establish robust
links with member practices to
ensure the CCG demonstrates
its accountabilities as set out
in the CCG's Constitution by:

- Publishing the Constitution
and meeting all of the
statutory obligations

- Meeting annually to publish
and present the CCG annual
report, including the annual
accounts

- Holding meetings of the
Governing Body in public. 

- Resourcing Locality Teams 
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO6. Develop The CCG Localities

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

Monthly locality learning together
meetings.

Refreshed vision in place with clarity of
functions for localities.

Involvement of General Practice
Alliance (GPA) in TITO and monthly
Locality Together meetings to
encourage and enable the GPA to
engage/operate through a locality
structure which is part of their delivery
plan and supports one of the four
functions of localities.

CCG senior managers use the locality
meetings to engage and communicate
key info to Practices and seek views to
inform proposals.

Localities team working more closely
together and have agreed GPA lead
for each locality.  3 joint workshops
held to date to enable synergy
between the teams.
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO7.  Integrating Health And Social Care Services, Inc Better Care Fund

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Financial Management, Planning, Performance

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

682 Health and wellbeing board with
appropriate CCG senior membership.

Revised health and social care
integration board with appropriate CCG
senior membership.

BCF Executive Group supporting the
integration board.

Engagement with the Community
Services Provider Board and the joint
Senior Leadership group (
Commissioner and Providers )
overseeing the development of the
MCP.

Multi agency transformation board.

Sunderland Care Model Assurance
Group and supporting arrangements.

Signed section 75 agreement with the
local authority

Quarterly meetings with the vanguard
national team.

Quarterly national  returns for the BCF.

Regular meetings of LA and CCG COs.

Amended Section 75
agreement to cover
2017/18 in light of BCF
being aligned to MCP
commissioned from April
18.  MoU to cover gap
being developed.

5 year strategic commissioning plan,
2 year operational plan and BCF
plan. 

Reports to health and wellbeing
board and governing body.

Integrated overall operating model
developed following 2 day
accelerated solutions event with
partners as a direction of travel.

CCG working with the local authority
who has secured a strategic
intelligence partner for the city.

PMO supported by Vanguard funding
in 17/18 to support delivery of MCP
Vanguard.

£5m of non recurrent Vanguard
funding in 17/18 supporting the
transformation of out of hospital care.

Appointed project director of joint
commissioning with focus on
developing the business case for
integrating both CCG and local
authority commissioning functions
and advising on what functions could
move into an MCP.

Task and finish group/rapid
improvement workshop set up to
improve efficiencies and processes
in relation to continuing healthcare.

BCF from April 17 will be aligned with
the scope for the MCP.

Performance reporting to
the Health and Social Care
Integration Board does not
currenlty cover all BCF
areas.
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Continue to develop the
Sunderland joint health and
wellbeing strategy to have the
best possible health and
wellbeing for Sunderland by
implementing the Sunderland
vision for Integration through:

- Developing an  overall
integrated operating model

- Developing locality integrated
teams across health and
social care

- Developing integrated
commissioning processes

- Developing shared
intelligence processes

- Person centred co-ordinated
care planning

- Implementing the Better Care
Fund (BCF)

Potential impact of
personalisation and personal
health budgets on strategic
commissioning
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO8. Primary Care Commissioning

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Delivery Of Commitments & Improved Outcomes

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

1884
1723

Primary care commissioning committee
(PCCC).

Lay member chair.

Budgetary allocation clarified for primary
care.

NHS England and Healthwatch
representative on PCCC 

Forum for all CCGs in Cumbria and
North East to share learning and
experiences.

Operational Group in place between
NHS England and CCG meeting
monthly dealing with contracting and
finance issues.

Regular monitoring returns on delivery of
5YFV to NHS England in place.

Memorandum of understanding signed
and in place between NHS England and
CCG re what NHS England can provide
to support the delegation agreement.

Strategy for general practice in place.

Cycle of business for PCCC in place.

NHS England/CCG quality framework
and review group in place working within
the North East primary care assurance
framework and minutes/report to quality
and safety committee and the primary
care commissioning committee (PCCC).
Director of nursing, quality and patient
safety now a formal member of the
PCCC.

Agreement on future
placement of Cumbria and
the North East primary
care commissioning staff.

Reports to governing body.

Annual review of the effectiveness of
the PCC and 2 meetings a year
focus on development of the
committee.

Regular report to the primary care
commissioning committee to include
finance and contract baseline.

Primary care workforce development
group in place.

Agreed a part time primary care
workforce post with Sunderland
University, funded by the University
but embedded in CCG to deliver on
workforce plans.

Role of Cumbria and the North East
primary care support team clarified in
relation to Sunderland decision
making.

North East and Cumbria
transformation team in place from
April 2017 to support GPFV and way
of working agreed with CCG and
localities team.

Regular reviews of resources and
commitments with budget manager
and Cumbria and North East area
team support. 

Developed support team to advise
practices on preparing for CQC
inspections and ensuring they are fit
for purpose.

Agreed with CCG North Forum the

C
lare N

esbit        

4
 x

 3
=

1
2

M
o

d
e
ra

te

Develop and implement
systems and processes for
primary care
co-commissioning by:

- Implementing a strategy for
primary care/general practice
in line with the CCG's vision

Implementing the General
Practice Forward View.

- Working in partnership with
NHS England to deliver the
delegated function

- Quality framework

- Management of conflicts of
interest.

GP engagement with the
development of a MCP Alliance
collaboration agreement

Primary care sustainability in
relation to workforce, funding
and practice collaboration 
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO8. Primary Care Commissioning

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Delivery Of Commitments & Improved Outcomes

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

Close working relationship with Cumbria
and North East area team's finance
department.

General practice implementation group
to oversee delivery of general practice
strategy in place.  

Standards of Business Conduct and
Conflicts of Interest Policy and
supporting process.

NHS England self-certification process
for conflicts of interest.

NHS England transformation team
manager allocated 2 days a week for
Sunderland and part of GP strategy
group and physically with CCG localities
team a day a week.

Sub group of MCP commissioning
development group in place focussed on
GP practice engagement and meets
bi-monthly with GP executive lead and
oversees the communication and
engagement process with practices on
MCP as part of comms and engagement
strategy.
Appointed permanent head of general
practice commissioning supported by
localities team.  

Bi-monthly reporting to the executive
committee/PCCC on implementation of
the General Practice Forward View
(GPFV). 

CCG GP Commissioning strategy and
the Localities function.

Bi monthly meeting with Sunderland

NHS England Primary Care team will
stay as central team until formally
reviewed between CCGs and NHS
England.

Local quality review group meetings
and reporting mechanisms to QSC.

Standards of Business Conduct
Policy reviewed and updated in line
with current statutory guidance.

Self-certification forms submitted on
a quarterly basis.

Localities team supporting the
development of general practice due
to their experience, skills and
relationships with practices.
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Principal RisksRiskKey Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO8. Primary Care Commissioning

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Delivery Of Commitments & Improved Outcomes

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2018/19

GPA and CCG executive members to
keep under review the strategic
alignment with the aim of supporting the
sustainability and transformation of
general practice.  Director Lead for
General Practice also meets monthly
with CO of GPA.
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO1. Ensure The CCG Meets Its Public Accountability Duties

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

2021
1920
1719
2126
1367

Risk management/register process
established to review risks regularly.

Commissioning plan and locality plans in
place. 

Audit Committee meets to ensure robust
systems and processses in place to
meet statutory duties.

Lay member for audit.

Independent audit committee member.

Annual review of CCG constitution and
governance structure (terms of reference
for all committees).

Audit cycle and plans agreed.

Lay member representation on the
governing body.

Risk management group established
(sub-group of the audit and risk
committee).

Primary care co-commissioning
committee set up.

Service line agreements in place with
North of England Commissioning
Support Service (NECS) for IT and HR
support.

In house team for organisational
development. 

Register of Interests process.

Service line agreement with NECS to
provide governance and risk

Regular meetings with the NECS
service line lead for governance and
information governance and the Head
of Corporate Affairs. 

Reports to Quality and Safety
Committee, Audit and Risk
Committee and Governing Body on
risk.

Reports to executive committee and
development sessions held. 

CCG Constitution updated in line with
current statutory guidance for
conflicts of interest.

Risk register process well established
(SIRMS electronic system in place).

Risk management policy and
framework updated to include risk
materialisation.

2 year operational and 5 year
strategic plans in place. 

Business continuity plan and
recovery plan in place.

Desktop exercise undertaken with
director and senior team.

Revised Conflicts of Interest policy.

Register of Interests

Auditor panel procurement process
completed.

Internal audit reports.
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To ensure the CCG has robust
systems in place to fulfill CCG
assurance with NHS England
and meets its public
accountability duties by:

- Ensuring the CCG meets all
of its statutory duties

- Ensuring the CCG is aware
of all risks and has robust
plans in place to minimise and
mitigate against these.

- Ensure patients' rights are
delivered in commissioned
services as specified in the
NHS Constitution.

There is a risk that the CCG will
not meet its duties and
responsibilities in relation to
information governance. 

There is risk that the CCG will
not be able to meet the
requirements of the new General
Data Protection Regulation. 

Sustainability in terms of IT,
workforce and infrastructure 

Mental Capacity Act
Assessments

Risk that the CCG is not meeting
its statutory responsibilities
around legislative framework for
deprivation of liberty.
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO1. Ensure The CCG Meets Its Public Accountability Duties

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

management support, including
information governance

EPRR annual assessment
undertaken.

Regular service line meetings
between NECS and service line
leads.

Service audit reports from payroll,
NHS SBS (Oracle), NECS and
Exeter.

GDPR action plan.

NHSE assurance rating of CCG as
"Outstanding" for 2017/18
performance.
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO2a. Maintain Financial Control

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Financial Management, Planning, Performance

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

1642
1906
649
1709
1832
2020
1641

Updated operational and medium term
financial plan with contingencies
identified.

Regular internal reviews of financial
performance and risk.

Budget reporting, variance analysis and
forecast out turns provided to and
reviewed with Senior Managers.

Process in place to review accuracy of
NHSPS billing including system wide
group.

Regular review of
investments/disinvestments by CFO,
SDG & Executive Committee.

Executive committee management of
finance.

Executive committee development
sessions
 
System Delivery Group (SDG) reviews of
productivity savings achievement.

Audit and Risk Committee meets to
ensure robust systems and processes in
place to meet statutory duties.

Lay member for audit in post.

Monthly quality and contractual
meetings.

In-house finance team.

Monthly senior staff meetings.

Vacancy control process.

Finance reports to executive
committee, BCF Integration Board,
Primary Care Committee and
governing body.

Investment in finance training for staff
and CCG members.

Financial plans agreed by governing
body.

Maturing of All Together Better
Alliance and management of
resources.
 
Internal Audit review of financial
controls wiht outcome of significant
assurance.

Service auditor reports from NHS
SBS (Oracle), NECS, Capita, NHS
Business Services Authority and NHS
Digital.  

Regular budget and forecast out-turn
meetings with budget holders.

Prescribing reports to quality and
safety committee and regular
prescribing savings task and fnish
group reports to the executive
committee.

Regular SDG reporting to the
executive committee.

Financial Scheme of Delegation in
place and reviewed on regular basis..

Block contracts in place for main
acute providers.

Difficult to accurately
predict forecast outturn for
prescribing & CHC spend in
the early quarters of the
year.   

Potential requirement for
contingency funds cannot
be accurately predicted.

Unable to predict all
potential influence on PBR
costs (National Institute for
Clinical Excellence and
demand).

Unable to predict all future
demand fluctuations for
acute services.
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Ensure the CCG optimises the
use of its financial and other
resources to deliver the annual
plan whilst maintaining
financial balance and
achieving national
requirements from NHS
England by:

- Ensuring the CCG lives
within its allocation/control
totals.

- Ensuring the CCG operates
within its running cost
allowance.

- Ensuring the CCG meets the
Mental Health Investment
Standard each financial year.

- Ensuring the CCG supports
the delivery of system wide
sustainability including
supporting delivery of the
Local Health Economy
Financial Recovery Plan as
well as ICP & ICS financial
plans.

Transforming Care Financial
Impact

Delivery of productivity plans for
2018/19 and 2019/20.

Risk of in year financial
overspend on CCG programme
and running cost budgets as a
result of unknown pressures
arising in year.

Changes in NHS Property
Services billing policies agreed
with the Department of Health
that the CCG will incur additional
recurrent pressures as well as
causing distress to member
practices and other providers in
the health economy. 

Risk of in-year underspends.

Risk of providers increasing
activity and costs to meet
Sustainability and
Transformation Funding (STF)
targets.

Risk of in-year pressures due to
CHC Care Home fee rate
negotiations.
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO2a. Maintain Financial Control

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Financial Management, Planning, Performance

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

Oracle authorisation controls.

Scheme of reservation and delegation.

Health and social care integration board,
and relevant S75 and S256 agreements.

Process in place to review any forecast
underspends and to develop and
approve contingency plans.

Monitoring of contract performance by
Contracting Team and Provider
Management Group and working closely
with ATBA Alliance to monitor and
manage financial position for out of
hospital services.

Close working with Local Health
Economy Partners on Cost Reduction
Programmes.

Sunderland and South Tyneside
Transforming Health Care Operations
Group set up to jointly support
co-ordinate efficiency savings.

Sunderland and South Tyneside
Ways of Working Agreement in place
including risk share agreement.

Regular reviews with NHSE of
financial position (financial assurance
meetings).

Financial & assurance returns sent to
NHSE on regular basis.
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO2b Maintain Performance Targets

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Financial Management, Planning, Performance

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

1359
643
2130

Executive committee management of
provider performance.

Executive committee development
sessions.

Regular monitoring with medical director
and clinical leads.

Transformation Board agreed work
programmes with GP executives and
clinical leads.

Monthly quality and contractual review
meetings.

In-house performance team.

Monthly director and senior staff
meetings.

Infection, prevention and control
meetings with providers.

Transformation board agreed to take on
systems-wide resilience role including
oversight of planned care issues
(including referral to treatment and 18
weeks).

Meeting between CHS, NEAS and CCG
looking to address ambulance handover
delays. 

Local Health Economy (LHE) system
wide plan looking at transformation
across South Tyneside and Sunderland
with areas linked to key national
priorities and delivery of nationally
prescribed performance indicators.

Quarterly Operations and Delivery Group

Performance reports to executive
committee and governing body.

Reports to quality and safety
committee.

One to one regular meetings between
chief officer and directors and their
counterparts in provider
organisations, e.g. chief officer and
chief executive of City Hospitals
Sunderland.

Outstanding ratings in 2016/17 and
2017/18 and as a result quarterly
assurance meetings with NHS E
which are deemed low risk. 

Internal audit reviews at provider
level to underpin and direct
performance improvement particularly
for cancer and RTT.

Reports from providers in relation to
performance received monthly with
detailed reporting for all areas of
performance.

CCG Cancer Task and Finish Group
in place meeting monthly with
representation across the system.

Timely quality reports from
key providers.

Reactive approach to
pressures in performance.
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Ensure the CCG optimises the
use of its financial and other
resources to deliver the annual
plan whilst maintaining
financial balance and
achieving national
requirements from NHS
England by:

- Ensuring delivery of locally,
regionally and nationally
agreed and prescribed
performance indicators.

There is a risk to the delivery of
the national 62 day cancer
treatment targets due to capacity
constraints and increased
demand which would mean
patients are not receiving timely
treatment for cancer and
receiving their constitutional
requirements.

There is a risk of deliver of the 18
week referral to treatment (RTT)
standards will not be delivered
due to increased demand and a
lack of capacity to deliver the
standards.

There is a risk that the CCG fails
to deliver the national
expectation that no more patients
are waiting as at the end of
March'20 than were waiting at
the end of March'19.
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO2b Maintain Performance Targets

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Financial Management, Planning, Performance

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

in place across the North East and
Cumbria led by NHS Improvement and
NHS England looking at best practice
and horizon scanning and actions
suggested for implementation at local
level.

A&E Delivery Board in place and
meeting monthly looking at Surge/Winter
planning and interfaces across the
Sunderland System and key actions to
delivery local and national standards.

Monthly performance meetings with
STSFT instigated, standing agenda
items on constitutional matters and
waiting list.
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO3. Maintain And Improve The Quality And Safety Of CCG Commissioned Services

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Delivery Of Commitments & Improved Outcomes

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

2049
647
2070
1726

Sunderland Safeguarding Children's
Board (SSCB) and Sunderland
Safeguarding Adults Board (SSAB)
established with quality assurance
processes in place (improvement board).

Working in partnership with other
agencies. 

Safeguarding improvement plan.

Lay member for patient and public
involvement (also chair of quality, safety
and risk committee).

Effective serious incident reporting
processes in place and embedded
across the health economy. 

Refreshed qualty strategy and integrated
quality action plan. 

Serious incident process aligned with the
contractual obligations. 

Service line agreement with NECS
serious incident, incidents (corporate
and general practice), complaints
management and quality assurance.

Transfer of Shared Care Group to
oversee process.

Sustainability and Delivery Group
oversees CHC arrangements and
nursing team now employed within the
CCG.

CHC Head of Service and nursing team
established within the CCG.

Internal CHC processes reviewed and

Audit of case files and work plan for
SSCB and SSAB.

Independent review of SSCB
functions.

Reports to quality, safety and risk
committee, including providers,
medicines optimisation, safeguarding
and quality in care homes.

Reports to governing body and
governing body development
sessions.

In-depth reviews with providers via
the quality review groups when there
are performance issues.

Serious incident panel and learning.

Internal Audit outcome reports.

Comprehensive safeguarding training
and audit cycle across primary care. 

Arrangements and reporting in place
with the LA re management of CHC
cases.  Meetings commenced under
programme 3 of ATBA and
Transformation plan being reviewed
collaboratively with LA to incorporate
improvement objectives. Work on
section 75 for 19/20 being produced
collaboratively to include clear
operational schedules. Patient
management system due to go live in
June 2019.

Pharmicus commissioned to
undertake audit into Transfer of
Shared Care.

Low number of incidents
being reported by some
member practices.

Evidence required that the
new safeguarding
Integrated Contact and
Referral Team operating
model is improving frontline
practice.  

Contemporary quality
information for general
medical practice.
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Ensure the safety of patients
by commissioning safe and
high quality services by:

- Putting robust processes and
mechanisms in place to
monitor and manage patient
safety, quality and experience.

- Responding positively to
national requirements set out
national publications

Delivery of integrated urgent
care/ New 111 service

Failure of providers to meet A&E
95% 4 hour target (also aligned
to CO2b) resulting in
performance and potential quality
issues 

Quality and safety within Primary
Care (General Practice)

Impact on quality of the hospital
collaboration work across South
Tyneside and Sunderland 
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO3. Maintain And Improve The Quality And Safety Of CCG Commissioned Services

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Delivery Of Commitments & Improved Outcomes

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

CHC SOP completed with aligned
processes in draft.  Section 75
agreement reviewed and signed.  CHC
policy reviewed and amendments to be
presented to Executive committee.
Tender waiver signed for Broadcare to
be implemented to provide patient
management system.

Joint arrangements agreed between
Local Authority and CCG re
management of Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards (DoLS).

Engagement strategy in place.

Quality review groups.

Primary care medical quality framework
and review group.

Patient experience process established.

Healthcare Acquired Infection (HCAI)
Improvement Group.

South Tyneside and Sunderland Health
Care Governance Group established for
acute collaboration work.

Acute collaboration service reviews
involving clinicians and the CCG quality
team.

Quality Impact Assessment Policy
approved and Quality Impact
Assessment process included in the
PMO toolkit.

Research and Evidence Steering Group.

PROACT (research steering group).

Arrangements and reporting in place
with the LA re management of DoLS
and no backlog reported 

Named GP for safeguarding children.

Named GP for safeguarding adults.

Key assurances from quality review
meetings with providers.

New operating model for the Initial
Contact and Referral Team.

Quality review groups monitoring
quality and safety in relation to
service delivery and any performance
issues.

Patient experience initelligence being
captured, e.g. clinical assurance
visits, engagement activity.

Primary care medical quality review
group meetings.

Reports from the HCAI Group to the
Quality, Safety and Risk Committee.

Regular meetings of the acute
collaboration governance group
taking place and includes director
representation from the CCG.

SIRMS rolled out and promoted via
newsletters, TITO.

Quality Impacts being undertaken as
part of project management.

Local A&E Delivery Board meeting
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO3. Maintain And Improve The Quality And Safety Of CCG Commissioned Services

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Delivery Of Commitments & Improved Outcomes

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

GP and Nurse Research Clinical Leads
in post.

Urgent Care Strategy with transformation
plan developed.

Local A&E Delivery Board.

The CCG is a member of the Cumbria
and North East Urgent and Emergency
Care Network.

Local Quality in Primary Care Group.

Quality Dashboard for general medical
practice.

papers.

Research and Evidence Strategy and
action plan.

Research and Evidence Steering
Group meeting papers.

CCG attendance at Time in Time Out
events to consult member practices
on current business (urgent care
strategy, research strategy etc.)

Sunderland Safeguarding Adults
Board

Sunderland Safeguarding Children
Board

Safer Sunderland Partnership

NHS England and Improvement

CQC

Health & Well-being Board

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Pharmicus Audit
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO4. Ensure The CCG Involves Patients And The Public In Commissioning And Reforming Services

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

Quality review meetings with providers. 

Structured approach to unannounced
visiting programme across providers.  

All Together Better Communications and
engagement steering group (CESG) as a
formal sub-group of executive
committee. 

Quality and safety committee.

Serious incident panel.

CCG constitution. 

Lay member for patient and public
involvement. 

Executive practice manager lead.

Interactive facility on website.

Use of 'My NHS' membership tool.

Communication and Engagement
strategy.

Strategic and operational engagement
support from NECS. 

Programme of CCG engagement events.

Stakeholder survey.

Patient experience process established.

Healthwatch representative at primary
care commissioning meeting.

Governing Body and Primary Care
Commissioning Committee formal

Reports to Executive, Quality and
Safety, Primary Care Commissioning
Committees and Governing Body.

Quality action plan monitored by
Governing Body (incorporating the
Francis, Berwick and Keogh reports).

Patient experience standard
operating procedure in place. 

Patient engagement events held and
evaluation reports produced.

Communications and digital
marketing strategies reviewed and
approved by Governing Body.

Partnership work being developed
with the Local Authority.

Focused discussions with patient
groups on service specific changes. 

Communications and Engagement
strategy approved by Governing
Body.

Engagement sessions held to capture
and join up activity across the CCG.  

Patient experience intelligence being
captured.  

CCG representation on the Task and
Finish for the acute collaboration and
regular updates to the CESG.

Task and Finish Group meets
regularly to review progress against
the delivery of the Path 2 Excellence
communications and engagement

Public attendance at CCG
engagement events needs
to be strengthened.
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Ensure patients and the public
are actively involved in the
commissioning and reforming
of services by:

- Establishing effective
mechanisms to seek patients
and carer views of services
across all areas of health
including, patient stories,
complaints, including linking
with Healthwatch

- Ensuring a strategy is in
place to deliver the patient and
public involvement element of
the NHS Constitution
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO4. Ensure The CCG Involves Patients And The Public In Commissioning And Reforming Services

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

meetings held in public.  

Communications and Engagement Task
and Finish Group monthly meetings for
acute collaboration work.  Group reports
to the CCG All Together Better
Communications and Engagement
Steering Group (CESG).

Agreement with NECS in place to
support the delivery of the
communications and engagement
elements of the Integrated Care
Partnership

Consultation Institute training.

Communications and Engagement Task
and Finish Group established and
agreed strategy in place for the Path 2
Excellence programme.

Service line agreement in place with
NECS to deliver the Path 2 Excellence
communications and engagement
programme.

Quality strategy.

Quality impact assessment policy.

Urgent care strategy consultation.

Local A&E delivery board has
representation from Local Authority as
well as NEAS, NHS England and NHS
Improvement.

strategy and to ensure the CCG
meets its statutory requirements.

Urgent care strategy consultation
process.

NHS England annual assessment
process for engagement.

Consultation Institute supporting the
CCG to achieve best practice in
engagement activities.

Communications and engagement
action plan in place for primary care.
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO5. Identify And Deliver The CCG's Key Strategic Priorities

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

1720
1843
1944
1849

 General Practice Quality Premium.

CCQ Quality Premium.

2 year operational and 5 year strategic
plan in place.

Plans for each transformation
programme in place supported by
Executive Director and GP Executive
leads, commissioning manager and
PMO support e.g Urgent Care Strategy
programme.

Multi-agency programme boards
supported by working groups linked to
the multi-agency transformation
board/executive committee.

Transformational work programmes with
executive GPs and clinical leads e.g.
Urgent Care.

Monthly senior management team
review of key performance indicators
(KPIs)/progress.

Monthly Sustainability Delivery Group
and monthly Assurance and Business
meetings chaired by Chief Officer and
Chief Finance Officer respectively.

Signed contracts in place with providers
and service line agreements in place
with NECS.

Contract management meetings and
process with providers and with NECS.

CCG internal provider management
group.

As outstanding CCG, quarterly
reviews no longer held but NHS
England would organise meeting if
intelligence identified the need.

Plans to develop customer led
commissioning support service
owned by all CCGs.

Regular development sessions with
executive committee clinical leads
and locality teams.

Engagement at time in time out
events.

Monthly assurance reports to
executive committee on the
transformational changes and KPIs
and QIPP areas.

Assurance reports to every meeting
of the governing body.

Medical director chairs and locality
representatives attend the provider
management group.

Contract monitoring log.

Monthly finance reports to executive
committee  and governing body.

Governing body development
sessions, including partners, to
develop/review joint vision and
priorities.

Quarterly Director team meetings to
review how CCG is delivering the
strategic priorities set by the
governing body.
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Develop and deliver the annual
plan to deliver the 2017/18
elements of the 5 year
Strategic Plan and the CCG
elements of the joint strategic
needs assessment by:

- Ensuring the plan meets NHS
England requirements

- Developing strategic
partnerships with key
stakeholders, including the
local authority, health and
wellbeing board (HWBB) and
NHS England and providers.

- Agreeing contracts and
robust service line agreements
with provider organisations
and NECS to deliver the
CCG's strategic priorities.

- Ensuring the internal
commissioning teams are
aligned to the priorities

Capacity within the CCG to
deliver strategic priorities along
with the increasing number of
QiPP initiatives

To have effectively
commissioned the MCP by April
2019

Eligibility for Continuing
Healthcare (CHC)

Urgent Care Strategy

Page 12© 2017 NHS Commissioning Board. Developed by North of England Commissioning  Support Unit (NECS)  



Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO5. Identify And Deliver The CCG's Key Strategic Priorities

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

Monthly internal senior management
team meeting to review NECS contract.

Matrix approach to aligning
commissioning staff to strategic
priorities.

Approach to running cost budget
releases non recurrent funding each
year to secure additional temporary
resource to meet identified gaps each
year.

Challenge process to the development of
detailed plans for delivery of strategic
priorities by senior managers to ensure
scope is appropriate.  

Project management office standardised
approach to the identification of activities
and resources to deliver each strategic
priority.

MCP Commissioning Development
group.

Shadow MCP Alliance Board in place
between the local authority and CCG
commissioners and core providers to
oversee the delivery of the MSCP.

CCG director and GP executive
membership of the Clinical Services
Review Group led by the Sunderland
and South Tyneside Health care group
with support from senior management
leads.  The CO also meets with the
STCCG and ST and S/L Health Group
COs on a fortnightly basis.

Terms of reference for MCP
commissioner development group for all

Community services Operational
Delivery Group supported by system
wide Project Management Office
(PMO).  Reporting to the CCG led
Care Model Assurance Group.

Sunderland Care Model Assurance
Group in place led by CCG Executive
members receiving assurance via the
Operational Delivery Group chair and
Head of PMO.

Memo of Understanding is in place
and agreed by each of the governing
bodies of the MCP partners.

Utilisation of commissioning skills
and experience through the Matrix
approach to ensure fair distribution of
work.

Challenge process to the
development of detailed plans for
delivery of strategic priorities by
senior managers to ensure scope is
appropriate. 

Focus of senior leadership team on
integrating all out of hospital services
which is a key priority for the CCG.

Updates on the Acute Operating
Model clinical service reviews are
presented to each Governing Body
meeting and each clinical review is
considered by the Executive
Committee prior to any public
consultation.  

Contracting Strategy being developed
to support the decision to secure the
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO5. Identify And Deliver The CCG's Key Strategic Priorities

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

members in place. MCP via a Collaboration Business
model and alliance agreement.

Strategic review by governing body in
February 2017 to realign CCG as
strategic commissioner over the next
2 years with a focus on delivering the
MCP, acute configuration and
ensuring financial sustainability.

Permanent head of Medicines
Optimisation in post.
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO6. Develop The CCG Localities

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

Locality Plans in place; updates provided
quarterly to the executive committee and
bi-monthly to the Primary Care
Commissioning Committee.

GP Quality Premium that includes a KPI
around locality engagement.

Minimum of quarterly full locality
meetings.

Development sessions with locality
teams as needed throughout the year
and locality teams are invited to the
majority of executive development
sessions.

Locality commissioning managers in
place. Permanent head of general
practice commissioning manager
manages the team, working closely with
the strategic practice manager who
supports the locality practice managers.

GP executive leads and locality practice
managers and locality practice nurse in
place for each locality supported by
strategic practice nurse and strategic
practice manager.

Time In Time Out Events includes
SCCG strategic update for 20 minutes at
every event. 

Clinical leadership development
programme. 

Monthly locality practice managers
meeting  with strategic practice manager
lead.

Public governing body meetings. 

Annual general meeting for member
practices and the public.  

CCG constitution review process.

Planning framework in place.

Clinical leads development session
and action plan developed.

Director and senior manager time out
to review appropriate resource
allocation.

Engagement events in developing
priorities for next year.

360 degree feedback stakeholder
survey.

Director attendance at each locality
meeting in addition to the executive
GP, locality commissioning
manager/nurse/practice manage -
pilot over several quarters was
successful and will continue as
appropriate.

Quarterly updates on Localities are
provided to the Executive Committee
and bi-monthly updates are provided
to the Primary Care Commissioning
Committee and shared for information
with the governing body members.

Ongoing development sessions with
localities confirm they were working
well and the new GP Contract has
reinforced this way of working with
the establishment of Primary Care
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Continue to develop the CCG
localities to establish robust
links with member practices to
ensure the CCG demonstrates
its accountabilities as set out
in the CCG's Constitution by:

- Publishing the Constitution
and meeting all of the statutory
obligations

- Meeting annually to publish
and present the CCG annual
report, including the annual
accounts

- Holding meetings of the
Governing Body in public. 

- Resourcing Locality Teams 
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO6. Develop The CCG Localities

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Well-Led Organisation, Delegated Functions

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

Monthly locality practice managers
meeting  with strategic practice manager
lead.

Monthly locality learning together
meetings.

Refreshed vision in place with clarity of
functions for localities.

Involvement of General Practice Alliance
(GPA) in TITO and monthly Locality
Together meetings to encourage and
enable the GPA to engage/operate
through a locality structure which is part
of their delivery plan and supports one of
the four functions of localities.

CCG senior managers use the locality
meetings to engage and communicate
key info to Practices and seek views to
inform proposals.

Primary Care Networks established in
each locality with Clinical Directors
appointed.

Additional funding allocated to support
locality working and development.

Networks that are co-representative
of localities.

Recent development session with
localities confirmed they were
working well and noise in the system
the year before had abated.  Stable
staff team had also assisted this and
approach of new manager.

General Practice Alliance and
Localities team have continued to
work more closely together with the
alignment of a  SGPA lead for each
locality.  

Locality extended access hubs are
active and mobile.

Collaboration and joint working
between locality teams and SGPA
continues with working together
workshops to review and evaluate
progress, addressing any issues that
arise.
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO7.  Integrating Health And Social Care Services, Inc Better Care Fund

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Financial Management, Planning, Performance

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

682 Health and wellbeing board with
appropriate CCG senior membership.
HWB board continues to receive
operational and strategic assurance of
BCF.

Revised health and social care
integration board with appropriate CCG
senior membership.  Board has recently
agreed scope of integrated
commissioning between CCG and LA.

BCF Executive Group supporting the
integration board.  Functions of the
group have now been absorbed into
development of ATBA.  

Engagement with the Community
Services Provider Board and the joint
Senior Leadership group (
Commissioner and Providers )
overseeing the development of the MCP.
From April 2019 has become the ATBA
Board.

Signed section 75 agreement with the
local authority to be refreshed following
19/20 BCF sign-off.

Quarterly national  returns for the BCF.

Regular meetings of LA and CCG COs.

Section 75 requires refresh
- awailting 19/20 BCF
guidelines and sign-off.

5 year strategic commissioning plan,
2 year operational plan and BCF
plan. 

Reports to health and wellbeing
board and governing body.

Integrated overall operating model
developed following 2 day
accelerated solutions event with
partners as a direction of travel.

CCG working with the local authority
who has secured a strategic
intelligence partner for the city.

Appointed project director of joint
commissioning with focus on
developing the business case for
integrating both CCG and local
authority commissioning functions
and advising on what functions could
move into an MCP.

Transformation programme now
established.

BCF for 19/20 will sit within scope of
ATBA.

Performance reporting to
the Health and Social Care
Integration Board does not
currenlty cover all BCF
areas.

Ian H
olliday        

4
 x

 3
=

1
2

M
o

d
e
ra

te

Continue to develop the
Sunderland joint health and
wellbeing strategy to have the
best possible health and
wellbeing for Sunderland by
implementing the Sunderland
vision for Integration through:

- Developing an  overall
integrated operating model

- Developing locality integrated
teams across health and social
care

- Developing integrated
commissioning processes

- Developing shared
intelligence processes

- Person centred co-ordinated
care planning

- Implementing the Better Care
Fund (BCF)

Potential impact of
personalisation and personal
health budgets on strategic
commissioning
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO8. Primary Care Commissioning

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Delivery Of Commitments & Improved Outcomes

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

1884
1723

Primary care commissioning committee
(PCCC).

Lay member chair.

Budgetary allocation clarified for primary
care.

NHS England and Healthwatch
representative on PCCC 

Forum for all CCGs in Cumbria and
North East to share learning and
experiences.

Operational Group in place between
NHS England and CCG meeting monthly
dealing with contracting and finance
issues.

Regular monitoring returns on delivery of
5YFV to NHS England in place.

Memorandum of understanding signed
and in place between NHS England and
CCG re what NHS England can provide
to support the delegation agreement.

Strategy for general practice in place
and currently being refreshed to reflect
the changes to the GP Contract and
system working developments.

General Practice Strategy
Implementation Group - bi-monthly
meetings in place to oversee the delivery
of the General Practice Strategy and
ensure all operational discussions are
undertaken to inform recommendations
for the PCCC.

Cycle of business for PCCC in place.

Agreement on future
placement of Cumbria and
the North East primary care
commissioning staff.

Reports to governing body.

Annual review of the effectiveness of
the PCC and 2 meetings a year focus
on development of the committee.

Regular report to the primary care
commissioning committee to include
finance and contract baseline.

Primary care workforce steering
group in place.

Further to a part time primary care
workforce post with Sunderland
University, funded by the University
being embedded in the CCG to
deliver on workforce plans, a
Workforce Lead for General Practice
has been employed on a permanent
basis to support the sustainability of
general practice.

Role of Cumbria and the North East
primary care support team clarified in
relation to Sunderland decision
making.

North East and Cumbria
transformation team in place from
April 2017 to support GPFV and way
of working agreed with CCG and
localities team - continuous
collaboration and agreed ways of
working support the delivery of the
GPFV.

Regular reviews of resources and
commitments with budget manager
and Cumbria and North East area
team support. 

C
lare N

esbit        

4
 x

 3
=

1
2

M
o

d
e
ra

te

Develop and implement
systems and processes for
primary care
co-commissioning by:

- Implementing a strategy for
primary care/general practice
in line with the CCG's vision

Implementing the General
Practice Forward View.

- Working in partnership with
NHS England to deliver the
delegated function

- Quality framework

- Management of conflicts of
interest.

GP engagement with the
development of a MCP Alliance
collaboration agreement

Primary care sustainability in
relation to workforce, funding and
practice collaboration 
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO8. Primary Care Commissioning

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Delivery Of Commitments & Improved Outcomes

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

NHS England/CCG quality framework
and review group in place working within
the North East primary care assurance
framework and minutes/report to quality
and safety committee and the primary
care commissioning committee (PCCC).
Director of nursing, quality and patient
safety now a formal member of the
PCCC.

Close working relationship with Cumbria
and North East area team's finance
department.

General practice implementation group
to oversee delivery of general practice
strategy in place.  

Standards of Business Conduct and
Conflicts of Interest Policy and
supporting process.

NHS England self-certification process
for conflicts of interest.

General Practice Workforce Lead
permanently in place to support
workforce and sustainability of general
practice

ATBA Executive Group in place,
programme 1 focused on general
practice has an SRO and a SRC
appointed, this Executive Team meet
regularly with the CCG Executive Leads
and General Practice Team to ensure
the General Practice Strategy is aligned
and delivered.

Communication and engagement
process with practices is a key part of

Developed support team to advise
practices on preparing for CQC
inspections and ensuring they are fit
for purpose.

Agreed with CCG North Forum the
NHS England Primary Care team will
stay as central team until formally
reviewed between CCGs and NHS
England.

Local quality review group meetings
and reporting mechanisms to QSC.

Standards of Business Conduct
Policy reviewed and updated in line
with current statutory guidance.

Self-certification forms submitted on a
quarterly basis.

Localities team supporting the
development of general practice due
to their experience, skills and
relationships with practices.  

Outcome of Internal Audit of General
Practice Commissioning resulted in
SCCG having provided full assurance
of compliance and substantial
assurance that risks are identified
and managed effectively.
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Principal RisksRisk
Ref

Key Target Areas Controls Assurances Gaps in Controls Gaps in Assurances Director
Lead(s)

Risk Rating

Corporate Objective: CO8. Primary Care Commissioning

Linked to NHS England CCG assurance components: Delivery Of Commitments & Improved Outcomes

Governing Body Assurance Framework 2019/20

the communication and engagement
strategy.

Appointed permanent head of general
practice commissioning supported by
localities team.  

Bi-monthly reporting to the executive
committee/PCCC on implementation of
the General Practice Forward View
(GPFV). 
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Appendix 2 
List of changes to GBAF for 2019-20  

 
Objective Change  

CO1 

 

Changes to controls: 

 Added: Service line agreement with NECS to provide governance and risk 
management support, including information governance 

Changes to assurances: 

 Added: Regular meetings with the NECS service line lead for governance and 

information governance and the Head of Corporate Affairs  

 Updated: Reports to Quality and Safety Committee and Audit and Risk 
Committee and Governing Body on risk 

 Added: GDPR action plan. 

 Removed: NHSE assurance rating of CCG as "Outstanding" for 2017/18 
performance. 
 

CO2a 

 

Changes to key target areas 
 Added: Ensuring the CCG meets the Mental Health Investment Standard each 

financial year 

 Added: Ensuring the CCG supports the delivery system wide sustainability 

including supporting delivery of the Local Health Economy Financial Recovery 
Plan as well as ICP & ICS financial plans. 

 
Changes to controls: 

 Updated: Process in place to review accuracy of NHSPS billing including 
system wide group. 

 Updated: Regular review of investments/disinvestments by CFO, SDG & 

Executive Committee. 

 Updated: Audit and Risk Committee meets to ensure robust systems and 
processes in place to meet statutory duties. 

 Updated: Monitoring of contract performance by Contracting Team and 

Provider Management Group and working closely with ATBA Alliance to 
monitor and manage financial position for out of hospital services. 

 Added: Close working with Local Health Economy Partners on Cost Reduction 

Programmes. 

 
Changes to assurances 

 Updated: Service auditor reports from NHS SBS (Oracle), NECS, Capita, NHS 

Business Services Authority and NHS Digital.   

 Added: Maturing of All Together Better Alliance and management of resources. 

 Updated: Sunderland and South Tyneside Transforming Health Care 

Operations Group set up to jointly support co-ordinate efficiency savings. 

 Added: Regular reviews with NHSE of financial position (financial assurance 
meetings). 

 Added: Financial & assurance returns sent to NHSE on regular basis. 

 
Changes to gaps in assurances 

 Updated: Difficult to accurately predict forecast outturn for prescribing & CHC 

spend in the early quarters of the year.   .   

 Removed: Post holder requirement to be responsible to monitor and provide 

assurance that QIPP plans are on track. 
 

CO2b 

 

Changes to controls: 

 Added: Monthly performance meetings with STSFT instigated, standing 
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agenda items on constitutional matters and waiting list. 

 

CO3 

 

 

Changes to controls: 
 Added: Transfer of Shared Care Group to oversee process. 

 Added: Sustainability and Delivery Group oversees CHC arrangements and 
nursing team now employed within the CCG. 

 Added: CHC Head of Service and nursing team established within the CCG. 

 Added: Internal CHC processes reviewed and CHC SOP completed with 
aligned processes in draft.  Section 75 agreement reviewed and signed.  CHC 
policy reviewed and amendments to be presented to Executive committee.  
Tender waiver signed for Broadcare to be implemented to provide patient 
management system. 

 Added: Joint arrangements agreed between Local Authority and CCG re 

management of Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS). 

 
Changes to assurances: 

 Added:  Comprehensive safeguarding training and audit cycle across primary 

care. 

 Added:  Arrangements and reporting in place with the LA re management of 
CHC cases.  Meetings commenced under programme 3 of ATBA and 
Transformation plan being reviewed collaboratively with LA to incorporate 
improvement objectives.  Work on section 75 or 19/20 being produced 
collaboratively to include clear operational schedules. Patient management 
system due to go live in June 2019. 

 Added:  Pharmicus commissioned to undertake audit into Transfer of Shared 

Care. 

 Added:  Arrangements and reporting in place with the LA re management of 

DoLS and no backlog reported 

 

CO4 

 

Changes to controls:  

 Updated: Communication and Engagement strategy. [Removed separate entry 
for Engagement strategy.] 

 Added: Programme of CCG engagement events. 

 Removed: Sunderland Health Forum. 

 Updated:  [removed: Patient and] Healthwatch representative at primary care 

commissioning meeting. 

 Updated: Governing Body and Primary Care Commissioning Committee formal 
meetings held in public.   

 Updated: Agreement with NECS in place to support the delivery of the 

communications and engagement elements of the Integrated Care Partnership 
[replaces: Agreement with NECS in place to support the delivery of the 
communications and engagement elements of the STP and acute collaboration 
work.] 

 Updated: Communications and Engagement Task and Finish Group 
established and agreed strategy in place for the Path 2 Excellence programme. 
[Wording amended] 
 

Changes to assurances: 

 Updated: Reports to Executive, Quality and Safety, Primary Care 
Commissioning Committees and Governing Body. 

 Updated: Patient experience standard operating procedure in place. 

 Updated: Patient engagement events held and evaluation reports produced. 

 Updated: Communications and Engagement strategy approved by Governing 

Body. 

 Removed: Reports from primary care commissioning meeting. 

 Added: Communications and engagement action plan in place for primary 

care. 
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Changes to gaps in assurances: 

 Updated: Public attendance at CCG engagement events [removed: 
Sunderland Health Forum] needs to be strengthened. 

CO5 

 

No changes 

CO6 

 

  

Changes to controls:  

 Updated: Locality Plans in place; updates provided quarterly to the executive 

committee and bi-monthly to the Primary Care Commissioning Committee. 

 Updated: Time In Time Out Events include SCCG strategic update for 20 
minutes at every event. 

 Added: Primary Care Networks established in each locality with Clinical 
Directors appointed. 

 Added: Additional funding allocated to support locality working and 
development. 

Changes to assurances: 

 Updated:  Director attendance at each locality…will continue as appropriate. 

 Updated: Quarterly updates on Localities are provided to the Executive 
Committee and bi-monthly updates are provided to the Primary Care 
Commissioning Committee and shared for information with the governing body 
members. 

 Added: Ongoing development sessions with localities confirm they were 
working well and the new GP Contract has reinforced this way of working with 
the establishment of Primary Care Networks that are co-representative of 
localities. 

 Updated: General Practice Alliance and Localities team have continued to 

work more closely together with the alignment of a SGPA lead for each locality.  

 Added: Locality extended access hubs are active and mobile. 

 Added: Collaboration and joint working between locality teams and SGPA 

continues with working together workshops to review and evaluate progress, 
addressing any issues that arise.  

CO7 Changes to controls: 

 Updated: Health and wellbeing board with appropriate CCG senior 
membership.  HWB board continues to receive operational and strategic 
assurance of BCF. 

 Updated: Revised health and social care integration board with appropriate 

CCG senior membership.  Board has recently agreed scope of integrated 
commissioning between CCG and LA. 

 Updated: BCF Executive Group supporting the integration board.  Functions of 

the group have now been absorbed into development of ATBA. 

 Updated: Engagement with the Community Services Provider Board and the 
joint Senior Leadership group (Commissioner and Providers) overseeing the 
development of the MCP.  From April 2019 has become the ATBA Board. 

 Removed: Multi agency transformation board. 

 Removed: Sunderland Care Model Assurance Group and supporting 

arrangements. 

 Updated: Signed section 75 agreement with the local authority to be refreshed 
following 19/20 BCF sign-off. 

 Removed: Quarterly meetings with the vanguard national team. 
Gaps in controls 

 Updated: Section 75 requires refresh - awaiting 19/20 BCF guidelines and 
sign-off. [Replaces: Amended Section 75 agreement to cover 2017/18 in light of 
BCF being aligned to MCP commissioned from April 18.  MoU to cover gap 
being developed.] 

 
Changes to assurances 

 Removed: PMO supported by Vanguard funding in 17/18 to support delivery of 
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MCP Vanguard. 

 Removed: £5m of non-recurrent Vanguard funding in 17/18 supporting the 
transformation of out of hospital care. 

 Updated: Transformation programme now established.  [replaces: Task and 

finish group/rapid improvement workshop set up to improve efficiencies and 
processes in relation to continuing healthcare.] 

 Updated: BCF for 19/20 will sit within scope of ATBA. [replaces: BCF from 
April 17 will be aligned with the scope for the MCP.] 

CO8 

 

Changes to controls: 

 Updated: Strategy for general practice in place and currently being refreshed 

to reflect the changes to the GP Contract and system working developments. 
 Added: General Practice Strategy Implementation Group - bi-monthly meetings 

in place to oversee the delivery of the General Practice Strategy and ensure all 
operational discussions are undertaken to inform recommendations for the 
PCCC. 

 Added: General Practice Workforce Lead permanently in place to support 
workforce and sustainability of general practice. 

 Added: ATBA Executive Group in place, programme 1 focused on general 

practice has an SRO and a SRC appointed, this Executive Team meet regularly 
with the CCG Executive Leads and General Practice Team to ensure the 
General Practice Strategy is aligned and delivered. 

 Added: Communication and engagement process with practices is a key part 

of the communication and engagement strategy. 

 Added: Appointed permanent head of general practice commissioning 

supported by localities team.   

 Added: Bi-monthly reporting to the executive committee/PCCC on 
implementation of the General Practice Forward View (GPFV).  

 
Removed: 

 NHS England transformation team manager allocated 2 days a week for 
Sunderland and part of GP strategy group and physically with CCG localities 
team a day a week. 

 Sub group of MCP commissioning development group in place focussed on GP 
practice engagement and meets bi-monthly with GP executive lead and 
oversees the communication and engagement process with practices on MCP 
as part of comms and engagement strategy. 

 Appointed permanent head of general practice commissioning supported by 
localities team.   

 CCG GP Commissioning strategy and the Localities function. 

 Bi monthly meeting with Sunderland GPA and CCG executive members to keep 
under review the strategic alignment with the aim of supporting the 
sustainability and transformation of general practice.  Director Lead for General 
Practice also meets monthly with CO of GPA. 

 
Changes to assurances: 

 Updated: Primary care workforce steering group in place. 

 Updated: Further to a part time primary care workforce post with Sunderland 
University, funded by the University being embedded in the CCG to deliver on 
workforce plans, a Workforce Lead for General Practice has been employed on 
a permanent basis to support the sustainability of general practice. 

 Updated: North East and Cumbria transformation team in place from April 

2017 to support GPFV and way of working agreed with CCG and localities team 
- continuous collaboration and agreed ways of working support the delivery of 
the GPFV. 

 Added: Outcome of Internal Audit of General Practice Commissioning resulted 

in SCCG having provided full assurance of compliance and substantial 
assurance that risks are identified and managed effectively. 

 



NHS Sunderland CCG Strategic Risk Register

09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

- Sunderland CCG: Contracting And Performance

647 Failure of providers to meet
A&E 95% 4 hour target (also
aligned to CO2b) resulting in
performance and potential
quality issues 
As a result of City Hospitals
Sunderland NHS FT failure to
deliver the A&E 95% 4 hour
performance target, there is a
risk that patient care and safety
could be compromised and the
CCG would fail to deliver its
quality strategy and
constitutional target for A&E.
This could also result in failure
to secure the quality premium
for investment and potential
harm to patients.

4 3Ann Fox

Natalie McClary

4 4CO3.
Maintain And
Improve The
Quality And
Safety Of
CCG
Commission
ed Services

Risk owner has been
changed and controls
updated

Angela Farrell

(5). Quarterly
20/12/2018

16 12 4 - £100k
- £1m

SCCG Local A&E Delivery Board

• Gaps in control: none

Action log, notes of meetings and
workshops and Sunderland Local A&E
Delivery Board action plan which is
updated on a monthly basis.
• Gaps in assurance: none

SCCG Transformation Board
• Gaps in control: none

Action log, minutes of meetings and
workshops.
• Gaps in assurance: none

NEAS Quality Review Group
• Gaps in control: none

Action log, minutes of meetings and
workshops.
• Gaps in assurance: none

NEAS Performance and Contracting Group

• Gaps in control: none

Action log, minutes of meetings and
workshops.
• Gaps in assurance: none

Surge Group
• Gaps in control: None

Minutes of meetings which include
actions
• Gaps in assurance: None

Emergency Care Improvement Programme
(ECIP) visit to City Hospitals Sunderland in
May 2018
• Gaps in control: none

No internal assurance identified Report and
recommendations from
ECIP once complete

Series of RPIW events led by Natalie
McClary, including ED Interface
• Gaps in control: CHS team have accepted
but not agreed to the outcomes of all of the
RPIW.

Reports and work products from the
RPIWs
• Gaps in assurance: none

Urgent Care strategy programme plan
includes the modelling of impact on ED
• Gaps in control: none

Full programme plan decision making
business case is written. 
Notes and actions from the UC
Strategy Group and UC Decision
Making Business Case Working
Group.
• Gaps in assurance: none

Stage 2 assurance
received from NHS
England - "partially
assured". 
Decision making
business case has been
submitted to NHS
England for stage 3
assurance.

1359 There is a risk to the delivery of
the national 62 day cancer
treatment targets due to
capacity constraints and
increased demand which would
mean patients are not receiving
timely treatment for cancer and
receiving their constitutional
requirements.
Lack of capacity to deliver the
two week wait (2WW), 31 day
and 62 day cancer targets
within CHS NHSFT.   Patients
are waiting longer than the
standards in certain areas for

3 3David Gallagher

Scott Watson

4 3CO2b
Maintain
Performance
Targets

Performance remains
above the national
standard at CCG level
but pressures remain
at CHS NHSFT in
Urology.  Head of
Cancer Services
provided a
performance update
in March 19 to the
cancer group outlining
the key pressures and
key actions being

Matt Thubron

(5). Quarterly
26/03/2019

12 9 3 - £10k -
£100k

Monthly contract review group in place to
review action plan with CHS NHSFT.
• Gaps in control: none

Reports to Governing Body and
Executive Committee.
• Gaps in assurance: none

Reporting to Cancer
Alliance and NHS
Improvement via leads in
CHS NHSFT

Increased scrutiny nationally around 62 day
performance and weekly PTLs will need to
be submitted by provider to increase
visibility.
• Gaps in control: none

CCG working with CHS NHSFT to
implement an incentive scheme to
improve performance in key specialty
areas.
• Gaps in assurance: none

Cancer Alliance funding
in place to deliver
performance
improvements

National Intensive Support Team review of
governance and processes at CHS NHSFT.
Action plan in place.
• Gaps in control: none

Monitoring via performance and
contract review group
• Gaps in assurance: none

Cancer Alliance, NHS
Improvement and IST will
monitor progress against
the action plan.

01/08/2018

31/03/2019

Matt Thubron

New Pathway in
place around
oncology and
development of a
business case
looking at lung
pathways.
Reviewed at the
Cancer Task and
Finish Group.

Progress: 
New lung pathway
agreed which will be
provided by STFT
which is in the
process of being
mobilised.  Likely this
will be delayed due to
additional consultant
capacity which will
need to be recruited.  

Date Entered :
22/11/2018 11:59
Entered By : Matt
Thubron
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NHS Sunderland CCG Strategic Risk Register

09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

diagnosis and treatment under
the cancer standards.

taken to improve
performance.

Matt Thubron

(5). Quarterly
26/03/2019

CCG Cancer Task and Finish group chaired
by the Medical Director with representation
from key providers and stakeholders looking
at the implementation of the 5YFV.
• Gaps in control: none

Reporting in place to Executive
Committee
• Gaps in assurance: none

01/11/2018

31/03/2019

Matt Thubron

Additional
diagnostics
capacity for
urological pathways
currently in the
process of being
secured by CHS
including additional
workforce.

Progress: 
Meeting with CHS to
discuss action plan in
place in the trust.
Diagnostic pressures
continue so
discussions to take
place in the CCG
around additional
support which could
be given to help
improve performance.

Date Entered :
22/11/2018 12:01
Entered By : Matt
Thubron

01/03/2019

30/06/2019

                              
CHS NHSFT
actively recruiting
consultants to
address short fall.

Progress: 
Report to the Cancer
Group by Head of
Cancer Services
highlighted
recruitment on-going
and likely recruitment
in place for Q1
2019/20.

Date Entered :
26/03/2019 09:24
Entered By : Matt
Thubron

2130 There is a risk that the CCG
fails to deliver the national
expectation that no more
patients are waiting as at the
end of March'20 than were
waiting at the end of March'19.
The national expectation is that
the CCG's waiting list in
secondary care should be lower
than the March'2018 baseline
position.  The implications of not
meeting this expectation are
reputational and could affect the
CCG's annual rating and lead to
additional scrutiny from the
regulators due to increased
waiting lists.

3 3Scott Watson

Matt Thubron

3 4CO2b
Maintain
Performance
Targets

Risk created and
update on additional
capacity after STSFT
contract meeting.
Further specific
meetings now being
arranged to focus on
delivery.

Matt Thubron

(4). 2 Monthly
07/05/2019

12 9Additional finance set aside to commission
additional activity as part of the 2019/20
finance plan and contract negotiations
• Gaps in control: Additional capacity for
some specialties may not be available in the
system e.g. lack of capacity in Independent
Sector

Reporting to Executive Committee and
Governing Body.  Bi-monthly contract
meetings and monthly performance
meetings in place with STSFT.
• Gaps in assurance: None

Routine assurance to
NHS England.

Additional capacity secured for some
specialties in STSFT
• Gaps in control: Likely not all capacity is
available due to changes in consultant
pensions which will impact on available
clinician capacity.

Contract review meetings in place
• Gaps in assurance: None

01/04/2019

31/05/2019

Matt Thubron

Contracting Team
to work with STSFT
to understand the
required capacity to
reduce the waiting
list.  Action plan
developed and
monitored in
contract review
groups and
performance
meetings.

Progress: 
Specific meetings set
up to discuss action
plan for additional
capacity on site at
STSFT.  STSFT
discussing with I.S.
providers ability to
sub-contract some
work to reduce WL.

Date Entered :
07/05/2019 12:48
Entered By : Matt
Thubron

07/05/2019

07/05/2019

Matt Thubron

Detailed review of
specific areas of the
current waiting list
to ensure
compliance to
national reporting
standards.

643 There is a risk of deliver of the
18 week referral to treatment
(RTT) standards will not be
delivered due to increased
demand and a lack of capacity
to deliver the standards.
There is a risk to delivery of 18
week access and NHS
constitutional rights for
treatment.  Patients are waiting

3 2David Gallagher

Scott Watson

4 3CO2b
Maintain
Performance
Targets

Additional activity
carried out by CDDFT
and CHS NHSFT in
Q4 to reduce the
number of patients on
an incomplete
pathway.

Matt Thubron

(5). Quarterly
26/03/2019

12 6 4 - £100k
- £1m

Monthly monitoring in place via Contract
Review Group and performance review
group.
• Gaps in control: none

No internal assurance identified Weekly reports received
to provide overview of
progress toward delivery.

Formal contract variation - mandated by
NHSE
• Gaps in control: none

No internal assurance identified Provides transparency
regarding additional
activity undertaken
versus that which is 'core
contract'.  Therefore

01/02/2017

31/03/2019

Matt Thubron

CCG led working
group established
to review current
pressures in
Dermatology linked
to workforce
shortages and also
increased demand
into secondary
care.

Progress: 
Clinical model in the
process of being
designed with support
from clinical leads and
CDDFT.  Initial
discussions have
taken place around
the scope of the
review and with the
community team and
further discussions
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09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

longer than the constitutional
standard of 18 weeks.

Improvements being
seen in a number of
specialties, focus now
on 2019/20.

Matt Thubron

(5). Quarterly
26/03/2019

CCG has visibility on
additional activity being
undertaken to reduce
waiting times.

additional funding provided by NHSE to
address issues emerging in Orthopaedics
• Gaps in control: currently lack of clarity in
relation to the size of the issue (i.e. the
number of patients who may breach)

No internal assurance identified Regular 'tracker'
reporting to be put in
place by
NHSE/CHSFT/CCG to
ensure that the additional
funding addresses issue.

Action Plan for Orthopaedics Recieved by
CHS and accepted by Provider
Management Group
• Gaps in control: none

Action plan  reviewed by Performance
Review Group and progress
monitored by Provider Management
Group.  Formal escalation process to
Contract Review Group in place.
• Gaps in assurance: none

NHS England released new guidance that
removes 2 of the 3 indicators.  COntract
Variations need to be put in place
• Gaps in control: none

No internal assurance identified

Community Dermatology transformation
project initiated as part of the Local Health
Economy plan with will involve development
of dermatology pathways and an enhanced
community service in Sunderland.
• Gaps in control: Consultant capacity is a
pressure to feed into the work and a risk to
the model

Local Health Economy plan which will
feed into new governance structures.
Also fed into Exec discussions.
• Gaps in assurance: none

around refining and
agreeing the scope of
the model are in the
process of being
arranged.

Date Entered :
22/11/2018 11:47
Entered By : Matt
Thubron
-----------
Project initiated with
FT lead.  Initial
discussions with
CDDFT who support
the work and clinical
lead and managerial
lead in place.  Now
key part of the LHE
plan.

Date Entered :
23/08/2018 10:05
Entered By : Matt
Thubron
-----------
New project steering
group set up as part
of Sunderland and
South Tyneside
system plan to look to
develop a more robust
community model and
build on current
community service.
Performance
pressures at CDDFT
have subsided but
work needs to be
done to ensure
patients are seen in
the most appropriate
setting and workforce
is resilient.

Date Entered :
14/05/2018 15:16
Entered By : Matt
Thubron

01/10/2018

01/04/2018

Matt Thubron

Implementation of a
single point of
access for
orthopaedic
referrals from
general practice.
Establishment of a
multi-agency
working group to
implement the
SPoA to reduce
demand into
secondary care and
improve waiting
times and
outcomes for
patients.

Progress: 
Revised delivery date
01/04/2019 due to
need to recruit in
SIMS.  Comms plan
in place and being
ramped up throughout
March 19 ready for go
live.

Date Entered :
26/03/2019 09:26
Entered By : Matt
Thubron
-----------
Mobilisation meetings
between STFT and
CHS in place
including working
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09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

group to develop
comms and
engagement plans as
well as a staffing
model for the
additional activity in
the service.  

Date Entered :
22/11/2018 11:55
Entered By : Matt
Thubron

16/01/2019

31/03/2019

Matt Thubron

Secure additional
funding to allow
additional activity to
be carried out in
key pressure areas
at CDDFT and CHS
NHSFT.

Progress: 
Activity carried out in
Q4 2018/19 and
showing an improved
position for the CCG
and CHS NHSFT.

Date Entered :
26/03/2019 09:28
Entered By : Matt
Thubron

- Sunderland CCG: Corporate Governance

2021 There is a risk that the CCG will
not meet its duties and
responsibilities in relation to
information governance. 
As a result of the variable
operational delivery and
strategic advice being received
as part of the information
governance service line
arrangement with NECS, there
is a lack of assurance that the
CCG is proactively managing
the information governance
agenda to meet all the
necessary requirements.

3 2Scott Watson

Deborah Cornell

3 3CO1. Ensure
The CCG
Meets Its
Public
Accountability
Duties

No change

Deborah Cornell

(4). 2 Monthly
10/01/2019

9 6 3 - £10k -
£100k

Service line review meetings for strategic
support and operational delivery
• Gaps in control: Service line meetings not
taking place regularly

CCG head of corporate affairs
oversight and review
• Gaps in assurance: Performance
data against agreed deliverables as
part of service line arrangements not
regularly received.

Information governance toolkit management
and audit
• Gaps in control: Toolkit review process for
2018/19 not yet established by NECS

Head of corporate affairs oversight
and scrutiny
• Gaps in assurance: Progress
towards meeting 2018/19 toolkit
requirements and areas of focus not
clear

Positive outcome from
AuditOne following audit
of 2017/18 toolkit.

09/08/2018

31/12/2018

Liane Cotterill

Improvement plan
in place to address
areas of concern in
relation to the
service line delivery

09/08/2018

30/09/2018

Liane Cotterill

Process to be
clarified and leads
identified for areas
of focus

1920 There is risk that the CCG will
not be able to meet the
requirements of the new
General Data Protection
Regulation. 
This may result in the CCG not
meeting its public accountability
duties for information
governance.

3 2Scott Watson

Deborah Cornell

3 3CO1. Ensure
The CCG
Meets Its
Public
Accountability
Duties

Progress continues,
no material change

Deborah Cornell

(4). 2 Monthly
10/01/2019

9 6 3 - £10k -
£100k

Information governance toolkit submission
and supporting process
• Gaps in control: none

Regular meetings with the NECS
information governance lead to review
evidence required.  All required
evidence identified and submitted as
part of the toolkit self-assessment
requirements.
• Gaps in assurance: none

AuditOne undertook an
audit of a sample of the
toolkit evidence and
reported a positive
outcome (do not give an
assurance rating now for
this audit).

Oversight by the Executive Committee via
quarterly corporate affairs reports
• Gaps in control: none

Reports and minutes from each
committee meeting
• Gaps in assurance: none

Data Protection Officer role for the CCG
• Gaps in control: none

DPO role now clarified - LC within
NECS IG team to undertake on behalf
of the CCG
• Gaps in assurance: none

17/11/2017

31/01/2019

Liane Cotterill

Action plan in place
to address
additional actions
identified in the
GDPR

Progress: 
Work continues to
progress

Date Entered :
10/01/2019 11:30
Entered By : Wendy
Marley
-----------
Majority of actions
completed by 25 May
2018.  Work
underway to complete
the outstanding
actions around
locally-held contracts
and information asset
register.  Anticipated
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09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

Information Asset Register template
amended to comply with GDPR
• Gaps in control: none

IAR updated with IAOs and IAAs.  To
be reviewed at Executive Committee
on 6/11/2018
• Gaps in assurance: none

this will be done
within the next few
months. 

Date Entered :
26/07/2018 09:16
Entered By : Deborah
Cornell
-----------
Work continues to
progress to implement
the necessary actions
to ensure the CCG
meets the new
legislative
requirements by May
2018. 

Date Entered :
28/03/2018 15:45
Entered By : Deborah
Cornell

18/07/2018

31/01/2019

Wendy Marley

Review of all locally
held contracts
within the CCG to
ensure they are
GDPR compliant

Progress: 
No updates currently

Date Entered :
10/01/2019 11:29
Entered By : Wendy
Marley
-----------
Still awaiting
confirmation that
contract variation has
ben applied to Meds
Opt contracts.

Date Entered :
31/10/2018 11:08
Entered By : Wendy
Marley
-----------
Finance sent through
a comprehensive list
which has been
updated with
information from other
teams.  Very few
contracts hold PID.
Further checks
underway to clarify
whether 34 smaller
contracts have had
contract variation
applied.

Date Entered :
24/09/2018 15:05
Entered By : Wendy
Marley

1719 Sustainability in terms of IT,
workforce and infrastructure 
There is the risk that the CCG
does not have mechanisms in
place to ensure it is sufficiently
sustainable in relation to IT,
workforce and infrastructure

4 1David Gallagher

Deborah Cornell

4 3CO1. Ensure
The CCG
Meets Its
Public
Accountability
Duties

No changes

Deborah Cornell

(6). 6 Monthly
10/01/2019

12 4 5 - Over
£1m

Associate Director of OD and Workforce
and supporting in-house team
• Gaps in control: none

Development programme for
Governing Body and its key
sub-committees
• Gaps in assurance: none

External development
programmes with
facilitation

In-house Project Management Office team
• Gaps in control: none

Project management toolkit and
supporting process 
Dedicated project leads
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09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

• Gaps in assurance: none

Business Continuity Plan (BCP)
• Gaps in control: none

Annual review process
Desktop review exercises
Governing Body review 
Support from NECS governance team
IT disaster recovery plan included in
the CCG's BCP
• Gaps in assurance: none

EPRR assessment
Audit review

NECS service line agreement in place for IT
support
• Gaps in control: none

Monthly meeting of service line leads
Process to manage feedback on
performance (survey)
Escalation process in place  
IT disaster recovery plan included in
the CCG's BCP
• Gaps in assurance: none

Service auditor reports

- Sunderland CCG: Finance

1641 Risk of in-year pressures due to
CHC Care Home fee rate
negotiations.
There is a risk of Care Homes
in Sunderland applying for a
judicial review of fee rates or
homes no longer accepting
patients for CHC if the CCG
does not follow due process for
establishing the fee rate for
CHC each financial year.

4 3David Chandler

Tarryn Lake

4 3CO2a.
Maintain
Financial
Control

Reviewed & updated.

Tarryn Lake

(3). Monthly
08/04/2019

12 12 5 - Over
£1m

Continued dialogue and negotiations being
carried out with Care North East Providers
to establish and agree CHC fee rates for
Sunderland through lead commissioning
arrangements for CHC led by Sunderland
City Council.
• Gaps in control: None identified at present.

Project Director for Joint
Commissioning Team currently
providing internal assurance to
Executive Team on negotiation
progress as part of updates provided
on CHC transformation.
• Gaps in assurance: None identified
at present

None identified at
present.

Process to set CHC care home fees in line
with Monitor (NHS Improvement) guidance
on setting local prices where there is no
national price carried out to provide
evidence base on fees set.
• Gaps in control: None identified - local
process now in place & operating.

None at present.
• Gaps in assurance: None at present.

None at present.

1642 Transforming Care Financial
Impact
There is a risk of a significant
financial liability occuring for the
CCG from the LD Transforming
Care work stream. This is not
currently understood at an
organisational level within the
North East patch work which is
being undertaken and as such it
has not been possible as yet for
the CCG to incorporate within
its Strategic Financial Plan any
possible liability which may
occur.

3 3David Chandler

Tarryn Lake

4 3CO2a.
Maintain
Financial
Control

controls & action log
reviewed - no change.

Tarryn Lake

(5). Quarterly
14/03/2019

12 9 4 - £100k
- £1m

LD Transforming Care Board in place to
oversee developments at a regional level
within the North East with CCG
representation which includes regional
finance working groups in its structure.
• Gaps in control: Links to organisational
financial governance and planning
processes.

Updates provided on workstream by
management lead through project
management toolkit.
• Gaps in assurance: Assurance
regarding future financial impact and
funding not currently apparent.

LD Transforming Care
Board reports to Chief
Officers forum.

Sunderland CCG LD Lead currently
mapping out resource required with finance
lead in order to deliver transforming care
programme and reporting to Executive
Committee on requirements.
• Gaps in control: None identified.

Internal reporting required to CCG
Executive Committee
• Gaps in assurance: Overall LD plan
not as yet developed and approved by
CCG Executive.

External reporting to
Local Implementation
Group and to LD
Transforming Care Board

22/06/2018

30/09/2018

Linda Reiling

CCG Lead to
produce detailed
LD strategy / plan
for approval by
CCG Executive
including detail of
financial
implications.

Progress: 
CCG lead has
returned from long
term absence.
Business case under
development for
approval by Executive
Committee. 

Date Entered :
14/03/2019 13:59
Entered By : Tarryn
Lake
-----------
Awaiting return of
action owner from
long term absence.
Expect completion in
Q4 of 2018/19.

Date Entered :
11/09/2018 12:16
Entered By : Tarryn
Lake
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Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

1906 Delivery of productivity plans for
2018/19 and 2019/20.
Failure to delivery productivity
plan requirements for 2018/19
of £12m resulting in an inability
for the CCG to meet its
statutory financial duties.

3 2David Chandler

Tarryn Lake

4 3CO2a.
Maintain
Financial
Control

controls reviewed .

Tarryn Lake

(4). 2 Monthly
21/02/2019

12 6 3 - £10k -
£100k

Sustainability Delivery Group (SDG)
providing assurance to Executive
Committee on development and delivery of
productivity plans.
• Gaps in control: None identified.

Assurance on delivery of productivity
plans reported from SDG to Executive
Committee via Finance Reports on a
monthly basis.
• Gaps in assurance: None identified.

Independent assurance
carried out by NHS
England on delivery of
productivity plans.

Sustainability Delivery Group (SDG) chaired
by Chief Officer meets monthly to review
productivity plan delivery with appropriate
leads within the CCG to identify risks &
mitigations required to ensure delivery of
productivity plans
• Gaps in control: None

Reports provided to SDG through use
of project toolkit within CCG on
progress of schemes on critical path to
provide assurance on delivery of
plans.
• Gaps in assurance: None

None

1709 Changes in NHS Property
Services billing policies agreed
with the Department of Health
that the CCG will incur
additional recurrent pressures
as well as causing distress to
member practices and other
providers in the health
economy. 
As a result of the Department of
Health agreeing an amended
charging policy for market rent,
there is the risk that the CCG
will incur additional recurrent
pressure of £3.9m.  NHSPS has
outlined a potential recurrent
pressure for the CCG of £2.5m.
A change in how sessional
booking space is charged also
exposes the CCG to potentially
a further £1.4m of financial risk.

3 2David Chandler

Tarryn Lake

4 3CO2a.
Maintain
Financial
Control

action plan updated.
residual risk reduced.

Tarryn Lake

(4). 2 Monthly
21/02/2019

12 6 3 - £10k -
£100k

Invoices being held by CCG and formally
notified to NHSPS as disputed until issue is
resolve to prevent loss of funds.
• Gaps in control: None

Invoices held & documentation
retained of formal dispute to NHSPS.
• Gaps in assurance: Potential
escalation of issue within NHS E & DH
for mediation & potential ongoing
liability for CCG if unsuccessful in
disputing charges.

None

Issues with billing being formally escalated
to Chief Officers Forum via CCG CFOs.
DDES CFO taking lead to liaise with NHS E
on formal dispute and potential resolutions.
• Gaps in control: None

Included within financial reports to
Executive Committee
• Gaps in assurance: None

Formal escalation of
issues through
governance structure of
Chief Officers Forum &
NHS E. To be reported in
updates to Executive
Committee on risk &
mitigation strategy.

03/01/2017

31/05/2017

Tarryn Lake

CCG finance team
to work with
NHSPS finance
team to understand
in detail financial
implications of
changes in charges
and potential
mitigations which
could be put in
place.

Progress: 
CCG has reviewed
with NHSPS the 'true
up' figures and
identified issues
which have now been
resolved.  The final
figures now show a
financial benefit to the
CCG against the
expected charges for
2017/18.  The CCG is
in the process of
seeking final
resolution of billing for
2017/18. 

Date Entered :
21/02/2019 10:13
Entered By : Tarryn
Lake
-----------
CCG has received
'true up' figures which
has resulted in a
financial impact of
circa £400k additional
costs in relation to
2017/18.  The CCG is
disputing the charges
and awaiting further
back up from NHSPS
to justify charges. 

Date Entered :
07/01/2019 09:43
Entered By : Tarryn
Lake
-----------
Communications
received that 'true up'
delayed due to
system issues in
NHSPS.  Expecting
true up in late
2018/19. 

Date Entered :
22/11/2018 17:33
Entered By : Tarryn
Lake
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Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

2020 Risk of providers increasing
activity and costs to meet
Sustainability and
Transformation Funding (STF)
targets.
Providers are required to meet
activity targets in order to
access funding from the
Provider Sustainability Fund
(PSF) in 2018/19. There is a
risk that providers will increase
their activity above planned
levels for 2018/19. Where
contracts are still working on a
cost and volume basis (i.e.
PbR) this will transfer a financial
pressure to the CCG.

3 2David Chandler

Tarryn Lake

3 4CO2a.
Maintain
Financial
Control

controls reviewed - no
change.

Tarryn Lake

(5). Quarterly
14/03/2019

12 6 3 - £10k -
£100k

Regular contract management meetings
with providers and contract monitoring
within the CCG to ensure that financial
impact of activity increases are incorporated
within the financial position where contracts
are on a cost and volume basis.
• Gaps in control: None

Reporting to Executive Committee on
financial position based on latest
activity information available.
• Gaps in assurance: None

None

Block contract arrangements are in place
with main acute providers such as City
Hospitals Sunderland and Gateshead
Foundation Trust in order to mitigate against
increased financial pressure for the CCG
due to activity increases.
• Gaps in control: None

Contract in place on block contract
basis. Reporting on underlying
position on contracts carried out to
Executive Committee and Provider
Management Group.
• Gaps in assurance: None

None

649 Risk of in year financial
overspend on CCG programme
and running cost budgets as a
result of unknown pressures
arising in year.
If this risk occurs the CCG will
fail its statutory duty and be
subject to a section 19 report
from the CCG's external
auditors to the Secretary of
State for Health.

2 2David Chandler

Tarryn Lake

4 3CO2a.
Maintain
Financial
Control

Reviewed to ensure
controls are still
operating effectively &
there are no gaps in
assurance.

Tarryn Lake

(5). Quarterly
21/02/2019

12 4 3 - £10k -
£100k

Process to review financial postion and
variances to budget on a monthly basis and
agree forecast outturn with Budget
Managers including scenarios to identify
financial risks and action plans to improve
performance. Financial position reviewed
with both Chief Finance Officer & Chief
Officer on a monthly basis to identify
financial risks & mititgation plans. 

Achievement of Productivity plans are
monitored in the Sustainability Delivery
Group (SDG) chaired by the Chief Officer.
The SDG provides assurance to the
Executive Committee on delivery of the
productivity plans.  

The CCG has contingency plans in plan to
mitigate risk of an overspend and currently
holds a 0.5% contigency (£2.6m) to manage
unexpected pressures. 

Financial position reported to Executive
Committee and Governing Body on a
monthly basis.   

• Gaps in control: None identified.

Monthly reporting to Executive
Committee and Governing Body to
provide assurance on delivery of the in
year financial position with risks
identified along with mitigations.
• Gaps in assurance: none

Assurance meetings with
NHS England to agree
performance on a
quarterly basis. Monthly
review carried out by
NHS England on
reported performance.

1832 Risk of in-year underspends.
There is a risk in any given
financial year that the CCG
could have an underspend
greater than the planned
cumulative surplus and
effectively 'lose' the resource
from the local health economy.
This would be a lost opportunity
to invest non recurrent
resources into the local health
economy.

2 2David Chandler

Tarryn Lake

2 3CO2a.
Maintain
Financial
Control

Reviewed and
residual risk reduced.

Tarryn Lake

(5). Quarterly
14/03/2019

6 4 4 - £100k
- £1m

Process to review financial postion and
variances to budget on a monthly basis and
agree forecast outturn with Budget
Managers including scenarios to identify
financial risks and action plans to improve
performance. Financial position reviewed
with both Chief Finance Officer & Chief
Officer on a monthly basis to identify
financial risks & mitigation plans.
• Gaps in control: None identified.

Monthly reporting to Executive
Committee and Governing Body to
provide assurance on delivery of the in
year financial position with risks
identified along with mitigations.
• Gaps in assurance: None identified.

Assurance meetings with
NHS England to agree
performance on a
quarterly basis. Monthly
review carried out by
NHS England on
reported performance.

- Sunderland CCG: Nursing, Quality + Safety

Page 8SLAND RR1



NHS Sunderland CCG Strategic Risk Register

09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

1944 Eligibility for Continuing
Healthcare (CHC)
The planned reduction in
patients eligible for CHC could
put financial pressure on the
Local Authority (LA) as the
funding of individual social care
packages will not be met by
CHC.

4 5Ann Fox

David Britton

4 5CO5. Identify
And Deliver
The CCG's
Key Strategic
Priorities Controls and

assurances updated

David Britton

(4). 2 Monthly
08/04/2019

20 20Managed through the Sustainability and
Delivery Group (SDG).
• Gaps in control: SDG will only look at how
the Care packages programme is making
the planned efficiency savings and will not
necessarily be cognisant of any impact on
the LA.  This potentially will only happen
when LA highlight any increase of funding
from their perspective to the CCG.

Monthly monitoring of data to identify
any significant reduction in patients
referred for CHC who have been
identified as not being eligible.
Quarterly reconciliation on funded
care between the CCG and LA will
also identify any significant increase of
funding by the LA.
• Gaps in assurance: none

2070 Quality and safety within
Primary Care (General Practice)
As a result of no agreed system
and resource being in place to
manage shared care between
Trusts and General Practice
there is a risk that patient care
could be compromised and
potentially result in patient harm

3 4Ann Fox

Sue Goulding

3 4CO3.
Maintain And
Improve The
Quality And
Safety Of
CCG
Commission
ed Services

New risk added

Janet Farline

(4). 2 Monthly
22/02/2019

12 12 3 - £10k -
£100k

Being monitored within Transfer of Shared
Care Group
• Gaps in control: Audit by Pharmicus has
identified a number of monitoring
requirements

Monitored within the Transfer of
Shared Care Group and Local Quality
in Primary Group & action plan
developed.
• Gaps in assurance: Not known - full
audit to be undertaken

Pharmicus

2126 Mental Capacity Act
Assessments
Failure to adhere to legislation
and statutory duty as mental
capacity act assessment is not
being completed in appropriate
cases by external body (City
Hospitals Sunderland) prior to
referral for Continuing
Healthcare assessment
process.

3 3Ann Fox

Victoria McGurk

3 4CO1. Ensure
The CCG
Meets Its
Public
Accountability
Duties

Risk created

Victoria McGurk

(3). Monthly
01/04/2019

12 9 2 - £0k -
£10k

SCCG own the Continuing Healthcare
process but external bodies have
responsibility to co-operate with the process
therefore therefore this is a shared risk with
the South Tyneside and Sunderland
Foundation Trust
• Gaps in control: Hospital not currently
fulfilling responsibility within legal process
regarding mental capacity act in relation to
referrals for continuing healthcare
assessment process

SCCG own the Continuing Healthcare
process
CHC Lead Received legal advice
confirming position on when Mental
capacity assessments should be
completed in terms of initial referral for
process
CHC team are completing Mental
Capacity Act assessment prior to DST
Initial meeting between head of CHC
and Complex care and Director of
Nursing (at City Hospitals Sunderland
at that time) 
Contacted South Tees FT as aware
they have effective process and
shared this with Director of Nursing at
CHS
• Gaps in assurance: none

Director of Nursing at
City Hospitals
Sunderland will arrange
to meet with counterpart
at south tees
Director Of Nursing will
liaise with new lead
managing the discharge
team within the merged
South Tyneside and CHS
Trust

Transformation Plan under Program 3 of All
Together better Alliance
• Gaps in control: Ensuring process change
Ensuring that the hospital can monitor
correct completion in line with mental
capacity act

Bring to program 3 as part of ATBA
• Gaps in assurance: none

Director of Nursing at
South Tyneside and
Sunderland FT also the
Senior responsible
clinician for program 3 of
ATBA

1726 Impact on quality of the hospital
collaboration work across South
Tyneside and Sunderland 
As a result of the clinical service
reviews as part of the hospital
collaboration work, there is a
risk this will impact on the
quality of services that the CCG
commissions

4 2Ann Fox

Sue Goulding

4 3CO3.
Maintain And
Improve The
Quality And
Safety Of
CCG
Commission
ed Services

Risk themes, controls
and action plan
reviewed

Janet Farline

(5). Quarterly
22/02/2019

12 8 5 - Over
£1m

Clinical service reviews involve relevant
clinicians and CCG quality team
• Gaps in control: The implementation of the
new pathway to excellence has been put on
hold whilst awaiting the outcome of the
challenges on the decisions made by the
SCCG and STCCG, to the Health Minister. 

The changes to Path to Excellence Phase 1
have now been approved and are underway

CCG quality team representation
• Gaps in assurance: none

Clinical input into
proposals for service
change

South Tyneside and Sunderland Healthcare
Governance Group

Director representation from the CCG
• Gaps in assurance: Clarity on

Representation of all key
partners, including

26/01/2018

28/09/2019

                              
The
information/reports
presented to QRG
are monitored to
ensure there is
progress in
combining the
information from
both Trusts.

The impact of the
changes in the
delivery of care
agreed by the
CCGs will be

Progress: 
The impact on quality
of not being able to
implement the
changes in service
delivery ( eg the
stroke pathway)
because of
challenges to the
decision is being
monitored at QRG.

Date Entered :
26/07/2018 11:39
Entered By : Sue
Goulding
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NHS Sunderland CCG Strategic Risk Register

09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

• Gaps in control: none potential impact on quality is being fed
back into the CCG's quality team

clinical input

Well established governance and assurance
processes through QRGs, QSC, contracting
and performance (COG), Executive to
Executive meetings and NHSE oversight.
• Gaps in control: none identified

Quality in commissioned services is
reported to the QSC
• Gaps in assurance: none

Governance structures,
established reporting
mechanisms and flows of
assurance.  NHSE
through CCG Assurance
process and oversight of
acute alliance
development work

monitored via the
QRG meetings. 

The impact will
continued to be
monitored via the
QRG

Path to Excellence
2 consultation has
not started

-----------
The joint QRG is
continuing. Some
quality
reports/information
are combined e.g.
quality risk and
assurance report,
however some
information is still
reported separately.
There is a plan to
combine all
information in the near
future.

Date Entered :
26/07/2018 11:36
Entered By : Sue
Goulding
-----------
Work ongoing by
Trusts to combine
reports

Date Entered :
18/04/2018 16:54
Entered By : Sue
Goulding

1367 Risk that the CCG is not
meeting its statutory
responsibilities around
legislative framework for
deprivation of liberty.
As a result of a Supreme Court
judgement on deprivation of
liberty in March 2014 the CCG
must ensure the appropriate
legislative framework is used to
authorise deprivation of liberty.
There is a risk that the CCG is
not meeting its statutory
responsibilities when
commissioning care and this
could result in financial liability
and/or the need for increased
resources to ensure appropriate
applications to court

2 3Ann Fox

Richard Scott

3 3CO1. Ensure
The CCG
Meets Its
Public
Accountability
Duties

Controls remain valid,
new risk will be added
t the register to reflect
the need to plan for
the implementation of
LPS legislation

Richard Scott

(5). Quarterly
09/04/2019

9 6 3 - £10k -
£100k

A domestic DoLS Policy is being
drafted by NECs which will contain
an action plan for individual cases
and provide guidance on the
process to be followed. Agreement
needed between the CCG and LA
to ensure our s75 arrangements
cover this workstream

• Gaps in control: currently only in
draft format, agreement not reached
re 75

No internal assurance identified

Options papers being developed regarding
MCA lead role and the arrangements for the
CCG to manage their statutory functions
regarding DoLS
• Gaps in control: No agreement yet
regarding future arrangements and the CCG
is reliant on the LA at present to identify
numbers of potential assessments needed

Executive Team to review options
once papers completed.
• Gaps in assurance: not yet complete

meetings taking place to scope number of
patients/clients this may involve and to
engage the continuing health care
commissioners mental health
commissioners, leads and the Local
authority.  
An action plan is to be developed with the
local authority re the strategy for managing
this and to clarify responsibilities and court
application processes
• Gaps in control: Work not yet completed

Joint work with local authority who are
currently dealing with the court
applications.
• Gaps in assurance: scoping not yet
completed and future arrangements
not yet agreed.

Local authority currently
dealing with the court
applications
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NHS Sunderland CCG Strategic Risk Register

09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

Agreed risk to be transferred to
commissioning team
• Gaps in control: none

No internal assurance identified

Scoping has been completed and the CCG
in collaboration with the LA have produced
an options paper regarding next steps.  This
will be presented to the CCG Exec in
January 2017; however there are
arrangements in place to manage
judicial/domestic DoLS
DoLS policy has been agreed
• Gaps in control: Current approach may not
be compliant with guidance and legislation.
Options paper has not yet been considered.

Exec Lead for MCA is in place, with
operational support from Designated
Nurse Safeguarding Adults.
Established links with commissioning
team & MCA & DoLS is reported
through to Quality Safety Risk
Committee
• Gaps in assurance: Not fully
compliant with existing/current
legislation (although this is currently
under review)

Established
arrangements with LA
and oversight from the
Sunderland
Safeguarding Adults
Board

MCA options Paper has been approved by
CCG Exec Team
• Gaps in control: Option ensures partial
compliance

Safeguarding team will report
progress to QRSC
• Gaps in assurance: CCG/LA
approach improves compliance but is
not fully compliant

reporting arrangements
established between LA
and CCG

MCA Options paper shared with Exec and
recommended option accepted
• Gaps in control: Some areas of non
compliance but managed as part of a
planned approach

Reporting arrangements agreed
between the LA and CCG
• Gaps in assurance: none

The CCG has a domestic DoLS Policy in
place.  The CCG and LA have an agreed
approach to the management of domestic
DoLS which needs to be set out in the s75
Agreement which is currently being agreed
between the CCG and LA.
• Gaps in control: Section 75 agreement
under development

DoLS Policy in place
• Gaps in assurance: s75 agreement
not yet complete

Reporting form LA that
DoLs have been set in
place for CHC cases

- Sunderland CCG: Planning & Reform

1843 To have effectively
commissioned the MCP by April
2019
The MCP has a scope of
£340m and is likely to be a
novel contract which will attract
a lot of local,  regional and
national attention and be
subject to the new assurance
process for such contracts
(ISAP process).  This is a
complex and ambitious intention
in a very tight time frame.   The
statutory and new assurance
process requirements increase
the risk that the MCP may not
be in place by April 2019.

3 4Scott Watson

Penny Davison

4 4CO5. Identify
And Deliver
The CCG's
Key Strategic
Priorities As the Alliance

Executive is now
established the
programme register
needs to be reviewed
and any corporate
risks identified . To be
done before next
review date

Penny Davison

(4). 2 Monthly
02/11/2018

16 12MCP Commissioner Development Group
meeting weekly with key internal leads and
LA lead and specialist support
• Gaps in control: none

Regular updates to the Governing
Body development sessions and key
milestones e.g. approach to
procurement taken to Executive
Committee/Gov Body for approval.
• Gaps in assurance: none

Integrated Support and
Assurance process -
national requirement with
early engagement
meeting and then 3
checkpoints throughout
the process

Sunderland Senior Leadership Group - both
commissioners and providers who have
signed up to a statement of intent agreed
with their respective boards to explore the
feasibility of securing one entity to deliver
the MCP.
• Gaps in control: none

As per control 1
• Gaps in assurance: none

As per control 1

Development of the Strategic and Outline
Business Case for an MCP by end of June
2017
• Gaps in control: none

Agreed by Governing body in
September 2017.
• Gaps in assurance: none

As per control 1

31/01/2017

31/03/2018

Penny Davison

To ensure a live
critical path with
supporting
milestones and
activities is in place
with leads and pmo
support and regular
reporting and
escalation of
issues/risks to map
and track the
activities needed to
secure the MCP by
April 2019

Progress: 
The Governing Body
made a decision to
secure the MCP Via a
collaboration
agreement using an
Alliance Agreement. A
new milestone plan
will be produced for
assurance to
governing Body by
31st March 2018. This
new plan will require a
risk assessment. 

Date Entered :
29/03/2018 12:14
Entered By : Penny
Davison
-----------
Market and Public
Engagement exercise
concluded.
Commissioning
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NHS Sunderland CCG Strategic Risk Register

09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

strategy and
Prospectus to go to
Governing Body on
the 27th February
2018

Date Entered :
22/02/2018 10:05
Entered By : Penny
Davison
-----------
The Governing Body
approved the OBC in
September 2017 to
progress to secure a
health based MCP. A
process of Market and
Public engagement
was approved by
Governing Body to
take place between
3rd November 2017
and December 2017. 

Date Entered :
21/12/2017 15:26
Entered By : Penny
Davison

2049 Delivery of integrated urgent
care/ New 111 service
As a result of the
implementation of the integrated
urgent care service (new 111
service), there is a risk that the
positive anticipated impact on
urgent care  presentations
might not be realised, resulting
in a detrimental impact on the
predicted flows used for the
urgent care strategy

3 3Ann Fox

Natalie McClary

3 4CO3.
Maintain And
Improve The
Quality And
Safety Of
CCG
Commission
ed Services

12 9Regional discussions are taking place to
address CCG concerns
• Gaps in control: No outcome from the
discussion

No internal assurance identified

Performance is monitored via the LEADB
and so any issue which manifests will be
identified quickly
• Gaps in control: none

No internal assurance identified

1884 GP engagement with the
development of a MCP Alliance
collaboration agreement
GP's will be required to engage
and support the development of
a MCP Alliance Collaboration
Agreement.  If GP's do not
engage in this agreement the
CCG will find it difficult to deliver
the pathways and required
savings.

3 3Clare Nesbit

Jackie Spencer

4 4CO8. Primary
Care
Commissioni
ng

controls and
assurances have
been reviewed

Jackie Spencer

(4). 2 Monthly
04/01/2019

16 9 5 - Over
£1m

MCP Commissioning Development Group
oversight group in place with regional
support
• Gaps in control: No Gaps

Representation from key members of
staff on the group plus regional
support

• Gaps in assurance: No Gaps

Regular information to practices including
presentations at Locality Meetings
• Gaps in control: No Gaps

All initial locality meetings have now
taken place and the Q&A has gone
out to all practices which has proved
valuable
• Gaps in assurance: No Gaps

Practices engaged with
the development process

Development of a Integration/Collaboration
Group to progress the development of the
agreement
• Gaps in control: No Gaps

CCG commissioners can now sit on
this group
Group meeting on a monthly basis
• Gaps in assurance: Not all localities
currently represented

This group has
representation from both
commissioner and
providers

31/07/2017

31/01/2019

Jackie Spencer

Continuous
Engagement with
practices via CCG
locality meetings
and SGPA
meetings

Progress: 
General practice
programme has
appointed an SRO
and and SRC.  The
integration group have
agreed a draft
structure which is
currently being written
up into a mobilisation
plan.

Date Entered :
04/01/2019 09:26
Entered By : Jackie
Spencer
-----------
Two meetings have
taken place, group is
now called Integration
Steering Group

Date Entered :
17/08/2018 10:35
Entered By : Jackie
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NHS Sunderland CCG Strategic Risk Register

09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

Spencer
-----------
First meeting of the
Collaboration group
set for June, wider
update at June MCP
Event

Date Entered :
24/05/2018 15:04
Entered By : Jackie
Spencer

01/07/2018

30/11/2018

Jackie Spencer

Work with localities
to gain fair
representation

Progress: 
the integration group
now has
representation from
each locality

Date Entered :
04/01/2019 09:27
Entered By : Jackie
Spencer

1723 Primary care sustainability in
relation to workforce, funding
and practice collaboration 
There is a risk that primary care
may not be sustainable in the
medium term in relation to
workforce, funding and practice
collaboration

3 3Clare Nesbit

Jackie Spencer

4 3CO8. Primary
Care
Commissioni
ng

Reviewed controls
and assurances

Jackie Spencer

(5). Quarterly
22/02/2019

12 9 5 - Over
£1m

Primary care budget defined and allocated
• Gaps in control: No Gaps

Monthly finance reports to Executive
and Primary Care Committees 
Bi-monthly report to the Governing
Body 
General Practice Strategy Group
make recommendations to Primary
Carer Commissioning Committee re
allocation of funding
• Gaps in assurance: no gaps

NHS England assurance
framework
Audit    
Operational Group with
CCG and NHSE

Primary care workforce development group
• Gaps in control: No Gaps

Regular reporting to the primary care
commissioning committee and the
General Practice Strategy Group ,
Budget identified to enable
development
• Gaps in assurance: no gaps

Linked working
arrangements with the
GP Alliance

GP strategy in place
• Gaps in control: Current refresh of strategy

Approved by the Governing Body.
Linking with GPFV to ensure there are
no gaps.  The GP Strategy will be
refreshed for 18/19 and a process is
underway to ensure engagement with
all stakeholders.
• Gaps in assurance: no gaps

GP strategy implementation group
• Gaps in control: No Gaps

Meets monthly
Senior representation from teams
across the CCG
Executive GP representation 
Practice nurse/manager
representation  
Recommends schemes to the primary
care committee.

• Gaps in assurance: no gaps

General practice forward view.
• Gaps in control: No Gaps

GP Strategy implementation group
have oversight of the GPFV progress
and linking to the CCG GP strategy to
ensure no gaps.

NHS England funding
attached to GP forward
view with additional
support and resource

02/07/2018

31/03/2019

Jackie Spencer

Communication/E
ngagement with
Practices, LMC,
Governing body,
PCCC, Executive
committee

Progress: 
Engagement has
taken place at 2/5
localities. 

GP Commissioning
Lead recruited to
support the refresh of
the GP strategy

Date Entered :
22/02/2019 09:49
Entered By : Jackie
Spencer
-----------
Discussed at
Governing Body and
General Practice
Strategy
Implementation
Group.

Next steps agreed to
engage with localities 

Date Entered :
30/10/2018 13:13
Entered By : Jackie
Spencer

01/08/2018

31/03/2019

Jackie Spencer

Review current
groups including
membership and
TOR

Progress: 
A mobilisation plan is
in development which
includes a proposed
structure for
programme 1 within
ATBA

Date Entered :
22/02/2019 09:48
Entered By : Jackie
Spencer
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NHS Sunderland CCG Strategic Risk Register

09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

PCCC also have awareness from a
strategic level
• Gaps in assurance: no gaps

from NHSE

1849 Urgent Care Strategy
As a result of the need for
further engagement with
stakeholders to inform the
business case for the UC
strategy project, there is a risk
that this could result in a very
challenging timeline for future
commissioning/procurement
which could result in challenge
and/or a gap in service
provision 

3 3Ann Fox

Natalie McClary

4 3CO5. Identify
And Deliver
The CCG's
Key Strategic
Priorities Updates, Risks and

mitigating actions
reviewed.

Natalie McClary

(4). 2 Monthly
14/03/2019

12 9Urgent Care Strategy Mobilisation Meetings
with lead Director weekly

• Gaps in control: None

1. Notes and action logs from weekly
UC strategy mobilisation meetings.
2. Urgent Care mobilisation plan is
overseen by ATBA program four.
• Gaps in assurance: None

Reporting to the ATBA
Program Four
overseeing the delivery
of the UC
strategy/mobilisation.
Attendances from senior
leaders across both
hospital trusts, GPA and
local authority.

Urgent and ambulatory care transformation
plan in place to support delivery
• Gaps in control: None

Improvement workshops have taken
place to support development of
Sunderland Extended Access Service,
Recovery at Home Service, ED
interface and an Urgent Treatment
Centre Model. All service models are
be delivered under the UC
mobilisation group.
• Gaps in assurance: None

ATBA Program Four

Urgent Care Strategy Work Programme
• Gaps in control: None

1. Urgent Care Strategy programme
plan in place which is supported by the
Project Support Office, with named
leads for each milestone.
2. Oversight of the delivery of the
efficiency savings attached to the
programme by the Sustainability and
Delivery Group.
3. Urgent Care Strategy programme
plan, including actions, risk and issues
logs.
4. Notes and action logs from
meetings.
• Gaps in assurance: None

NHS England assurance
process

UC Decision Making Business Case
Working Group Complete
• Gaps in control: None

Business case completed and now
delivery of UC model is undertaken by
the UC mobilisation group.
• Gaps in assurance: None

Assurance process led
by NHSE and CCG has
received full assurance
of the delivery of the UC
model.

Engagement and collaborative working with
the provider landscape led by work program
sponsorship group
• Gaps in control: None

1. Discussion with current providers
undertaken by SCCG reform and
contracting team
2. The services involved are in the
scope of the MCAP which is being
established through collaborative
alliance arrangements including
provider representatives at Exec level
from a range of providers including,
NTW, STFT,CHS, GPA
3. Stakeholder engagement plan in
place.
4. SCCG Reform and contracting
team are working closely with existing
providers regarding ongoing and
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09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

future service provision
5. Proposals under development to
engage with current provider staff
affected by the proposals under
consultation
• Gaps in assurance: None

Public consultation on the proposals to
change the service provision is to take place
from 9 May 2018 to 02 September 2018
• Gaps in control: none

Urgent care strategy group
Specialist comms and engagement
expertise commissioned from NECS 
Dedicated project support for the
consultation

• Gaps in assurance: None

Commissioned the
Consultation Institute to
support the consultation
process including the mid
consultation review
Commissioned a
company to lead the
impact assessment of
proposals under
consultation in relation to
travel and transport
Health and Wellbeing
Scrutiny Committee
Equality impact
assessment
Completed

Workforce Strategy
• Gaps in control: none

1) Regular discussion with work
program sponsors from all providers
2)Set up a project log to develop
strategy and implementation plan
depending upon outcome of public
consultation 3) Secured resource to
develop and deliver strategy in line
with the urgent care strategy timeline.
• Gaps in assurance: None

Experienced external
resource secured to
support development and
delivery of workforce
strategy.

1720 Capacity within the CCG to
deliver strategic priorities along
with the increasing number of
QiPP initiatives
There is a risk in terms of
capacity within the CCG to
deliver the strategic priorities
due to the increasing number of
sustainability projects

4 2David Chandler

David Chandler

4 3CO5. Identify
And Deliver
The CCG's
Key Strategic
Priorities Amended responsible

director and risk
owner.

Wendy Marley

(5). Quarterly
18/05/2018

12 8 5 - Over
£1m

Directors Weekly meeting
• Gaps in control: none

No internal assurance identified

Assurance reports on plan delivery to
Executive Committee and Governing Body
every meeting
• Gaps in control: none

No internal assurance identified

Project Management office and system to
support delivery of all plans
• Gaps in control: none

No internal assurance identified

Directors Quarterly time out
• Gaps in control: none

No internal assurance identified

Sustainability and Delivery Group
• Gaps in control: none

Meets monthly and focus on the QiPP
programme and reports to the
Executive Committee every month
• Gaps in assurance: none

Senior Management Meeting every month
with Heads of service
• Gaps in control: none

Opportunity to raise any concerns re
delivery of the Operational Plan
• Gaps in assurance: none

Informal SDG
• Gaps in control: none

This monthly meeting provides an
opportunity for Programme
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09/05/2019

Ref Objective Risk description Director
Owner

Initial

C L Sco
re

Controls and gaps in controls Internal assurance and gaps in
assurance

External assurance Residual
funding
cost

Residual

C L Sco
re

Reviews

Start 
Target 

Owner
Details

Progress

Action Plans

Managers/Directors to informally raise
any concerns without Providers
present to and look for support to
resolving them as a team.
• Gaps in assurance: none

682 Potential impact of
personalisation and personal
health budgets on strategic
commissioning
CCG needs to understand the
personalisation approach and
potential impact on strategic
commissioning. 
Need to build on the Lead
Commissioning arrangement
with LAs and utilise the
thorough understanding of
personalisation and personal
budgets within LAs to support
implementation.

2 2Ian Holliday

Norman Wilson

4 3CO7.
Integrating
Health And
Social Care
Services, Inc
Better Care
Fund

Risk realigned to new
corporate objective
following discussion
with Director of
Nursing

Wendy Marley

(6). 6 Monthly
19/07/2018

12 4 4 - £100k
- £1m

On-going discussions and implementation
plan with LA to be developed in 14/15 -
policy to be finalised by April 15
• Gaps in control: none

to be managed through joint
commissioning arrangements with LA
• Gaps in assurance: none

The pooling of budgets within the BCF and
LA now formally acting as Lead
Commissioner for care packages enhances
the personalisation agenda bringing in
considerable resource and expertise from
the LA
• Gaps in control: The Lead Commissioning
arrangements not yet fully understood or
implemented

Progress now monitored and
scrutinised via BCF Implementation
Group
• Gaps in assurance: Need to fully
embed new governance arrangements

Discussions with Mentor agency about
innovative practice.
• Gaps in control: Need discussions around
infra structure.

Recording system of PHBs
• Gaps in assurance: none

Discussions with Mentor Agency occurred
advice given on recoding and categorisation
of PHBs
• Gaps in control: Discussions on-going with
LA about amendments to care management
processes

Can record increasing numbers of
PHBs
• Gaps in assurance: none

Reports will be provided.

Discussions with Local Authority to help
modify practice and recording to ensure
PHB compliance
• Gaps in control: none

Recording of PHB on data base to
ensure target met.
• Gaps in assurance: None.

Regular discussions with
LA to ensure good
practice and compliance

16/02/2018

31/10/2018

                              
Regular discussion
at appropriate
forums.

© 2017 NHS Commissioning Board. Developed by North of England Commissioning  Support Unit (NECS)  
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CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

For information only  

 
GOVERNING BODY 

 
21 MAY 2019 

 

Report Title: 
 

Sub-Committee Annual Reviews 2018-19 
 

Purpose of report 

 
To provide the Governing Body with its sub-committee annual reviews for the period 1 April 2018 to 
the 31 March 2019.  
 

Key points 

 
In order to provide assurance to the Governing Body on the delivery of its delegated functions, the 
committee undertakes an annual review of its performance and effectiveness throughout the year 
as specified in its terms of reference.  This includes identifying the main areas of work the 
committee has focused on and any key challenges in the delivery of these.   
 
The attached report outlines the achievements and assurances the committee has gained 
throughout the year to demonstrate its roles and responsibilities and also includes any risks 
identified as part of this work.  The report also includes a review of attendance and a forward look 
to the coming financial year 
 
The attached paper provides an overview of each of the Governing Body sub-committee’s as 
follows: 

 Appendix 1 - Executive Committee 

 Appendix 2 - Quality and Safety Committee 

 Appendix 3 - Audit and Risk Committee 

 Appendix 4 - Primary Care Commissioning Committee 
 
The attached reviews focus on the committees’ performance and effectiveness throughout the 
year, as well as identifying the main areas of work the committees has focused on.  The review 
also outlines the achievements and assurances each committee has gained through this work and 
also includes highlights the main challenges they have faced as well as forward look to the coming 
financial year. 
 
The committees have also asked each of their formal sub groups to undertake an annual review to 
provide it with assurance on their effectiveness in delivering their roles and responsibilities.  The 
committees have received and reviewed the sub-group annual reviews and were assured that they 
had operated within their agreed terms of reference.  
 
Please note due to the infrequency of meetings and sensitive: personal information considered by 
the remuneration committee, an annual review is not undertaken for this committee.  However, the 
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committee has met on three separate occasions and assurance provided that the committee 
performed its functions as set out in its terms of reference.   
 
One minor change to the terms of reference for Quality and Safety Committee was made in relation 
to the change in chair during the year and also the frequency of meetings.  However due to the 
minor changes, the terms of reference have not been included on this occasion. 
 

Risks and issues 

 
The key challenges faced by the committees are detailed in the attached reviews. 

Assurances  

 
The committees have met their terms of reference throughout the year for 2018/19. 

Recommendation/Action Required 

The Governing Body is asked to: 

 Receive the committee end of year reviews for assurance; 

 Note that a summary of the reviews is included in the annual governance statement. 

 

Sponsor/approving director   Dr I Pattison, Chair  

Report author D Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs 

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1: Ensure the CCG meets its public accountability duties  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance targets  

CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  

CO4: Ensure the CCG involves patients and the public in commissioning and reforming  
services  

 

CO5: Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO6: Develop the CCG localities  

CO7: Integrating health and social care services, including the Better Care Fund  

CO8:  Develop and deliver primary medical care commissioning  

Relevant legal/statutory issues 

Note any relevant Acts, regulations, national guidelines etc 

Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  
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If yes, please specify  

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

 
None identified as annual review only 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

Not applicable as annual reviews only 

Has there been/or does there 
need to be any patient and 
public involvement? 

Not applicable as annual reviews only 

Is there an expected impact on 
patient outcomes/experience?  
If yes, has a quality impact 
assessment been undertaken? 

Not applicable as annual reviews only 

Has there been member 
practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

Not applicable as annual reviews only 
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          Appendix 1 
 

 
ANNUAL REVIEW OF 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   
 

 
In line with its terms of reference, this committee reports to the governing body and must undertake an annual 
review of its performance and provide an account of its work.  This template is aimed at assisting the chairs of 
those groups to produce a standardised report on that review.   
 

Review period 
 

April 2018 to March 2019 

 
Number of Meetings  
  

 
12 formal meetings 

Members Number of 
meetings eligible to 

attend: 

Number of meetings 
attended by 
members: 

Number of meetings 
deputy attended: 
(*n/a – no deputy) 

Mr David Gallagher, Chief Officer 
(chair) 

12 10 2 

Dr Ian Pattison, Executive GP 
and Clinical Chair  

12 10 n/a 

Dr Fadi Khalil, Executive GP 12 9 n/a 

Dr Saira Malik, Executive GP 12 11 n/a 

Dr Tracey Lucas, Executive GP 12 11 n/a 

Dr Raj Bethapudi, Executive GP 12 10 n/a 

Dr Karthik Gellia, Executive GP 12 12 n/a 

Mrs Ann Fox, Director of 
Nursing, Quality and Safety 

12 10 2 

Mr David Chandler, Deputy Chief 
Officer and Chief Finance Officer  

12 10 2 

Mr Eric Harrison, Executive 
Practice Manager  

12 10 n/a 

Mrs Florence Gunn, Strategic 
Practice Nurse 

12 8 n/a 

The following are regular attendees to the meeting but are not members:  

Dr Claire Bradford, Medical 
Director  

12 8 4 

Mrs Gillian Gibson, director of 
public health Sunderland City 
Council  

12 11 1 

Dr Roger Ford, LMC secretary 12 5 n/a 

Ms Deborah Cornell, head of 
corporate affairs  

12 8 n/a 

Mr Scott Watson, director of 
contracting and informatics 

12 9 3 

Mrs Clare Nesbit, associate 
director of OD and workforce 

12 8 n/a 
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Role and responsibilities of the committee  
 

The committee is a management committee to support the CCG, its governing body and myself, as 
chief officer, in the discharge of the CCG’s functions.  The committee assists the Governing Body in 
its duties to promote a comprehensive health service, reduce inequalities and promote innovation.   
The remit of the committee includes contributing to the development and implementation of strategy, 
monitoring and delivery of statutory duties, operational, financial, contractual and clinical performance 
as well as ensuring the coordination and monitoring of risks and internal controls.  It has authority to 
make decisions as set out within its terms of reference and the CCG’s scheme of reservation and 
delegation. 

Membership of the committee includes: 

 chief officer (Chair) 

 deputy chief officer and chief finance officer 

 GP chair 

 5 elected GPs (locality lead roles) 

 executive practice manager (localities) 

 strategic practice nurse (localities) 

 director of nursing, quality and safety 
 
The following attend the committee on a regular basis but do not have a voting right. 

 medical director  

 director of public health  

 head of corporate affairs 

 director of contracting and informatics 

 associate director of OD and workforce  

 
Details of main work areas 

 

Strategy and Planning: 

 Prepare the strategy and annual commissioning plan on behalf of the governing body and oversee 
delivery of the commissioning plans; 

 Formulate and implement service change and development arising out of the strategy 

 Prepare and recommend to the governing body the organisational development plan and enabling 
strategies and oversee their delivery; 

 Develop CCG input to the joint health and wellbeing strategy and contributing  to the joint strategic 
needs assessment; 

 Establish links and working arrangements with other CCGs, providers, local authority, other health 
partners, NHS England area team and the clinical senate; 

 Ensure the views of patients and the public are reflected in the development and implementation 
of CCG policies and plans.  

 
Delivery 

 Deliver target outcomes and outputs set by the Secretary of State, NHS England other 
national/regional authorised bodies; 

 Manage the performance of the CCG against its financial and non-financial targets including  
QIPP;  

 Ensure the control, co-ordination and monitoring within the organisation of risk and internal 
controls, monitoring key risks as appropriate; 

 Approval of business cases and procurement contract awards in line with the financial scheme of 
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delegation and approved budgets; 

 Agree contracts with providers providing clinical or other services in line with the financial scheme 
of delegation;  

 Leading the delivery of the CCG educational programme 

 Approval of operational policies and procedures. 
 

 
Main achievements and assurances 

 

The committee met on a monthly basis throughout 2018/19 to discuss progress and development of 
the CCG’s commissioning agenda, making decisions relevant to this agenda as appropriate and 
required.  
 
The committee has considered a number of strategies, project ideas, business cases, procurement 
proposals and service reforms.  The impact on improving outcomes for patients was the main priority 
as well as ensuring any financial implications were within the CCG’s financial budgets.  
 
The committee has also received monthly reports on finance and performance issues, key issues and 
risks and regular reports on; medicines optimisation; governance report (including equality and 
diversity, health and safety and complaints); information governance; research and development as 
well as monitoring progress against NHS England’s improvement and assessment framework for 
CCGs on behalf of the Governing Body. 

 
Some of the key items considered by the committee included: 

 Financial pressures and performance issues for consideration/decision 

 Community Acquired Brian Injury Service review 

 Intensive Support Team Service Review  

 Continuing healthcare and healthcare packages 

 Ambulance response times 

 Transforming Care  

 Medicines optimisation  

 Prevention and child health  

 Children and adolescent mental health services, including perinatal services 

 Cancer plan 

 Urgent and ambulatory care  

 Stop smoking, integrated wellness and sexual health services  

 Single point of access for the Musculoskeletal Service  

 Emergency preparedness, resilience and response (EPRR) 

 Improving Access to Psychological Services   

 Continued development of the multi-specialist community provider model (now known as 
the All Together Better Alliance) 

 
The committee has also approved a number of policies and strategies for submission to the 
Governing Body including: 

 Information governance 

 Urgent care  

 Health and safety 

 Cancer 

 Patient group directions 

 Value based commissioning  
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 Business continuity (EPRR) 

 Communications and engagement   

 HR and organisational development   

 Anti-fraud, bribery and corruption  

 Primary care research 
 

In addition to the formal monthly meetings, a number of development sessions were held during the 
year to enable the committee to focus on areas of development and key issues to provide additional 
assurance that these areas were being reviewed in more detail. The sessions were well attended by 
the members and, where appropriate a wider group, and the topics covered included: 

 Personal health budgets and prevention  

 Urgent care 

 Isolation and loneliness research  

 Financial and operational planning (including the NHS Long Term Plan) 

 All Together Better Alliance outcomes  

 Digital consultations 
 
The committee’s sub-groups meet on a regular basis to undertake detailed reviews of their relevant 
work streams and identify any issues or actions that need to be addressed.  The outcome of this work 
is fed up to the committee via the minutes but also by any more detailed reporting by exception when 
required.  
 

 
Details of main challenges faced by the committee 

 

 
There were a number of key challenges faced by the committee including: 

 A&E performance  

 Continuing healthcare packages 

 Financial pressures  

 Urgent care consultation  

 Transfer of Shared Care 

 Ambulance waiting times and handover delays 

 
The committee has monitored each of these areas closely and ensured mitigating actions have been 
put in place wherever possible.  The Governing Body has been provided with assurance on these via 
the committee minutes and also more detailed reports and presentations as required.  Where risks 
have been identified, these have been added to the CCG’s risk register if appropriate to ensure more 
detailed monitoring against progress to mitigate these risks has been undertaken.   

 

 
Prospective forward look at main areas of work for coming  year (2018/19) 
 

The committee will continue to focus on the roles and responsibilities as specified in its terms of 
reference.  There will continue to be standing items on the agenda for assurance purposes (such as 
finance and performance) and also any key areas of focus will be highlighted to support the delivery 
of the CCG’s operational plan and key priorities for the coming year, including the developing 
integrated care systems and partnerships and more collaborative working across the local health 
economy. 
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The other key areas of focus will be the mobilisation of the CCG’s urgent care strategy.  Following the 
decision taken by the Governing Body in January 2019 to change the way urgent care is delivered 
within Sunderland, a detailed mobilisation plan has been developed to take this work forward.  The 
committee will be monitoring progress towards this mobilisation to ensure the plans will deliver the 
agreed strategy and within the allocated resources.     
 
The ongoing development of the out of hospital model (All Together Better Alliance) will involve 
significant changes in how the CCG commissions it’s out of hospital services going forward.  This 
model involves new ways of partnership and collaborative working across the City and therefore a key 
focus for the committee to ensure the Alliance will support the delivery of the CCG’[s commissioning 
function throughout 2019/20.   
 

Proposal to review Terms of 
Reference? 
  

No  

 
Chair of the Committee 
 

 
D Gallagher, Chief Officer   

 
Report Author 
 

 
D Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs  

 
Date: 
 

 
23 April 2019 
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          Appendix 2 
 

 
ANNUAL REVIEW OF 

QUALITY AND SAFETY COMMITTEE   
 

 
In line with its terms of reference, this committee reports to the governing body and must undertake an annual 
review of its performance and provide an account of its work.  This template is aimed at assisting the chairs of 
those groups to produce a standardised report on that review.   
 

Review period 
 

1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 

 
Number of Meetings  
  

 
10 formal meetings 

 
Members 

 

 
Number of apologies / deputies attended (see below) 
 

Number of meetings 
eligible to attend: 

Number of meetings 
actually attended by 
members: 

Number of meetings 
where deputy attended: 
(*n/a – no deputy) 

Mrs Aileen Sullivan, lay member 
PPI (chair until January 2019) 

10 9 1 

Mrs Pat Harle, lay member for 
PCCC and Quality, chair (from 
March 2019) 

 
8 

 
6 

 
2 

Mrs Ann Fox, director of nursing, 
quality and safety (vice chair) 

10 8 2 

Mr David Gallagher, chief officer 10 6 n/a 

Dr Claire Bradford, medical 
director  

10 4 6 

Dr Karthik Gellia, executive GP  10 8 n/a 

Dr Saira Malik, executive GP 9 8 n/a 

Derek Cruikshank, secondary 
care clinician  

10 8 n/a 

Ms Sue Goulding, head of quality 
and patient safety 

10 7 n/a 

Ms Deborah Cornell, head of 
corporate affairs 

8 7 n/a 

Ms Deanna Lagun, head of 
safeguarding 

10 6 4 

Mr Ewan Maule, Head of 
medicines optimisation (from July 
2018) 

8 3 5 

Mr Matt Thurbron, head of 
contracting and business 
intelligence  

10 5 0 

Mr Ian Holliday 
Project Director, Joint 
Commissioning 

10 4 n/a 
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Mrs Gillian Gibson, director of 
public health Sunderland City 
Council (no longer attends the 
meeting as from June 2018) 

2 1 0 

 
Role and responsibilities of the committee  
 

The committee is responsible for ensuring the appropriate governance systems and processes are in 
place to  

 Commission, monitor and ensure the delivery of high quality safe patient care in commissioned 
services, 

 Facilitate, monitor and ensure quality improvement in general medical practice working with 
NHS England and in line with our quality strategy 

 Ensure that all systems are in place and operating effectively for the identification, assessment 
and prioritisation of potential risk in line with the CCG’s scheme of reservation and delegation 
and quality strategy. 
 

In achieving this, the committee seeks to promote a culture of continuous improvement and 
innovation with respect to safety of services, clinical effectiveness and patient experience, to secure 
public involvement and to provide assurance to the governing body about the quality, safety and any 
clinical risks of the services being commissioned.   

 
The committee, as delegated by the governing body, provides oversight and scrutiny of arrangements 
for supporting NHS England in relation to securing continuous improvement in the quality of primary 
medical services through the planning process and future primary care commissioning arrangements. 

 
Details of main work areas 

 

Quality in commissioned services: 

 Quality reports  

 External assurance for providers from regulatory bodies 

 Oversee the development of quality incentive schemes, e.g. CQUIN 

 Escalation processes 

 Collaboration with NHS England and NHS Improvement 
 

Quality in general medical practice: 

 Agreements and developing processes for the CCG member practices to improve quality of 
primary medical services in terms of clinical effectiveness, patient safety and patient 
experience in GP practices in collaboration with NHS England. 

 
Patient Safety 

 Clinical risks, incidents, serious incidents, complaints and claims 

 Scrutiny of independent investigation reports 

 Assurance on the management of infection control issues 

 Assurance in relation to medicines optimisation (including controlled drugs) 

 Assurance in relation to safeguarding duties for both children and adults. 
 

Patient experience 

 Ensure the views of patients and the public are appropriately reflected in the development and 
implementation of CCG policies and procedures 
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 Oversee the development and implementation of a structured approach to collect and use 
patient experience data (including from providers). 

 
Clinical effectiveness: 

 Promote an evidence based culture within the CCG and wider health economy 

 Take account of national guidance such as NICE  
guidance, quality standards and other relevant standards 

 Promote the use of research 
   

 
Main achievements and assurances 

 

The committee has continued to receive assurance for its key roles and responsibilities and has 
gained assurance by receiving regular reports/updates on the following: 

 CCG quality strategy 

 Safeguarding 

 Quality in commissioned services, covering performance and contractual issues that impact 
on quality including: 
 Infection control 
 Safety thermometer 
 Annual survey/audit results 
 Mortality reporting 
 Friends and family test results  
 Complaints 
 Serious incidents 

 Quality in older persons’ commissioned services  
 Continuing health care 

 Transforming Care/Learning disabilities 

 Mental health 

 General practice assurance framework   

 Quality and safety risks  

 Medicines optimisation 

 Patient and public involvement (including compliance with the statutory guidance ‘Involving 
People’ via an action and project plan) 

 Medicines optimisation  

 Clinical assurance visits with providers 

 Improvement and Assessment Framework PPI self- assessment and performance exception 
report (relating to quality) 

 
The reports/updates cover key issues and any quality or patient safety issues arising as a result.  The 
reports provide key assurances and identify risks, both actual and potential.  The committee seeks 
assurance on mitigating actions to address these risks and ensures these are captured on the 
corporate risk register and managed in line with the CCG’s risk management arrangements.   
 
The confirmed minutes from each meeting are submitted to the Governing Body to provide assurance 
on the delegated functions the committee manages on its behalf. 
 
There have been some particular areas requiring a more detailed focus by the committee to ensure 
work was undertaken to implement specific requirements.  This was also to address areas of concern 
relating to quality and patient safety and to provide additional assurance on work undertaken to 
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mitigate the risks associated with this.  These topics included: 
 

 City Hospitals Sunderland Foundation Trust Excellence Programme 

 Enhanced Care in Care Homes  

 Urgent care (including patient and public involvement activity) 

 Patient and public involvement overview, including the improvement and assessment 
framework indicator 

 LeDeR  

 Continuing Health Care and healthcare packages 
 
The committee also receives assurance from the following subgroups via receipt of regular minutes: 

 Designated and Named Professionals Assurance Group  

 HCAI Improvement Group  

 Serious Incident Panel (joint with South Tyneside CCG) 

 Local Quality Group (Primary Care Medical Services) 

 Communication and Engagement Steering Group 
 
The committee’s sub-groups meet on a regular basis to undertake detailed reviews of their relevant 
work streams and identify any issues or actions that need to be addressed.  The outcome of this work 
is fed up to the committee via the minutes but also by any more detailed reporting by exception when 
required.  
 
In addition to the above sub-groups, the committee receives minutes and updates for information and 
assurance from the following groups:  

 South Tyneside and Sunderland Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust Quality Review Group  

 North East Ambulance NHS Foundation Trust Quality Review Group  

 Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust Quality Review Group 

 Vocare (Totally Plc) Contracting and Quality Review Group 

 Cumbria and North East Quality Surveillance Group    
 
The provider quality review groups undertake the detailed operational planning and review of the 
quality of their commissioned services and also identify any areas for improvement/action and 
develop and monitor robust action plans to ensure pr.  The committee seeks assurance on 
implementation and progress of the action plans via the minutes, and any exception reporting as 
appropriate, to ensure the quality of the services the CCG commissions are safe and of a high 
standard.     

 
Details of main challenges faced by the committee 

 

The committee has faced a number of challenges over the year and has worked with the relevant 
leads closely to ensure actions were undertaken and progress made wherever possible. These have 
included: 

 Provider quality and safety performance issues  

 Delivery of statutory duties relating to patient and public involvement (including the 
improvement and assessment framework indicator) 

 Safeguarding adults and children activity 

 Delivery of statutory duties relating to continuing health care 

 Joint commissioning – nursing, residential care; learning disabilities; continuing 
healthcare and healthcare packages  

 Transforming care agenda  
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 Medicines optimisation - shared care and joint formulary 

 Quality within primary medical care services   

 Childhood immunisations  
 

 
Prospective forward look at main areas of work for coming  year (2019/20) 
 

The committee will continue to focus on the roles and responsibilities as specified in its terms of 
reference.  There will continue to be standing items on the agenda for assurance purposes and also 
any key areas of focus will be highlighted to support the delivery of the CCG’s operational plan and 
key priorities for the coming year, including the developing integrated care systems and partnerships 
and more collaborative working across the local health economy. 
 
The other key areas of focus will be the mobilisation of the CCG’s urgent care strategy.  Following the 
decision taken by the Governing Body in January 2019 to change the way urgent care is delivered 
within Sunderland, a detailed mobilisation plan has been developed to take this work forward.  The 
committee will be monitoring progress towards this mobilisation to ensure the quality and safety of the 
urgent care services are not compromised as a result of the changes. 
 
Another key area of focus will be the Path to Excellence programme, which is the in-hospital 
transformation programme across South Tyneside and Sunderland.  Implementation of phase one is 
underway and the committee will focus on the impact this may have on the services that are changing 
to ensure the quality of these services is maintained throughout the implementation.  Phase two of the 
programme is also underway and currently in the pre-engagement phase.  Work is ongoing to collate 
views from patients and the public, stakeholders, partners, clinicians and staff on the case for change 
which will be used to help develop the pre-consultation business case later in the year.   
 
The ongoing development of the out of hospital model (All Together Better Alliance) will involve 
significant changes in how the CCG commissions it’s out of hospital services going forward.  This 
model involves new ways of partnership and collaborative working across the City and therefore a 
focus on maintaining quality and safety will be another key area for the committee to focus on 
throughout 2019/20.   

 
Proposal to review Terms of 
Reference? 
  

 
Yes – to ensure the membership to ensure it has the right 
representation to enable the committee to deliver its delegated 
responsibilities and to review the frequency of meetings to ensure 
it was still fit for purpose. 

 
Chair of the Committee 
 

 
A Sullivan, lay member for patient and public involvement and 
quality (until 31/01/19) 

      P Harle, lay member for primary care commissioning and   
      quality (from 01/02/19) 

 
Report Author 

 
D Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs 
 

Date: 27 March 2019 
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           Appendix 3 
 

 
ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE   

 
 

In line with its terms of reference, this committee reports to the governing body and must undertake an 
annual review of its performance and provide an account of its work.  This template is aimed at assisting 
the chairs of those groups to produce a standardised report on that review.   
 

Review period 
 

1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 

 
Number of formal meetings:  
(in financial year)  

 
 5 

 
Attendance  
 

 
Number of apologies / deputies attended (see below) 
 

Number of formal 
meetings eligible to 
attend: 

Number of formal 
meetings actually 
attended by 
members: 

Number of meetings where 
deputy/representative  
attended 

Members: 

Mr Chris Macklin, lay member 
audit (chair) 

5 5 0 

Mrs Aileen Sullivan, lay 
member PPI 

5 5 0 

Mr Neil Weddle, independent 
support to the audit committee  

5 5 n/a 

In attendance: 

Mr David Chandler, deputy 
officer and chief finance officer 

5 5 0 

Mr Cameron Waddell, partner 
Mazars 

5 5 3 

Ms Diane Harold, senior 
manager, Mazars 

5 5 0 

Mr Carl Best, director of Internal 
Audit, AuditOne 

3 2 0 

Ms Alyson Williams, Internal 
Audit manager, AuditOne 

5 5 0 

Ms Deborah Cornell, head of 
corporate affairs  

5 5 n/a 

Mrs Tarryn Lake, deputy chief 
finance officer  

5 5 0 

Paul Bevan, counter fraud 
specialist AuditOne 

2 2 0 

 
Roles and responsibilities of the committee  
 

An independent Audit and Risk Committee is a central means by which the Governing Body 
obtains assurance that suitable internal control arrangements are in place and are operating 
effectively. The Audit and Risk Committee provides an independent check of the executive 
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functions of the Governing Body. In accordance with the Prime Financial Policies, the Governing 
Body shall formally establish an Audit and Risk Committee, with clearly defined terms of reference 
and following guidance from the NHS Audit Committee Handbook (2018) to perform the following 
tasks 
 
The Committee is a non-executive committee of the governing body as it has no executive 
powers, other than those specifically delegated to it and as set out in its terms of reference. 
 
The Committee has met its terms of reference throughout the year for 2018/19.  

 
Details of main work areas 
 

The Committee critically reviews the CCG’s financial reporting and internal control principles and 
ensures an appropriate relationship with both internal and external auditors is maintained. The 
main work areas of the committee are as follows: 
 
Governance, Risk Management and Internal Control 

 Review the establishment and maintenance of an effective system of integrated governance, 
risk management and internal control, across the whole of the organisation’s activities (both 
clinical and non-clinical), that supports the achievement of the organisation’s objectives 

 Utilise the work of internal audit, external audit and other assurance functions, but is not 
limited to these sources.  It also seeks reports and assurances from directors and managers 
as appropriate, concentrating on the over-arching systems of integrated governance, risk 
management and internal control, together with indicators of their effectiveness 

 Ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the governing body assurance framework, using it 
to guide its work and that of audit and assurance functions that report to it 

 Scrutinise the processes of the CCG’s QIPP/resource releasing initiative programme linked 
to financial resources 

 Ensure robust controls are in place to actively manage conflicts of interest including 
hospitality and gifts 

 Ensure adequate arrangements are in place for countering fraud and reviews the outcomes 
of counter fraud work and instigate investigation should the committee become aware of 
suspected fraudulent activity. 

 
Internal Audit 

 Ensure an effective internal audit function is in place that meets mandatory NHS Internal 
Audit Standards and provides appropriate independent assurance to the audit committee, 
accountable officer and the governing body 

 Consider the provision of the internal audit service, the cost of the audit and any questions of 
resignation and dismissal 

 Review and approve the internal audit strategy, operational plan and detailed programme of 
work 

 Consider the major findings of internal audit work (and management’s response), and seeks 
to ensure co-ordination between internal and external auditors to optimise audit resources 

 Ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing 
within the organisation. 

 
External Audit 

 Review the work and findings of the external auditors and considers the implications and 
management’s responses to their work 

 Consider the appointment and performance of the external auditors, as far as the rules 
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governing the appointment permit 

 Discuss and agree the nature and scope of the external audit annual plan  

 Review external audit reports, including the report to those charged with governance, agrees 
the annual audit letter before submission to the governing body and any work undertaken 
outside the annual audit plan, together with the appropriateness of management responses. 

 
Other Assurance Functions 

 Review the findings of other significant assurance functions, both internal and external to the 
organisation, and considers the implications for the governance of the organisation 

 Review the work of other committees whose work can provide relevant assurance to the 
committee’s own scope of work. 

 
Financial Reporting 

 Monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the CCG and any formal announcements 
relating to the CCG’s financial performance 

 Ensure that the systems for financial reporting to the Governing Body, including those of 
budgetary control, are subject to review as to completeness and accuracy of the information 
provided to the governing body 

 Review the annual report and financial statements before submission to the Governing 
Body.  

 

Auditor Panel 

 Advise on the maintenance of an independent relationship with external auditors 

 Advise on the selection and appointment of external auditors 

 Advise on any proposal to enter into a limited liability agreement (if required). 
 
To ensure the activities of the Auditor Panel are distinctive to the other activities of the committee, 
the auditor panel meetings are arranged separately as required and the minutes of meetings are 
formally recorded and submitted to the Governing Body.  In addition the panel is required to 
provide a separate annual report to the Governing Body on its activities and decisions. 

 
Main achievements and assurances 

The Committee has continued to receive assurance for its key roles and responsibilities and has 
gained assurance by receiving regular reports/updates on the following: 

 Governing Body assurance framework  

 Corporate risk register  

 Annual governance statement   

 Annual report and accounts review and recommendation to the Governing Body 

 Financial updates (including schedules of losses and special payments)  

 Sustainability Delivery Group minutes  

 Scheme of reservation and delegation  

 Overview of tender waivers 

 QIPP/resource releasing initiatives 

 Register of interests 

 Internal audit strategy and progress reports 

 External audit progress and completion reports  

 Counter fraud annual plan and updates 

 NHS Counter Fraud Authority self-assessment submission  

 Cyber security and information risk  
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The Audit Chair attends NHS England Audit Chair briefings and is an active member of a North 
East Audit Chair group whose membership is open to all providers and CCG’s across the North 
East.  The Audit Chair is also the sole CCG representative on the HFMA Audit and Governance 
Committee. 
 
Informal meetings have been held with the internal auditor, the counter fraud lead and the 
external auditors to ensure any issues of concern can be discussed. No matters were raised in 
these meetings. 
 
The committee also reviewed the CCG’s financial management arrangements (FMAs) which 
support the prime financial policies as part of the CCG’s constitution.   
Risk management reports, including as part of the Governing Body assurance have also been 
received on a regular basis.  The committee has sought assurance on mitigating actions to 
address these risks and ensures these are captured on the corporate risk register.   
 
Any identified actions are noted on the committee action log which is updated after each formal 
meeting and identifies an appropriate lead and timescale to ensure any necessary actions are 
taken as required by the committee. 
 
Auditor Panel Annual Report  

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires CCGs to ensure there is sufficient scrutiny 
and oversight of the CCG’s relationship with its external auditors by having an auditor panel, 
chaired by an independent member who is not part of the management structure, such as a lay 
member of the Governing Body. 
 
In order to meet these requirements, the committee performs the role of the Auditor Panel for the 
CCG. The chair and members of the committee will also be the chair and members of the Auditor 
Panel. 

 
To ensure the activities of the Auditor Panel are distinctive to the other activities of the committee, 
separate meetings are arranged when required and the minutes of the meetings formally 
recorded and submitted to the Governing Body for assurance.  During the year, the Auditor Panel 
has not been required to meet, however the members have discussed the relationship with the 
external auditors and can give assurance that this has maintained its independence throughout 
2018/19. 
 
Details of main challenges faced by the committee 
 

Some key challenges the Committee faced in 2018/19 have included: 

 Forecast underspends and the financial impact of  over performance in A&E and 
emergency admissions 

 Funding allocations and changes to business rules for CCGs 

 QIPP/Sustainability Delivery Group – ensuring the CCG remained on track to deliver the 
planned savings as set out in the productivity plan 

 Continuing health care – review of internal systems and processes 

 NHS Property Services market rent changes – impact on the CCG and other organisations 

Prospective forward look at main areas of work for coming  year (2019/20) 
 

The Committee will continue to focus on the roles and responsibilities as specified in its terms of 
reference.  There will continue to be standing items on the agenda for assurance purposes and 
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also any key areas of focus will be highlighted. The financial position for the CCG is challenging 
for 2019/20 and therefore the emphasis on good systems and processes to support robust 
financial control and governance will be critical.   
 
The Committee will need to keep a continued focus on the governance arrangements of the 
developing integrated care systems and partnerships to ensure the CCG continues to mete its 
statutory duties and functions during this period of change.  This will include both the out of 
hospital and in hospital transformational work programmes.      

 
Proposal to review Terms of 
Reference 
  

 
No  

 
Chair of the Committee 
 

 
C Macklin, Lay Member for Audit and Governing Body Vice 
Chair   

 
Report author: 
 

 
D Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs  

 
Date: 

 
27 March 2019 
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           Appendix 4 
 

 
ANNUAL REVIEW OF 

PRIMARY CARE COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE  
 

 
In line with its terms of reference, this committee reports to the governing body and must undertake an annual 
review of its performance and provide an account of its work.  This template is aimed at assisting the chairs of 
those groups to produce a standardised report on that review.   
 

Review period 
 

April 2018 to March 2019 

 
Number of Meetings  
  

 
6 formal meetings held in public 

 
Members 

 

 
Number of apologies / deputies attended (see below) 
 

Number of meetings 
eligible to attend: 

Number of meetings 
actually attended by 
members: 

Number of meetings 
where deputy attended: 

Pat Harle, Lay Member Primary 
Care Commissioning Chair  

 
6 

 
6 

 
n/a 

Aileen Sullivan, Lay Member PPI 
and quality 

 
6 

 
4 

n/a 

David Gallagher, Chief Officer 6 4 2 

Dr Karthik Gellia, GP Executive   6 5 n/a 

Dr Geoff Stephenson, Primary 
Care Advisor 

6 6 n/a 

David Chandler, Deputy Chief 
Officer and Chief Finance Officer 

6 3 3 

Ann Fox, Director of Nursing, 
Quality and Safety  

6 4 2 

Clare Nesbit, Associate Director 
of Workforce, OD and Primary 
Care 

6 6 n/a 

In attendance: 

*Alan Patchett, Chair of 
Healthwatch 

6 5 n/a 

*Fiona Brown, Director of People 
Services, Sunderland City 
Council 

6 1 n/a 

NHS England primary care 
contracting representative 

6 6 n/a 

Dr Ian Pattison, Clinical Chair  6 4 n/a 

Deborah Cornell, Head of 
Corporate Affairs 

6 3 n/a 

Jackie Spencer, Senior 
Commissioning Manager 

5 4 1 

*These members are invited to attend but do so as and when required 
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Role and responsibilities of the committee  
 

The Committee has been established in accordance with statutory provisions to make collective 
decisions on the review, planning and procurement of primary medical care services in Sunderland, 
under delegated authority from NHS England. The role of the Committee is to carry out the functions 
relating to the commissioning of primary medical care services under section 83 of the NHS Act. 

In performing its role, the Committee will exercise its management of the functions in accordance with 
the agreement entered into between NHS England and the CCG, which will sit alongside the 
delegation and terms of reference. 

The functions of the Committee are undertaken with a view to increasing the quality, efficiency, 
productivity and value for money within co-commissioning as well as removing any potential 
administrative barriers.  

 
Details of main work areas 

 

The main areas of work for the Committee include: 

 GMS, PMS and APMS contracts (including the design of PMS and APMS contracts, 
monitoring of contracts, taking contractual action such as issuing branch/remedial notices, 
and removing a contract); 

 Newly designed enhanced services (‘local enhanced services’ and ‘directed enhanced 
services’); 

 Design of local incentive schemes as an alternative to the Quality Outcomes Framework 
(QOF); 

 Decision making on whether to establish new GP practices in an area; 

 Approving practice mergers; and 

 Making decisions on ‘discretionary’ payment (e.g., returner/retainer schemes). 
 

The Committee also carries out the following activities under delegated authority from the Governing 
Body: 

 Planning, including needs assessment, of primary medical care services in Sunderland; 

 Undertaking reviews of primary medical care services in Sunderland;  

 Co-ordinating a common approach to the commissioning of primary care services 
generally; 

 Managing the budget for commissioning of primary medical care services in Sunderland 

 
Main achievements and assurances 

 

The Committee has met six times in public during the year to ensure continued effective management 
of the primary medical care commissioning function.  
 
The Committee has continued to make decisions (where appropriate) and receive assurance for its 
key roles and responsibilities by receiving regular reports/updates on the following: 

 Financial updates on the management of the delegated general practice budgets 

 Practice and branch mergers, boundary changes and list closures 

 General Practice 5 Year Forward View 

 Refreshed general practice strategy 

 Primary care estates subsidiaries 
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 General practice communications and engagement  

 Care Quality Commission inspection reports 

 General practice transformation funding 

 General practice quality premium evaluation for 2017/18 

 Primary care approach to carers – the Carers Improvement Scheme  

 General practice partnership review  

 Workforce updates 

 Update on the use of the NHS England General Practice resilience funding  

 General practice quality 

 Musculoskeletal transformation fund update 

 Localities updates 

 New consultation types within general practice 

 Recruitment and retention scheme updates 
 
The committee also held a development session in December 2018 to review its effectiveness over 
the year.  The workshop focussed on the agenda items the committee had considered, the quality of 
information contained within reports, the assurance it provided to the Governing Body, the frequency 
of meetings and its membership.  The workshop was facilitated by the CCG’s OD Manager and an 
improvement action plan was developed following the session based on the feedback and outputs 
from the day.   

 
Details of key issues faced by the committee 

 

Some of the key issues faced by the committee in 2018/19 have included: 

 Continued management of conflicts of interest 

 GP recruitment and retention  

 Quality issues in primary care 

 Underspend on delegated general practice budgets  

 NHS Property Services increase in charges for practices   

 Practice mergers and contractual changes  
 

 
Prospective forward look at main areas of work for coming  year (2019/20) 
 

The committee will continue to focus on the supporting the delivery of the CCG’s operational plan and 
key deliverables as well as the continued implementation of the refreshed general practice strategy.   
 
This work will also include supporting the emerging local and regional integrated care systems and 
partnership and the impact these will have on general practice.  The CCG is continuing to develop its 
out of hospital model, the All Together Better Alliance, with partners across the city and this will have 
a significant impact on how some services within general practice are delivered and therefore the 
committee will need to maintain its focus on quality to ensure this is maintained.    
 
Implementation of phase one of the Path to Excellence programme (in hospital transformation is also 
underway as well as pre-engagement in relation to phase two and the committee will monitor 
progress of both to monitor the impact these will have on general practice within Sunderland. 
 
Another significant area of focus going forward into 2019/20 will be the implications of the revised GP 
contract and the development of the primary care networks as part of the NHS Long Term Plan.   
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Proposal to review terms of 
Reference? 

 No  

 
Chair of the Committee 
 

 
P Harle, Lay Member for Primary Care Commissioning and 
Quality 
 

Report Author D Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs 

 
Date: 
 

 
15 April 2019 
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PRIMARY CARE COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 28 February 2019, 12.30pm in the 
meeting space, Bede Tower, Burdon Road, Sunderland, SR2 7EA. 

 
 

Minutes 
 
Present: Mrs P Harle, Chair 
 Mr D Chandler, Deputy Chief Officer 
 Mr David Gallagher, Chief Officer 
 Dr K Gellia, Executive GP 
 Mrs C Nesbit, Associate Director OD and Workforce 
 Mr A Patchett, Healthwatch 
 Dr Ian Pattison, Clinical Chair 
 Dr G Stephenson, Primary Care Advisor 
                                     
      
In attendance: Mrs Fiona Brown, Executive Director of People, Sunderland 

City Council 
 Ms D Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs, 
 Ms L Douglas, Primary Care Business Manager, NHS 

England 
 Mrs J Lambie, Strategic Primary Care Workforce Lead 
 Mrs J Spencer, Head of General Practice Commissioning 
 Mrs W Thompson, General Practice Commissioning Lead 
 Mrs J Thwaites, minutes  
 
2019/01 Welcome and Introductions 
  
 The chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and a round of 

introductions took place. The committee was informed that the 
meeting would be recorded to support administrative accuracy and for 
robust governance. There were no objections to the use of the 
recording device. 

 
2019/02          Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Mrs A Fox, Director of 
Nursing, Quality and Safety, Mrs A Sullivan, Lay Member, PPI, Ms J 
Long, Assistant Primary Care Contracts Manager, NHS England and  

  
 The chair confirmed that the meeting was quorate. 
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2019/03 Declarations of Interest 
  

Declarations were received from Drs Pattison, Stephenson and Gellia 
in regard to item 7.1. The Chair noted that the GPs could take part in 
the discussion but not the decision making. The Chair asked that if 
any further conflicts became apparent during the meeting they should 
be brought to her attention and would be managed appropriately. 

 
2019/04 Minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2018 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2018 were 

RECEIVED as a true and accurate record. 
 
2019/05  Matters arising from the minutes and action log 
 
 There were no matters arising from the minutes. 

                     
2019/06     Action Log 
 

Item 2018/89 this was still to be determined; this item would be 
removed from the action log. 
Item 2018/91 was complete and would be removed from the action 
log. 

 
2019/07 Question Time 
  
 A member of the public raised the following: 
 

In regard to the workforce presentation training and the development 
opportunities from Sunderland University would there be any 
development for clinical pharmacy. In response it was noted that there 
was nothing specific planned due to the national pilot although 
following the NHS long Term plan this could be built in. 
 
It was hoped that of the 14 careers start practice nurses some would 
remain in Sunderland.  

  
The Chair asked that to accommodate members attending meetings 
elsewhere item 8.1 would be moved on the agenda to follow the 
presentation. 

 
2019/08 GP Strategy 2016/21 and Primary Care Workforce 
 

The purpose of the presentation was to give an overview of the 
current general practice strategy, what had been achieved, what was 
still outstanding, workforce progress, what it means for Sunderland 
and workforce and the long term plan. 
 
In regard to the general practice strategy 3/5 localities so far had been 
asked if they thought the strategic objectives should stay the same or 
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would they want something different. All had agreed that they were 
correct and that the priorities should change. 
 
The building blocks achieved in the strategy were supporting general 
practice, enhanced primary care, community integrated teams and 
recovery at home. The General Practice Quality Premium was now in 
place but there is a suggestion that this would change to the General 
Practice Network Premium. 
 
Developing areas were discussed which included localities networks, 
supporting better health through prevention and self-care, the 
development of a multi-agency informatics strategy and enhanced 
primary care. In regard to international recruitment Sunderland were 
still involved in the process although this was not going as well as 
expected. There needs to be more links between localities and public 
health and their area co-ordinators. 
 
In regard to primary care workforce of the 16 GPs enrolled in the 
career start scheme in 2015-6 had been retained in Sunderland. The 
practice nurse career start scheme had enrolled 14 nurses who were 
undertaking a 2 year programme delivered by Sunderland University. 
In addition the University developed a practice nurse module. 
 
The health care assistant careers start had begun as a pilot taking 
students from an apprenticeship to a degree level. 
 
It had been found that if practices had GP trainers the registrars were 
more likely to stay in the practice.  
There had been an uptake of 15 places for mentorship bursaries for 
practice nurses to top up their skills. 
 
A golden hello scheme had been developed to incentivise GP to stay 
and work in Sunderland.  
 
There had been 100% sign up to the general practice workforce toolkit 
which provided real time data on the Sunderland workforce.  
 
In regard to future work plans for 2019/20 the training provision at 
scale would focus on GP trainers, building educational capacity and 
mentorship.  
In supporting the existing workforce a 3 year programme was 
available for practice manager peer appraisals and advanced nursing 
skills for practice nurses which included working with physiotherapists, 
occupational therapists and mental health nurses. 
 
The Sunderland University School of Medicine would take in 50 
students from September this year who would rotate into general 
practice in their first year. In regard to paramedic science it was noted 
that 160 students would be recruited every year and would enter 
general practice in their third year.  
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Comments were made in regard to the value of taking stock on work 
that had progressed and the issue of space and capacity in practices 
to host trainees. It was noted that two new trainers were working in 
the East locality. 
 
Thanks were given to Mrs Lambie and Mrs Spencer for the 
informative presentation. 

 
2019/09 Update for general practice communications and engagement –   

good news stories 
 

The purpose of the report was to provide an update on how the work 
would progress in the future. 
 
A new process had been developed to plan for future 
communications. It was proposed that quarterly meetings would be 
arranged for the communications and engagement manager and the 
head of primary care commissioning to meet to agree priorities, agree 
key messages, the impact and how this would be evaluated. 
 
A question was raised in regard to the process to agree messages 
and how these would be delivered. In response it was noted there 
would be various methods employed which included the Sunderland 
Echo, My NHS, student papers and social media – this would depend 
on what the targeted approach required. 
 
In regard to the investment already made, going forward this would be 
the same as previously agreed. The good news stories would 
continue to be promoted including general practice and CCG updates. 
It was noted that the stories would be relevant and have a community 
feel. 
 
It was confirmed that the objectives had been aligned to the 
communications and engagement strategy. In terms of sign off for the 
objectives through the GP implementation group it was noted that the 
communications and engagement steering group (CESG) should also 
be linked into this. The CESG was a multi-agency group with local 
authority representation which could result in a wider distribution of 
communications/messages. 
 
The Chair highlighted the key messages from the report included the 
importance of including staff and partners and the challenge to move 
on with the work included in the action plan and to expand the reach 
of the communications as widely as possible. 
 
Action: To receive an update at the next meeting. 
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The Primary Care Commissioning Committee REVIEWED the content 
of the report and APPROVED the revised plan for good news stories. 

 
2019/10 Finance Report 
 

The purpose of the report was to provide a summary of the financial 
position of delegated general practice budgets as at month 10 (for the 
period ending 31 January 2019) and the forecast year end position for 
2018/19. 
 
Declarations were received from Drs Pattison, Stephenson and Gellia 
in regard to this item. The Chair noted that the GPs could take part in 
the discussion but not the decision making. 
 
The CCG had forecast an under spend of £185k mainly due to 
slippage against the 2017/18 accrual for QOF. 
 
Primary care reserves were forecasting expenditure of £210k on 
planned investments. This had been spent on a general practice 
equipment scheme and estates support. 

 
The in-year expenditure for non-recurrent proposals was forecast at 
£790k of a £1.2m budget. 
 

 In regard to additional non-recurrent funding the executive 
committee agreed in January 2019 to allocate further funding. 
Circa £800k would be allocated to the general practice quality 
premium of £11.33 per registered patient. This equated to an 
additional £2.84 per registered patient. This would be paid for 
achievement of the following schemes;  

 A pathology improvement scheme 
 Apex insight tool – a workforce tool 

 £284k to achieve standards on antibiotic prescribing 

 £510k as additional subsidies for practices in NHS Property 
Services buildings towards charges in relation to service 
charges. 

 

The CCG had received letters from the Sunderland Local Medical 

Council (LMC) and the British Medical Association (BMA) requesting 

the CCG considers allocating additional resources in 2018/19 to 

general practice of one percent on the core contract for agenda for 

change pressures identified to be funded nationally from 1 April 2019.   

  The CCG has liaised with NHS England with regards these requests.   

The CCG has been advised that the additional one percent for 2019/20 

is conditional on contract negotiations for 2019/20 and as such 

payment in 2018/19 has not been endorsed.   
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Whilst the CCG has not been able to fulfil this request the additional 

non recurrent schemes approved at Executive Committee in January 

2019 commit to supporting general practice pressures. 

The Chair noted for completeness and transparency the £18m 

underspend is non-recurrent. 

Action:  The Chief Finance Officer to inform the LMC 

The CCG does not have a recurrent under spend; they receive an 
annual budget which is met every year. Every CCG has to have on its 
balance sheet an under spend from previous years. In the past the 
Primary Care Trust (PCT) and the CCG had built up funds to manage 
financial risk. The CCG had secured £9m of drawdown surplus funding 
from NHS England which would be invested wisely. It was confirmed 
that Sunderland CCG supported general practice and ensured the long 
term sustainability of services.  

The Chair asked the non-conflicted members of the Primary Care 
Commissioning Committee to approve the following: 

The Primary Care Commissioning Committee NOTED the financial 
position of delegated general practice budgets for the period ending 31 
January 2019; SUPPORTED the additional non-recurrent funding 
resources made available for 2018/19; NOTED and SUPPORTED the 
decision not to bring forward the additional agenda for change funding 
of 1% (provided for from 1 April 2019) 1 April 2018 following 
consultation with NHS England. 

 
2019/11 CQC inspections update report 
 

The report provided an update to the current CQC inspection status of 
the GP practices in Sunderland and an overview of the processes 
followed when practices were placed into special measures or had 
inadequate areas within an inspection. 
 
Since the last report to the committee there had been two further 
reports published; 
 
Sunderland GP Alliance at the Galleries had received a good rating in 
one area; 
Dr Bhate and Partners had been rated good overall and good in all 
areas. 
 
The Primary Care Commissioning Committee RECEIVED the report for 
discussion and assurance. 
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2019/12 Update on Primary Care Network 
 

The purpose of the report was to provide an update on the implications 
of the recently announced GP contract on the development of primary 
care networks (PCN). 
 
It was explained that practices would receive approximately £1.76 to 
sign up to the Network Directed Enhanced Service (DES) with the 
Network being paid an additional £1.50 per head of population to 
support them with setup costs. 
 
A dedicated session at the Time in Time Out would be undertaken for 
practices to understand the requirements of the primary care networks 
It was confirmed that progress would be reported to the primary care 
commissioning committee and the executive committee on a regular 
basis. 
 

 The Primary Care Commissioning Committee NOTED the content of 
 the report. 
 
2019/13 Workforce steering group minutes held on 28 November 2018 
 

The minutes of the workforce steering group meeting held on 28 
November 2018 were RECEIVED. 

 
2019/14 GP Strategy Refresh update 
 

Mrs Thompson updated the committee on the progress to date on the 
refresh and the next steps.  
 
Action: The draft strategy would be presented to the primary care 
commissioning committee at its next meeting. 
The primary care commissioning committee RECEIVED the verbal 
update. 

 
2019/15 Any other business 
 
 There was no other business. 
 

2019/16 Date of next meeting 
  

Thursday 25 April 2019, 13.45pm. Bede Tower, Burdon Road, 
Sunderland SR2 7EA 
 
 
Signed:  
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SCCG Audit and Risk Committee Meeting 

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 29th January 2019 

10.00 a.m. to 12.00 noon  

Bede Tower, Sunderland 

 

Present:  Mr Chris Macklin, Lay Member – Chair 
Mrs Aileen Sullivan, Lay Member for Patient and Public 
Involvement 
Mr Neil Weddle, Independent Audit Support 

 
In Attendance:  Mr Carl Best, Audit One 

Mr David Chandler, Chief Finance Officer 
  Ms Deborah Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs 
  Ms Diane Harold, Senior Manager, Mazars LLP 
    Mrs Tarryn Lake, Deputy Chief Finance Officer   

Ms Alyson Williams, Audit Manager, AuditOne 
Miss Natalie Riddle, PA to Chief Finance Officer (Minutes) 

 

2019/01 Welcome and Introductions 
 

Mr Macklin welcomed everyone to the meeting and informed those 
present that the meeting would be recorded. This was to support 
administration accuracy and for robust governance.   
 
 

2019/02 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies were noted from Cameron Waddell, Office Managing 
Partner, Mazars LLP.  
 

 
2019/03 Declarations of Interest 

Mr Macklin asked if anyone had any declarations of interest to declare 
and none were raised.  Mr Macklin reminded members should any 
declarations of interest become apparent during the meeting, they 
should be raised at the appropriate point. It would then be determined 
how the conflict would be managed and recorded appropriately.  
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2019/04 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 6 November 2018  

The minutes were ACCEPTED as an accurate record.  
 

 
2019/05 Matters Arising from the Minutes and Action Log 
   

Mrs Sullivan requested an update on harmonisation of service audit 
reports across the country.  Mrs Lake advised she had not received an 
update from NECS but believed it was progressing.  Mr Macklin shared 
Audit Chairs had received a letter from Martin Barnes requesting to 
meet.  Mr Macklin confirmed he was scheduled to meet with Martin 
Barnes in coming weeks.  
 
Mrs Sullivan flagged in the terms of reference it states lay members are 
to meet with internal audit and external audit separately.  Mr Macklin 
confirmed there was an extra hour scheduled at the next meeting to 
incorporate meeting with internal audit and external audit.  
 
Mr Chandler asked for assurance that the inclusion of Deputy Chief 
Finance Officer to point 3.1 in the terms of reference had been 
inputted.  Ms Cornell advised she would check the document.  

 
  

Governance 
 
2019/06 Finance and Sustainability Delivery Group Update   

 
Mr Chandler provided an update from a finance perspective.  
 
Mr Chandler confirmed the CCG was still on track to achieve its final 
targets for the year:  

• to deliver at least a cumulative surplus of £20.76m; 

• running costs to remain within allocation of £5.9m; and 

• achievement of productivity or QIPP savings of £11.4m. 
 
The CCG reported a year to date position at month 9 of a £3k 
underspend (excluding the cumulative surplus), which was in line with 
the planned forecast outturn of breakeven.  Mr Chandler highlighted 
prescribing was forecasting a £2.2k underspend which was an increase 
of £398k from the previous month.  It was noted that CHC continued to 
breakeven which was a vast improvement to previous years.   
 
Mr Chandler flagged delegated primary care was forecasting a £230k 
underspend which was an increase of £113k from the previous months 
position, however the movement was due to an anticipated retraction 
from NHS England for indemnity funding not materialising.   
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It was noted the underlying position for City Hospital Sunderland was 
an estimated £3.5m impact in relation to over performance linked to 
A&E and emergency admissions over performance.  Gateshead 
Foundation Trust estimated a £1.3m forecast out-turn pressure.  Again, 
the main driver of the increase was linked to increased A&E and 
emergency admissions.  
 
Mr Chandler provided assurance that the productivity plan was on track 
to achieve the target of £11.4m.   
 
Mr Chandler reported between now and the end of the year the 
financial risk had been assessed and reduced down to £500k worst 
case scenario.  The risks identified were:  
 

• Acute contract over performance due to higher growth - £250k. 

• Miscellaneous risk including QIPP productivity schemes - £250k. 
 
The risks would be covered from contingency and drawdown reserves.  
Mr Chandler advised he had a high degree of confidence in this area.  
 
The committee were informed of a mental health rebasing exercise 
with Northumberland Tyne and Wear.  The impact report was 
approximately £330k in additional costs over a three year period.  Mr 
Macklin asked as there was no longer any risk had this reduced the 
numbers.  Mrs Lake confirmed this was correct.  
 
Mr Macklin asked for clarity on a better care fund paper, presented to 
the Health and Wellbeing Board which reported Sunderland share of a 
£400k overspend on loan equipment was approximately £300k.  
Mr Chandler confirmed the share was factored into the community 
service position and provided assurance that the forecast in that area 
had been relatively static.  Work was progressing with All Together 
Better Alliance on how savings would be made on a recurrent basis.   

 
Mr Chandler confirmed NHS England had announced draft allocation 
figures for NHS commissioners for the next five years.  Mr Chandler 
highlighted Sunderland distance from target per fair funding had moved 
from 19% over funded in 2016-17 to 7.35% in 2019-20.  The figure plus 
NHS ‘birthday funding’ had led to significantly more funding than 
originally notified in 2016-17.  Mr Chandler confirmed the CCG would 
receive programme growth of 4.8% in 2019-20 which would then uplift 
between 3 – 3.5% for following years.  Mr Chandler asked the 
committee to note the uplift was still the lowest figure within the North 
East but the difference between what Sunderland CCG will receive and 
others was much narrower.   
 
Mr Chandler stated the CCG anticipated £21.5m of additional allocation 
growth for 2019/20 but explained some of this was required to fund 
2018-19 pressures and some monies was simply pass through funding 
from commissioners to providers e.g. £5m for PSF changes.   
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The committee were reminded of the pay increases for staff which 
coupled with existing pressures and must dos within the Long Term 
Plan (mental health investment standard) would consume a lot of the 
new funding.  

 
Mr Chandler put on record the fantastic work carried out by the CCG 
and especially Mrs Lake who have worked with NHS England over two 
years on validating Sunderland’s distance from target calculations. Mr 
Macklin thanked Mrs Lake on behalf of the committee and governing 
body for doing an outstanding job for Sunderland.  
 
Mr Chandler noted primary care delegated budget would be uplifted by 
6.2% next year.  

 
Mr Chandler provided an update on the extended access fraud 
investigation and confirmed counter fraud had concluded there was no 
realistic chance of prosecution due to lack of sufficient evidence.  Mr 
Chandler advised a formal report would be shared with the committee 
once received.  

 
  The Committee NOTED the update.  
 
 
2019/07 Review of Annual Accounts Notes   
   

Mrs Lake informed the committee accounting policies was not an 
agenda item as NHS England was still to release the statutory 
accounts template.   
 
Mrs Lake shared following the completion of the 2017/18 accounts 
Mazars identified notes which could be streamlined and / or removed 
from the statutory accounts of the CCG.  The CCG reviewed the 
proposals and for the vast majority agree with the removal / 
streamlining proposals as set out by Mazars.  For four key areas 
however the CCG proposal for the treatment in the accounts is as 
follows:  
 
 

• Note 2 and 3 – remove note 3 from 2018-19 statutory accounts and 
include disclosure to note 2 to identify income.  

• Note 5.2 – retain note due to useful information to have in public 
domain and would reduce freedom of information requests.  

• Note 15 – agree revised disclosure wording with Mazars for 
disclosure for 2018-19 statutory accounts. 

• Note 21 – retain note and table as considered useful for readers of 
the accounts to understand the in-year and cumulative financial 
performance of the CCG.   

 
The committee APPROVED the proposed removal / revisions to the 

notes of the 2018/19 statutory accounts of the CCG. 
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2019/08 Update on Month 9 Accounts   
   

Mrs Lake confirmed month 9 accounts were submitted on time and to a 
high standard.  The accounts included assessments for IFR9 and 
IFR15 but confirmed both had no impact on the CCG.  Working papers 
were submitted to Mazars to begin interim testing.  Mrs Lake shared 
the agreement of balances return had been difficult due to local 
foundation trusts moving to a new financial system but confirmed the 
return was submitted on time and balances aligned with local 
organisations.   
 
Mrs Lake highlighted that the finance team had completed a review of 
the government reporting manual requirements against the CCG 
template which identified that the presentation requirements for notes 
did not align. This has been raised with NHS England.  

 
The committee NOTED the update.  

 
 
2019/09        Q3 Self-Assessment   
 

Mrs Lake presented the assessment to the committee and advised the 
purpose of the template was to provide early warning signs of CCGs in 
financial distress and to provide assurance that there are adequately 
designed and effective financial controls and governance processes in 
place to manage risk.  
 
Mrs Lake reminded the committee a similar return was completed in 
Q1 and shared with Audit and Risk Committee. All CCGs are required 
to submit the return to the local NHS England office by 31st January 
2019 with the “Q3” tab and “Annual” tab completed.  
 
Mr Macklin questioned the red ratings in contracting and capability. Mrs 
Lake explained due to a vacancy within the director team affected the 
rating despite the role covered within the rest of the director team. Mrs 
Lake advised NHS England had confirmed the assessment was only 
used by the local team and would not impact end of year assurance.    

 
Mrs Lake assured the committee that NHS England had recognised 
Sunderland CCG are structured different to other CCG’s.  
 
Mr Weddle shared he thought the assessment was a good tool to 
prompt questions but the assessments ratings did not always match 
the questions.   

 
The committee APPROVED the submission.  
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2019/10          Annual Governance Statement   
 

Ms Cornell provided the committee with an early draft of the annual 
governance statement as part of the annual report requirement for 
2018/19.  
 
Mrs Cornell explained there were some sections that are still under 
review or have not yet been completed due to the information not being 
available at present.  However assurance was provided that sections 
would be completed and an updated draft will be brought back to the 
committee.  

 
Mrs Sullivan noted the Quality and Safety Committee had revised the 
Executive GP membership from three to two due to recruitment 
difficulties.  

 
Ms Williams advised a statement on primary medical care 
commissioning would be required and NECS would only provide one 
report.  

 
Additional assurance was provided that the governance section and 
annual governance statement were aligned.  

 
Mr Macklin commented it was a good first draft but requested 
allocations to be included.   

 
The committee NOTED the update.  

  
  

2019/11         Operational Scheme of Delegation Update    

 
Ms Cornell requested the committee to consider proposed changes to 
the financial scheme of delegation. The scheme had been reviewed 
and changes proposed to reflect changes in staffing and 
responsibilities for some key roles within the CCG’s organisational 
structure, in particular to the Continuing Health Care Team who had 
been TUPE transferred to the CCG from South Tyneside NHS 
Foundation Trust in November 2018.   

 
It was noted the full scheme had not been included on this occasion as 
there were no proposed changes to the other sections. However, the 
full scheme would be reviewed to reflect changes in All Together Better 
Alliance scheme of delegation if approved by Governing Body. 

 
Ms Cornell presented the proposed changes highlighted in appendix 
one but flagged a correction in that the Programme Manager for 
Continuing Health Care was to retain their delegated limit for business 
continuity purposes. 
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Mr Macklin supported the proposed change to include a fourth 
individual to have the maximum limit to approval invoices under 
extenuating circumstances for business continuity purposes.  
 
Ms Harold asked was £200m a reasonable limit as the CCG’s largest 
contract was for £174m but confirmed no unusual limits were 
identified.  Mrs Lake suggested inclusion of wording for rationale 
‘requires ability to approve large invoices and purchase orders’.  

 
The committee CONSIDERED and APPROVED the changes to the 
financial scheme of delegation.   

 
 

2019/12         Corporate Risk Register    
 

Ms Cornell presented the committee with the latest version of the 
CCG’s corporate risk register and summary of movements during the 
period 19th October 2018 – 14th January 2019.  
 
Ms Cornell highlighted the cluster of middle rated risks presented on 
the risk matrix which had been flagged at the previous meeting.  Ms 
Cornell provided assurance that this challenge was raised at the Risk 
Management Group and confirmed the risks were rated correctly.  
 
Ms Cornell made the committee aware that a review of Brexit was 
being undertaken by the CCG and any risks associated with Brexit 
would be added to the risk register.  
 
Mr Macklin questioned why the Risk Management Group had not met 
on a quarterly basis as outlined in the terms of reference.  Ms Cornell 
advised this was due to staff sickness but suggested implementing a 
back-up plan to prevent the meeting being stood down.  

 
Mr Chandler highlighted risk 1944 and requested a review with the risk 
leads to review the risk and mitigation to ensure accurate reporting to 
the committee.  ACTION:  Ms Cornell and risk leads to conduct a 
review on risk 1944.  

 
Mrs Sullivan shared the Quality and Safety Committee had received an 
update presentation on CHC.  ACTION:  CHC presentation to be 
circulated for information to the committee.  

 
The committee RECEIVED and REVIEWED the risk register for 
assurance.   
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External Audit 
 
2019/13       External Audit Progress Report 

  
Ms Harold advised the planning and interim work would begin in 
February and shared that a local workshop had been scheduled on 
employment tax and an update on financial reporting.  Mrs Lake 
confirmed she or Mark Speer would be in attendance at the workshop.  

 
Ms Harold confirmed there was no major issues to flag but made the 
committee aware the mental health mandate was still not agreed but at 
a pilot stage.   
 
The committee were assured that Mazars had passed the training and 
quality scrutiny.  
 
The committee NOTED the progress report.  
 
 

2019/14       Audit Strategy Memorandum 
 

Ms Harold presented the report and highlighted the audit plan was for 
2018/19 and sets out planned work, significant risks, fees and 
materiality.   

 
Ms Harold made particular reference to materiality in section four and 
explained the benchmark was 1.5% of expenditure but Mazars’ 
methodology would permit up to 2% but following extensive discussion 
it was agreed 1.5% (approx. £7.5m) was an appropriate level of 
materiality for the CCG.  
  
Ms Harold confirmed all risks were identical to last year and reiterated 
the only significant risk was management override of controls which 
was an inherent risk for all audits.  Ms Harold shared there was an 
enhanced risk in respect of the prescribing accrual given it was a 
material accounting estimate.    

  
Ms Harold informed the committee that there was no significant change 
to the planned audit work and substantive testing was planned as that 
was the most efficient approach for the CCG.  

  

ICP/ICS debated and decided still too early and not a significant risk to 
external audit responsibilities for 2018/19 however this would be kept 
under review.   

  
Ms Harold made the committee aware that she was now responsible 
for Sunderland City Council’s external audit and assured there were 
clear boundaries in place.  

 
The committee RECIEVED and APPROVED the report.     
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Internal Audit 
 
2019/15        Internal Audit Progress Report   

 
Ms Williams presented the report and confirmed all was on track to 
deliver the final head of audit opinion. It was noted field work for 
primary care medical commissioning had been completed and section 
117 mental health audit was progressing well.  

 
Ms Williams informed there were no areas of concern to report at 
present and no proposed changes to areas of work other than what 
had been previously reported to the committee.  Ms Williams 
suggested a change in reporting due to Value Based Commissioning 
(VBC) being a separate area in the plan but explained the original 
proposal that all CCGs in the patch committed two days for an overall 
VBC audit across the patch, mainly due to one VBC policy which all 
CCGs had committed to, was proving practically difficult to deliver.    
Ms Williams explained this was due to each CCG having different 
authorisation process’ therefore the revised proposal was to focus on 
monitoring tools rather than operation of system.  Ms Williams advised 
there would be an additional three controls:  
 

• Has the CCG adopted the VBC policy. 

• Has the CCG built the policy into head of terms for providers. 

• Does the CCG have monitoring mechanisms to ensure activity that 
had not been approved is picked up and challenged where this 
activity has been recharged to the CCG.  

 
Ms Williams assured the additional controls would provide the 
assurance required.  The revised approach had been agreed with all 
CCG’s across the patch.  

 
Mr Chandler provided a VBC update regionally and advised the VBC 
policy was being monitored.  Mr Chandler shared there had been some 
dispute across the patch regarding implementation and cost.  Mr 
Chandler assured there was no impact on Sunderland due to a block 
contract with City Hospital Sunderland.   
 
Ms Williams noted the CHC audit was making progress with a revised 
implementation date of March 2019.  Mr Macklin suggested 
incorporating the CHC audit into a review of risk 1944 to ensure 
progress continues.  
 
Ms Cornell flagged Debbie Burnicle was still named on the plan and 
should be removed.   It was also noted Ann Fox should be named 
director for CHC.   
 
The committee NOTED progress.   
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2019/16       Internal Audit Draft Plan 
  
Ms Williams presented the plan and explained the reported consisted of    
a proposed three year strategic internal audit plan which outlined all 
identified areas where assurance may be required and an annual 
operational plan.  Ms Williams provided assurance that the draft plan 
had been shared with the CCG’s directors and their comments had been 
incorporated into the draft plan.  
 
Ms Williams advised some changes had been made to the strategic 
three year plan which was brought to the committee in 2018 and 
highlighted the need to now cover primary medical care commissioning 
in the plan on an annual basis following the issue of NHS England’s 
Internal Audit Framework. 
 
Mr Chandler advised additional safeguarding and quality audits had 
been included within the plan.  
 
ACTION: Remove Debbie Burnicle from draft plan.  
 
Mr Weddle questioned the ‘not applicable last covered low risks’ on page 
14.  Ms Williams explained the review areas were classed as low priority 
but were part of the audit universe.  Ms Cornell provided assurance that 
some would picked up through the governance audit.  The committee 
agreed clear wording was required to provide clarity and suggested 
‘picked up via another audit’.   

 
Ms Cornell challenged business continuity rated as low and questioned 
was that not a higher risk.  The committee agreed to update the priority 
to a medium.   
 
It was noted following the suggested amendments the final plan would 
be brought to the committee in April for approval.  
 
The committee REVIEWED and NOTED the draft plan.  

 
  
2019/17 Annual Review of Internal Audit (Informal)  
 

Mr Best and Ms Williams left the meeting.  
 
Mr Macklin commented due to the CCG becoming a member of the 
consortium he would hope the CCG has an influence on ways of working 
and noted the organisation had struggled due to staff absence.  
 
Mr Macklin opened the floor for comments.  
 
Ms Harold shared external audit had developed a good working 
relationship with internal audit but stressed external audit do not rely on 
internal audit and therefore do not review detailed quality of the work.  



 NHS Official Item 4 

11 
 

Ms Harold left the meeting.  
 

Mrs Lake commented the staff appear to be more stable and work 
across all CCG’s which has improved knowledge and efficiency.  
However, both Mrs Lake and Ms Cornell expressed timeframes for 
starting and completing audits could be more proactive.  A suggestion 
was made to agree indicative dates for audits and to be inserted into 
plans which would also allow performance management throughout the 
plan.  
 
Ms Cornell suggested more visibility of Mr Best to mitigate the risk of Ms 
Williams not being available.    

 
Mrs Lake suggested a peer review would be helpful.  Mr Macklin agreed 
this would be beneficial from a strategic point of view.   
 
Mr Chandler expressed he thought the reports were very brief and 
suggested additional content covering what had been reviewed would be 
helpful. Mr Macklin suggested including areas of exemplar practice.   
 
 
For information  

 
2019/18       Cycle of Business  
 
 Cycle of business received for information.  
 
 
2019/19 Sustainability Delivery Group Minutes  
 
  Meeting minutes was received for information purposes.  
 

   
2019/20 Any Other Business 
 

Mr Macklin noted it was Mrs Sullivan’s last committee.  On behalf of the 
CCG the committee thanked Mrs Sullivan for her support and 
tremendous work.  

 
 

The meeting closed at 11:45 

Signed:  
 Chris Macklin, Chair, Audit Lay Member 
 
 
Date:  09 April 2019 
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Governing Body Meeting 
21 May 2019 

Chief Officer’s Report 
 
As I write this report there is a significant amount of activity in closing down 2018/19 and 
getting the CCG to the point where, elsewhere on today’s agenda, we can sign off the 
annual report and accounts. A huge amount of time and effort goes into this and I’d like to 
thank everyone for getting us to this point. 
 
Sunderland as a Smart City 
 
At the end of April I spent two days with leaders and representatives from across 
Sunderland, looking at opportunities to make Sunderland a “smart city” by developing 
digital infrastructure to enable very fast internet access and city-wide Wi-Fi as well as being 
ready to exploit the opportunities of 5G. There is lots of work underway to develop and 
build on health and health service apps, as well as innovative developments that the CCG 
is leading, including new consultation methods and video consultation with GP practices. 
All of this would be greatly enhanced by more readily available internet access. 
  
Legislative Changes 
 
I attended a consultation session with NHSE/I in Leeds on 16 April, seeking views on 
proposed changes to legislation to enable delivery of the Long Term Plan. These aren’t 
intended to be wholesale changes to NHS structure but more enabling measures like 
allowing commissioners and providers to have joint decision making mechanisms. We 
have also fed formally into this national consultation and await the outcome. 
 
Armed Forces and Veterans  
 
I chaired the Armed Forces Network in Durham on 5 May, where we are starting to develop 
an action plan to help ensure service personnel, veterans and their families have access to 
appropriate health services. One of the key components of this will be levelling up good 
work in CCGs to ensure a consistent offer of services. 
 
I was pleased to attend a screening of a film outlining the work of Veterans in Crisis in 
Sunderland at the university on 8 May. This service is something the CCG is supporting 
and we are starting to explore opportunities of working with colleagues at the university to 
help veterans and their families. 
 
Workforce 
 
As part of the ICS workforce board, I took part in a subgroup discussion in April looking at 
opportunities for devolving some of the role and funding from Health Education England to 
the ICS to help ensure coherence with the ICS work and especially out of hospital work. 
This is one of the opportunities that the ICS presents and might lead the way for devolution 
of powers and funding from other arm’s length bodies. 
 
Alcohol Partnership  
 
We all know that Sunderland is an outlier on a number of indicators linked to alcohol 
misuse, which is why the Health and Wellbeing Board has included this as one of its key 
priorities. I chaired a session of the re-emerging Alcohol Partnership on 10 May, where we 
used the alcohol Clear tool with a wide range of partners to start to develop a strategic 
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approach and plan to tackle this problem which affects the city directly or indirectly in a 
number of ways. 
 
Perfect System 
 
Another recurring challenge in Sunderland has been the demand on the urgent care 
system, manifesting itself in longer than acceptable waiting times in the hospital in the 
emergency department. Following discussion at the A&E Delivery Board, we agreed to run 
a “perfect system” week to capture information in real time about why people are attending 
the ED, how they get there, if they have been seen elsewhere first, etc. The intention is that 
this will provide insight into the reasons behind increased activity and waiting times and to 
inform plans to reduce them. The week, run by all partners in the system, is planned to run 
over seven days and to include evenings and nights. 
 
Health Awards 
 
I was delighted to be at the South Tyneside and Sunderland Health Awards at the Roker 
Hotel on 9 May. This is an event the CCG has co-sponsored since it came into being and is 
always humbling to attend to hear the nominations, many from patients and the public for a 
range of staff from the hospitals, dentists, GP practices and community services. 
Congratulations to everyone nominated and to the winners of the ten categories. 
 
Lay Member 
 
Finally for this month, I am delighted to welcome Debbie Burnicle in her new role as lay 
member for PPI following an external recruitment process culminating in panel interviews 
on 5 April. I know everyone at the CCG and especially governing body colleagues will 
support Debbie in her new and different role. 
 
David Gallagher 
Chief Officer 
May 2019 
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Northern CCG Joint Committee 
 

7 March 2019 /2.00 – 3.00pm / The Durham Centre 
 

Part 1 - Meeting held in public 
 

Present 
 

CCG members 

Mark Adams MA NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG and 
NHS North Tyneside CCG 

Nicola Bailey NB NHS Darlington CCG 
NHS Hartlepool and Stockton on Tees CCG 
NHS North Durham CCG  
NHS Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG 
NHS South Tees CCG 

Vanessa Bainbridge VB NHS Northumberland CCG 

Amanda Bloor AB NHS Hambleton, Richmond and Whitby CCG 

Mark Dornan MD NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG 

David Gallagher DG NHS Sunderland CCG 

David Hambleton DH NHS South Tyneside 

Neil O’Brien NO’B NHS Darlington CCG 
NHS Hartlepool and Stockton on Tees CCG 
NHS North Durham CCG  
NHS Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG 
NHS South Tees CCG 

Jon Rush (Chair) JR NHS North Cumbria CCG 

Richard Scott RS NHS North Tyneside CCG 

Jonathan Smith JS NHS Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG 

Janet Walker JW NHS South Tees CCG 

 

Lay members (non-voting) 

Ken Readshaw KR 
 

In attendance 

Dan Jackson DJ NHS Sunderland CCG 

Amanda Hume AH Executive Lead for System Transformation and Strategic 
Commissioning Development North East and North Cumbria 

Michelle McGuigan MMcG North of England Commissioning Support (NECS) 

Gavin Mankin (item 04) GM Northern Treatment Advisory Group (NTAG) 

Gillian Stanger GS North of England Commissioning Support (NECS) 
 

Members of the public 

A Bailey Ranbaxy 

C Gordon Pfizer 

 

Minutes Action 

01  Welcome, apologies and declarations of conflicts of interest in relation to the agenda  

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introduced Amanda Bloor, Accountable Officer 
for the three North Yorkshire CCGs. 
 

Apologies were received from Stephen Childs (North of England Commissioning Support), Jon 
Connolly (North Tyneside CCG), Stewart Findlay (NHS Darlington, NHS Hartlepool and Stockton 
on Tees, NHS North Durham, NHS Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield and 
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NHS South Tees CCGs), Feisal Jassat (Lay member), Charles Parker (NHS Hambleton, 
Richmondshire and Whitby CCG), Ian Pattison (NHS Sunderland CCG), Boleslaw Posymyk (NHS 
Hartlepool and Stockton and Darlington CCGs), David Rogers (NHS North Cumbria CCG), David 
Shovlin (NHS Northumberland CCG). 
 
 The Committee’s register of Interests was received. 
 

02 Minutes and action log of previous meeting (10 January 2019)  

The minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2019 were accepted as an accurate record,  
 
The action log was updated. 
 

 
 
 
 

03 Matters arising from the previous meeting (and action log)  

03.1 Specialised Services Place Based Commissioning 
It was noted that discussions were on-going and the action notes from a recent meeting would be 
circulated to members. 
 
03.2 Collaboration with the Academic Health Science Network (AHSN) North East North 
Cumbria 
MD noted the AHSN had advised that the vacant places on its Board were for CCG members 
only; they had therefore not accepted the nomination for a NECS representative to become a 
member. 
 
Decision: David Gallagher volunteered to be a member of the Board, alongside Janet 
Walker who had been nominated at the last meeting and this was agreed. 
 

 
 
GS 

04 Review of Northern Treatment Advisory Group (NTAG) Terms of Reference / receive 
Annual Report 

 

Gavin Mankin (GM) introduced the report and highlighted the proposed changes to the NTAG 
Terms of Reference. NTAG was also seeking confirmation and clarity on its accountability 
arrangements in the light of changing NHS structures and accountability/decision making 
processes within the region; whether there was still a place and role for NTAG in light of the 
creation of Regional Medicines Optimisation Committees and, if so, some clarity on the remit of 
NTAG. 
 
MA asked whether, as NTAG was increasingly being asked to issue recommendations on 
prescribable devices, there might be the opportunity to review patient representation on the group. 
The difficulties in supporting patient representatives on clinical groups were recognised and the 
gap existed as there was no longer a Healthwatch representative on NTAG.  
  
Action: GM would contact Heathwatch to see if a replacement could be identified  
However, it was noted that information and patient views on relevant items were obtained in 
advance of meetings. RS noted patient representatives could also be recruited from existing GP 
Practice and CCG patient participation groups. 
 
Decisions :The Joint Committee decided  the following: 

- Confirmed there was still a place and role for NTAG in light of changing NHS 
structures and accountability/decision making processes within the region 

- Confirmed that NTAG would continue to be accountable to the Northern CCG Joint 
Committee 

- Approved the updated NTAG Terms of Reference 
- Received the NTAG Annual Report 2018 
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05 Governance update – remit of the Joint Committee  

The Chair noted a small group had met on 11/2/19 and 29/2/19 to consider the proposed matrix 
and flowchart which could potentially expand from medical pathways to policies and procedures. 
Albeit , whilst the group accepted the need for pathways, there had not been the appetite to 
progress the proposed matrix  to policies and procedures proposal. 
 
The Committee discussed its remit which covered learning from elsewhere. AB expanded on the 
remit of the West Yorkshire and Harrogate ICS Joint CCG Committee, the decision-making 
process, infrastructure and workplan, and noted that decisions were now starting to be made 
across the patch. 
 
The Committee then discussed the potential flowchart to identify ICS-level commissioning issues 
in the North East and North Cumbria, together with the associated scoring criteria, and noted the 
following points: 

- Whether the potential flowchart might be used to set the annual workplan  
- A point of clarity on the flowchart which DJ would correct and to change the work ‘issues’ 

to ‘decisions’  
- ‘servant and place’  model – starting with ‘can this be done at place?’ and only progressing 

to the pyramid model (shown in the presentation) where this would add value 
- On what grounds should the question ‘is this an area of service vulnerability that affects 

more than one ICP?’ be answered  
- Taking account of the work done as a system pre-ICS (STP workstreams) 
- Noting the areas which the ICS is progressing e.g. urgent and emergency care, learning 

disabilities 
- The use of the matrix for policy work e.g. taking account of the work already underway to 

align contracts 
 
The proposed governance flowchart for issues delegated to ICS-level was also considered. AB 
noted in West Yorkshire and Humber, the Joint Committee developed its work programme as 
commissioners (endorsed by Governing Bodies/Council of Members) and did not engage with 
providers (who have their own work programme) on this. This differed to the Joint Committee’s 
remit which would only consider items referred to it by the Health Strategy Group (HSG) with more 
focus on partnership working. 
 
There was general agreement for the proposed approach which could now be built into the 
Committee’s Terms of Reference which would also be reviewed and would reflect primacy of 
‘place’ and desire to work as a system. 
 
Decision: to utilise the matrix, with small amendments, as the basis for the topics/areas 
that the Committee would consider and build this into the revised Terms of Reference. 
 
However, this did not provide the Committee with an annual work programme and it would 
therefore meet bi-monthly when there was a decision to be made (recognising that the work 
previously undertaken by the Northern CCG Forum was now being picked up by the ICPs and 
Health Strategy Group). 
 

 

06 Feedback from ‘ Integrated governance regional meeting’  

The Chair noted that the event had been hosted by Sir John Burn, Chair of Newcastle Hospitals, 
who provided an update for Chairs, CCG lay members and Foundation Trust non-executive 
directors on progress within the system, and Alan Foster, ICS Executive Lead, North East and 
North Cumbria ICS. The keynote address was from The Rt Hon Alan Milburn who noted that 
dealing with ambiguity made it hard to turn that into execution. He highlighted things to change – 
mindset and behaviours’ legislation won’t be until 2022, new capabilities – sharing of data 
analytics; tacking health inequalities; changing relationships with citizens, advising and supporting 
them to be active and take care of themselves. A legal update was provided by Robert McGough. 
 
There followed a governance discussion which noted  the need to set up a Partnership Board for 
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the ICS. The Chair would be working with Neil Mundy of South Tyneside Foundation Trust and 
others to develop some proposals around this. This ‘board’ could be more of an assembly as it 
would have no statutory powers.   
 
Brendan Foster closed the event, highlighting the use of ‘Great North’ as brand to be used going 
forward and his vision to get citizens more active. 

07 Questions from members of the public relating to specific items on the agenda  

A member of the public asked how the Committee might share some of the complex discussions 
which took place with the public. He noted a meeting of Sunderland CCG which had been live-
streamed on Facebook. DG noted that there had been a lot of public interest in that particular 
meeting; some analysis of number of viewings had been undertaken but not in detail. It was noted 
that a number of local authorities also live-streamed their public meetings, as did NHS England. 
 
Action: DG to circulate basic details of Livestream costs/logistics to Committee members 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DG 

08  Any Other Business  

There was no other business. 
 

 

 
 

Representatives of the press and other members of the public were excluded from part 2 of this 

meeting having regard to the confidential nature of the business to be transacted, publicity on which 

would be prejudicial to the public interest (Section 1 (2)) Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 

1960 

 
Date and time of next meeting: 

 
Thursday 2 May 2019 

2.00pm 
The Durham Centre 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


